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To the HCC Board of Trustees: 
 

I have the honor of submitting to the Houston Community College System 
(HCC or System), the Board of Trustees (the Board) and to the citizens of our 
service area the HCC Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
fiscal year beginning September 1, 2019 and ending August 31, 2020. HCC has 
strengthened its financial position in six short years through consistent and 
effective fiscal stewardship and financial reporting. The results show the 
delivery of more services to students and an increase in the economic viability 
of the Houston area. 

 
As the FY 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report reveals, HCC is committed to and has 
exceeded the fiscal responsibility typically performed by a publicly funded institution. 

 
 Net Position:  FY 2020 Net Position totals $431.6 million, an increase of $38.6 million 

from last year’s $393.0 million. 
 

 Debt Reductions. Since FY 2015, HCC has accelerated the payment of its debt by $19.1 
million using excess cash, producing additional interest cost savings of $9 million. 
Through eight separate refinance transactions since FY 2014, the System achieved future 
cash-flow savings of $63.9 million. HCC’s outstanding debt has decreased from a high of 
$1.04 billion at the end of FY 2014 to a low of $773.2 million at the end of FY 2020, 
reflecting the implementation of impactful debt-reduction strategies. 

 
 Days Cash on Hand. Since 2018, when the Board adopted the financial reserve policy of 

180+/- five percent days cash on hand (DCOH) which allowed for an increase in financial 
reserves, HCC has consistently exceeded the policy’s threshold. As of August 31, 2020, 
the DCOH is 264 which represents $233.2 million and exceeds the required minimum by 
84 days and $74.3 million. The $233.2 million is an increase of $22.5 million over the 
DCOH of $210.7 million as of August 31, 2019. Approximately $6.2M of the increase 
came from operational cost saving. Additionally, HCC’s DCOH is strong relative to its 
large, Texas community college peers. 

 
 Excellence in Financial Reporting. HCC, again, has received the Certificate of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for its FY2019 CAFR. This is the 
13th year that the college has received this recognition from the Government Finance 
Officers Association. We expect that our FY2020 CAFR will receive the same recognition. 

 
Notwithstanding the rapidly shifting environment born from the COVID-19 pandemic, we consistently 
provide critical services to the communities we serve. We have been able to accomplish many things 
together and a few of these achievements include the following: 
 

• Created a stronger, more professional institution, achieving a Aaa (highest quality) bond 
rating from Moody’s and AA+ (very strong) credit rating from Standard & Poor’s. 
 

• Placed more than 90% of our students in jobs or positioned them to further their education. 
 

• Innovated “Next Learning,” an educational model developed to transition students to and from  
in-person classes in response to the pandemic that has been adopted by other institutions as a 
programming model. 
 

• Modernized the student experience, introducing artificial intelligence to anticipate and provide 
increased student support and high-quality education that is affordable and accessible for all. 
This is especially important to our student population, more than 40% of whom come from 
households earning less than $20,000 a year. 
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• Completed capital improvement projects under budget. 

 
• Recognized by the National Procurement Institute as an exceptional procurement program 

provider for five consecutive years – notably developing and implementing policies and 
procedures that help ensure that the procurement of goods and services follows high ethical 
standards.  

 

Our willingness to push boundaries, create communities of scholars and encourage broad 
collaborations all contribute to a comprehensive picture of what makes HCC unique. These diverse 
pieces play a crucial role in the mosaic that is of HCC – all of us working in unison for student success. 

 
I thank the Board of Trustees and the HCC faculty and staff for their continued dedication to changing 
the lives of students by providing pathways to academic and workforce success that align our students’ 
needs with educational and career opportunities. 

 
Sincerely, 
  

 
Cesar Maldonado, Ph.D., P.E. 
Chancellor 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Management’s discussion and analysis of the annual financial statements of the Houston Community College 
System (HCC or the System) is designed to help readers understand some of the conditions and events contributing 
to the current financial position of HCC as well as to point out trends and changes in the results of operations. 
Please read it in conjunction with the Chancellor’s Letter, the Transmittal Letter, HCC’s basic financial statements, 
and Notes to the Financial Statements. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests 
with HCC. For purposes of the summary and discussion, the terms “2020”, “2019” and “2018” refer to fiscal years 
ended August 31, 2020, August 31, 2019, and August 31, 2018, respectively. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
HCC is considered a special-purpose government engaged in business-type activities according to the definition 
in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: 
Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34 (GASB 61). The requirements of this Statement 
result in financial statements being more relevant by improving guidance for including, presenting, and disclosing 
information about component units and equity interest transactions of a financial reporting entity. The resulting 
financial statement format focuses on HCC as a whole. The basic financial statements are designed to emulate the 
corporate presentation model whereby HCC’s fiscal activities are consolidated into one column total. Comparative 
data from the prior year is shown in a separate column on the face of each of the statements. The financial results 
and position are presented as of August 31, 2020 and 2019 and consists of three primary statements: Statements of 
Net Position; Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and Statements of Cash Flows. 
 
The Houston Community College Foundation (the “Foundation”) is a non-profit organization established in 1976 
with its sole purpose being to provide benefits such as scholarships and grants to HCC.  The Foundation has been 
discretely presented in HCC’s financial statements as a component unit by including its Statements of Financial 
Position and Activities in HCC’s CAFR in accordance with GASB 61. Since the financial statements of the 
Foundation are presented in a different format than those of HCC, the Foundation’s financial statements are 
presented on separate pages from HCC’s financial statements.  
 
In fiscal year 2005, the Houston Community College System Public Facility Corporation (the “PFC”) was formed 
for the sole purpose of assisting HCC in financing or acquiring public facilities. The PFC was incorporated on 
January 18, 2005 as a public non-profit corporation under the Public Facility Corporation Act, Chapter 303, Texas 
Local Government Code, as amended.  Based on guidance included in GASB Statement No. 61, the PFC is reported 
as a blended component unit in the financial statements of the System. 
 
 
Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2020 
 

 Total assets decreased by $6.2 million from fiscal year 2019. While deposits and investments (Note 4) 
increased by $12.7 million and prepaid charges increased by $6.2 million, capital assets, net of 
depreciation, decreased by $18.4 million mainly due to depreciation being more than the assets additions.  
In addition, accounts receivable decreased by $6.7 million mainly due to decline in student receivables.   
 

 Total liabilities decreased by $73 million primarily due to decreases in accounts payable in the amount of 
$6.2 million, unearned revenue in the amount of $14 million, notes payable in the amount of $47 million, 
and bonds payable in the amount of $7.8 million.    
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
The decreases in accounts payable and unearned revenue are direct results of the impact brought about by 
COVID-19. With the System’s operations converted into remote modality for about half of the year, 
procurement of goods and services, aside from those necessary to address the pandemic, was greatly 
reduced. Fall enrollment was also impacted as prospective students had to weigh their options and the 
prevailing situation before committing to enrollment, thus a lower unearned revenue. The $54.8 million 
decrease in outstanding debt in fiscal year 2020 is attributable to principal payments of $40.4 million, 
premium amortization of $5.7 million, principal reductions of $103.3 million due to refunding of bonds, 
and new borrowings of $94.6 million. 
 

 The System’s net position at August 31, 2020 was $431.6 million, net of GASB Statement No. 65 
(Pension) and GASB Statement No. 75 (OPEB) expenses, reflecting a $38.6 million increase from the 
prior year. While the GASB No. 68 and GASB No. 75 expenses reduced net position, this decrease was 
offset by the reduction of liabilities. 
 

 Operating revenue increased $22.8 million mainly due to an increase in federal, local and non-
governmental grants of $15.8 million mainly due to receipts from the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security Act, (CARES Act).  Also, tuition and fee revenue increased by $7 million due to 
higher tuition rates.  The $13.5 million increase in non-operating revenues is primarily related to increases 
in restricted state appropriations ($4.4 million) and property taxes ($8.6 million) due to increased property 
values.   
 

 Operating expenses by functional and natural classifications increased in fiscal year 2020 by $12.3 million 
or 2.7% compared to fiscal year 2019. The increase is primarily due to Scholarship expenses which are 
$10.5 million higher this fiscal year due to a significant number of scholarships granted to students 
affected by COVID-19.   

 
 
Statements of Net Position 
 
The Statements of Net Position represent HCC’s financial position at the end of each fiscal year presented and 
includes all assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources of the System.  Net Position is the 
difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and 
serves as a general indicator of financial stability.  
 
From the data presented, readers of the financial statements are able to determine the assets available to continue 
operations of the System and how much HCC owes vendors, investors and lending institutions. 
 
Current liabilities are generally those liabilities which are due within one year, and current assets are those assets 
which are available to satisfy current liabilities. Non-current assets include restricted cash and cash equivalents, 
capital assets, investments and other assets not classified as current. Non-current liabilities include bonds payable 
and other long-term commitments.  
 
GASB No. 75 (OPEB) and GASB No. 68 (Pension) continue to impact the current year’s Statement of Net Position, 
including changes in liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources and net position as described more fully 
in appropriate sections of this MD&A and Notes 14 and 21 in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.   
 
In the fall of 2018, it was discovered HCC had been overpaying its share of the retirement contributions for 
administrative employees from September 2013 – August 2017.  Management was notified of the discovery along 
with TRS and HCC began working with TRS to recoup the approximate $10.3 million to be used as credits against 
future payments to TRS.  The full estimated amount of credits for the overpayments ($10.3M) was recorded as a 
prepaid asset in June 2020.  For FY 2020 HCC applied $1.1 million in actual credits towards payments to TRS. 
Since the excess contributions relate to prior fiscal years, the System also restated beginning net position by this 
same amount.  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
 
In order to show the trends for the two years presented in the Statements of Net Position, a summary of three years 
of data for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2018 through 2020 is presented below. 
 
 
Statements of Net Position 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
Assets  
 
Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
In comparing fiscal year 2020 to 2019, overall assets decreased by $6.2 million. Current assets increased by $23.5 
million. This was comprised of a $23.9 million increase in cash due to positive operating results and the maturities 
of short-term securities which were reinvested in cash due to falling interest rates.  Non-current assets decreased 
by $29.7 million due to a decrease of $9.8M in restricted cash due to CIP spending and a decrease of $18.4 million 
in Capital Assets due to depreciation being more than assets additions. 
 
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
In comparing fiscal year 2019 to 2018, overall assets decreased by $5.4 million. Current assets increased by $61.4 
million primarily due to a shift of unrestricted cash to short-term investments to take advantage of higher yields. 
Non-current assets decreased by $71.2 million due to the shift to short-term investments and the completion of CIP 
projects.  As a result of projects being completed, capital assets increased by $37.8 million. The increase is offset 
by current year depreciation of $33.4 million resulting in a net increase in capital assets of $4.4 million. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 
Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
Deferred outflows of resources decreased by $18.5 million from fiscal year 2019 to fiscal year 2020.  The decrease 
is primarily related to GASB No. 75 (OPEB) and GASB No. 68 (Pension).  The decrease for GASB No. 75 (OPEB) 
was $10.2M and was mainly due to a decrease in the proportion and difference between the employer’s 
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions, offset by an increase related to actuarial assumptions.  
The decrease of $7.6 million related to GASB No. 68 (Pension) is primarily related to changes in actuarial 
assumptions.  Deferred outflows from advance funding valuations decreased by $.7 million due to amortization.   
 
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
Deferred outflows of resources increased by $134.2 million from fiscal year 2018 to fiscal year 2019 mainly due 
to an increase of $104.2 million related to the change in the proportionate share from the new ERS allocation 
methodology for GASB 75 (OPEB).  Previously, allocation percentages were based on employer contributions for 
retirees only.  Currently, allocation percentages are based on employer contributions for active employees and 
retirees.  There was also an increase of $31 million related to GASB 68 (Pension).  This increase resulted from the 
changes in demographic assumptions, economic assumptions, and decreased discount rate and long-term rate of 
return. 
 
Liabilities  
 
Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
Overall liabilities decreased by $73 million from fiscal year 2019 to fiscal year 2020. Current liabilities decreased 
by $13.6 million mainly due to a $14 million decrease in unearned revenue due to a decrease in enrollment as a 
result of the pandemic. In addition, there was a decrease of $7 million in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
due to a decrease in spending and travel related to remote working due to COVID-19. These decreases were offset 
by increases in the current portion of debt by $2.7 million and OPEB liability by $3.4 million.  Also, compensated 
absences increased by $1.3 million due to employees not taking time off due to COVID-19.  Non-current liabilities 
decreased by $59.4 million due primarily to a $57.5 decrease in non-current debt, resulting from principal payments 
of $40.3 million and defeasance of debt, and a $17.7 million decrease in net pension liability related to GASB No, 
68.  The decrease is offset by an increase of $15.9 million OPEB liability primarily related to changes in actuarial 
assumptions.    
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
Overall liabilities increased by $76.4 million from fiscal year 2018 to fiscal year 2019. Current liabilities increased 
by $4.2 million mainly due to a $3 million increase in unearned revenue due to tuition and fee rate increases in the 
Fall of 2019. In addition, the current portion of debt and the OPEB liability increased by $1.9 and $2.0 million, 
respectively.  These increases were offset by a decrease of $2.6 million in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  
Non-current liabilities increased by $72.2 million due primarily to a $76.8 million increase in OPEB liability 
related to GASB 75 and an increase of $33.6 million in pension liability related to GASB 68.  The increase in 
OPEB liability was the result of a change in the allocation methodology made by ERS.  Previously, allocation 
percentages were based on employer contributions for retirees only.  Currently, allocation percentages are based 
on employer contributions for active employees and retirees.  The pension liability increase is related to changes 
in demographic and economic assumptions and the lowering of the projected long-term rate of return from 8% to 
7.25%.  These increases were offset by a $36.2 million net decrease in  total outstanding debt in fiscal year 2019 
attributable to principal payments of $37.5 million, premium amortization of $7.3 million, principal reductions of 
$4.2 million due to refunding of bonds and new borrowings of $12.8 million related to the West Houston Expansion 
project. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
Deferred inflows of resources increased by $9.6 million from fiscal year 2019 to fiscal year 2020.  The increase is 
primarily related to GASB No. 75 (OPEB) and GASB No. 68 (Pension).  The decrease for GASB No. 75 (OPEB) 
of $10.2 million was offset by an increase of $12.8 million for GASB No. 68 (Pension).   Both of these differences 
are primarily related to changes in actuarial assumptions.  Deferred inflows from advance funding valuations 
increased by $7 million due to defeasance of bonds.   
 
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
Deferred inflows of resources increased by $49.6 million from fiscal year 2018 to fiscal year 2019.  The increase 
is primarily related to GASB 75 (OPEB) and GASB 68 (Pension).  The increase for GASB 75 (OPEB) was $44.6 
million and was due to the change in demographic assumptions, assumed expenses, and an increase in the discount 
rate assumption.  An increase of $4.1 million related to GASB 68 (Pension) resulted from the changes in 
demographic assumptions. 

 
Net Position 
 
Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
Overall, net position for 2020 is $431.6 million, which is a $38.6 million increase from 2019.  Current unrestricted 
increased in fiscal year 2020 from fiscal year 2019 by $2.9 million.   The GASB No. 75 expenses were lower in 
fiscal year 2020 than fiscal year 2019 by $0.04 million and GASB No. 68 expenses were higher in fiscal year 2020 
than fiscal year 2019 by $4.6 million.  Net investment in capital assets increased $34.9 million mainly due to the 
capitalization of completed CIP projects.  Restricted-Expendable increased by $0.8 million. 
 
 
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
Overall, net position for 2019 is $393 million, which is a $3 million increase from 2018.  Current Unrestricted 
decreased in fiscal year 2019 from fiscal year 2018 by $17.8 million related to GASB No. 75 and GASB No. 68.   
The GASB No. 75 and GASB No. 68 expenses were higher in fiscal year 2019 than fiscal year 2018 by $17.2 and 
$5.4 million, respectively.  Net investment in Capital Assets increased $19.7 million mainly due to the 
capitalization of completed CIP projects.  Restricted-Expendable increased by $0.9 million. 
 
Net Position details are available in Schedule D. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 

 
 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present the operating results, as well as non-
operating revenues and expenses. Of the three main sources of revenue — ad valorem taxes, state appropriations, 
and tuition and fees — only tuition and fees represents an exchange for services. Taxes and state appropriations 
represent non-exchange transactions and thus are considered non-operating revenues. This approach to presenting 
revenues and expenses is intended to summarize and simplify the user’s analysis of the various services offered to 
students and the public. Depending on whether revenues or expenses are greater for the year, a net increase or net 
decrease in net position is created. The ending balances of net position on these statements agree with those shown 
on the Statements of Net Position in Exhibit 1. 
 
A summarized comparison of the System’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended 
August 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 is presented below. 
 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

 
 
Revenues  
 
As described above and in accordance with GAAP, promulgated by GASB, state appropriations and ad valorem 
tax revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. This results in reporting a large operating loss which is 
significantly decreased after including these non-operating revenues that are intended to contribute to operations. 
State appropriations are restricted by law to be used only for the educational and general expenses, HCC’s primary 
operations. Ad valorem tax revenues are broken into two types: those for maintenance and operations and those 
for debt service. The maintenance and operations portion is specifically designed to be utilized for operations. 
 
The debt service portion is restricted to pay the principal, interest, and other costs associated with tax backed bonds 
(General Obligation or GO bonds and maintenance tax notes). Interest revenue is obtained through pooled 
investments, a large portion of which is attributable to operations. Also federal financial aid is classified as non-
operating revenue by GASB. 

 
 
 

 
 

2020 2019 2018 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019
Operating Revenues 131,450,877$ 108,601,114$  109,415,489$  22,849,763$  (814,375)$      

Operating Expenses 464,384,268   452,076,684    425,853,990    12,307,584    26,222,694    

Operating Loss (332,933,391)  (343,475,570)   (316,438,501)  10,542,179    (27,037,069)   

Non-operating Revenues, Net 361,254,853   346,377,639    339,033,740    14,877,214    7,343,899       

Increase/(Decrease) in Net 28,321,462$   2,902,069$      22,595,239$    25,419,393$  (19,693,170)$ 

Beginning Net Position 393,024,421   390,122,352    466,462,035    2,902,069       (76,339,683)   

Cumulative Effect of Change 
in Accounting Principle -                   -                    (98,934,922)     -                  98,934,922    
Cumulative Effect of TRS 
Credit Adjustment 10,300,000     -                    -                    10,300,000    -                  

Ending Net Position 431,645,883$ 393,024,421$  390,122,352$  38,621,462$  2,902,069$    

Change
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

(Unaudited) 
 

 
All revenues, both operating and non-operating, are presented below. 

 
 

  
 

2020 2019 2018 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019
OPERATING REVENUES:

Tuition & Fees, Net of Discounts 83,937,951$ 76,925,390$ 75,875,184$ 7,012,561$ 1,050,206$ 

Grants, Contracts & Auxiliary:

     Federal 29,265,821 13,664,066 14,618,765 15,601,755 (954,699) 

     State 4,386,846 5,257,785 7,241,239 (870,939) (1,983,454) 

     Local, Private & Non-governmental 1,561,892 1,536,435 1,447,798 25,457 88,637 

     Sales and Services 2,319,427 447,777 281,262 1,871,650 166,515 

     Auxiliary 9,978,940 10,769,661 9,951,241 (790,721) 818,420 

Total Grants, Contracts & Auxiliary 47,512,926 31,675,724 33,540,305 15,837,202 (1,864,581) 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 131,450,877 108,601,114 109,415,489 22,849,763 (814,375) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES:

State Appropriations:

     Unrestricted 68,645,421 68,174,584 68,165,444 470,837 9,140 

     Restricted 22,960,553 18,570,680 15,216,986 4,389,873 3,353,694 

Total State Appropriations 91,605,974 86,745,264 83,382,430 4,860,710 3,362,834 

Local Property Taxes:

     M & O 161,157,699 152,465,955 150,689,019 8,691,744 1,776,936 

     Debt 46,849,119 46,902,232 46,321,795 (53,113) 580,437 

Total Local Property Taxes 208,006,818 199,368,187 197,010,814 8,638,631 2,357,373 

Title IV Grants 88,136,837 87,471,633 88,168,184 665,204 (696,551) 

Gifts and Other:

     Gifts 1,853,254 2,351,677 2,009,979 (498,423) 341,698 

     Other 9,956,228 10,115,531 7,454,326 (159,303) 2,661,205 

Total Gifts and Other 11,809,482 12,467,208 9,464,305 (657,726) 3,002,903 

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES 399,559,111 386,052,292 378,025,733 13,506,819 8,026,559 

TOTAL REVENUES 531,009,988$ 494,653,406$ 487,441,222$ 36,356,582$ 7,212,184$ 

Change
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Revenue by Source 
 

 
 
 
Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
Overall, operating revenues increased by $22.8 million or 21% in fiscal year 2020 as compared to fiscal year 2019 
(Exhibit 2).  Although the System experienced a decrease in enrollment, tuition and fees revenue increased 9.1% 
or $ 7 million due to higher tuition and fee rates. This tuition and fees rate increase was offset by an 8.7% increase 
in exemptions and waivers. Federal grants and contracts increased by $15.6 million due to the funds received by 
HCC under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) for the Higher Education 
Emergency Relief Fund (HEERF). Sales and services revenue increased by $1.9 million.  The increases in 
operating revenues are offset by decreases of $0.8 million in Auxiliary leasing revenue and $0.9 million in state 
grants. 
 
Non-operating revenues increased by $13.5 million or 3.5% over the previous year (Schedule C). Total state 
appropriations were higher in fiscal year 2020 by $4.9 million or 5.6% compared to fiscal year 2019 primarily in 
the restricted category.  Unrestricted state appropriations are determined for each biennium period based on funded 
contact hours (90%) reported during a base year period and a three year average of student success points (10%).  
Fiscal year 2020 was the first year in the current biennium period, so unrestricted state appropriations will be 
consistent with fiscal year 2021.  Restricted state appropriations include the 50% reimbursement of retirement and 
health care premiums for eligible HCC employees. This amount increased by $4.4 million over the prior year due 
to the 2% salary increase and slight premium increases.  In addition, for this biennium the 86th Legislature 
identified the HCC Regional Resiliency Operations Center (RROC) project as one serving the best interest of the 
state.  Accordingly, it appropriated $2.5 million to assist with the advancement of this project.  This unique facility 
addresses the immediate need for emergency preparedness and public safety training related to flood water and 
swift water rescue.  Property tax revenues also increased by $8.6 million over the prior year.  While the total tax 
rate remained the same as last year ($0.100263), total tax revenue increased due to increases in property valuations.  
In addition, as HCC’s debt service requirements decrease, more of the tax revenue can be utilized to cover costs 
such as salary increases.   
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Gifts and other non-operating revenues decreased over fiscal year 2019 primarily due to an overall decrease in 
returns on investments by $3.2 million in fiscal year 2020 due to a general decrease in interest rates. Weighted 
average interest rates decreased from 2.17% at August 31, 2019 to .70% at August 31, 2020. 
 
 
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
Overall, operating revenues decreased by $0.8 million or 0.7 % in fiscal year 2019 as compared to fiscal year 2018 
(Exhibit 2).  Although the System experienced a 2.8% decrease in enrollment, tuition and fees revenue increased 
1.4% or $ 1.1 million due to an increase in tuition and fees rates in Spring 2019. This increase was offset by a 
19.1% increase in exemptions and waivers. There was a decrease of 6.5% or $1 million in federal grants and 
contracts due to a reduction in Adult Education Federal Grant funding and a decrease of 27.4% or $2 million in 
state grants and contracts mainly due to a decrease in Texas Educational Opportunity Grants (TEOG) related to 
the decrease in enrollment. The decrease in operating revenues is offset by an increase of $0.8 million in Auxiliary 
leasing revenue. 
 
Non-operating revenues increased by $8 million or 2.1% over the previous year (Schedule C). Total state 
appropriations were higher in fiscal year 2019 by $3.4 million or 4% compared to fiscal year 2018 primarily in the 
restricted category.  Unrestricted state appropriations are determined for each biennium period based on funded 
contact hours (90%) reported during a base year period and a three year average of student success points (10%).  
Fiscal year 2019 was the second year in the current biennium period, so unrestricted state appropriations were 
consistent with fiscal year 2018.  Restricted state appropriations include the 50% reimbursement of retirement and 
health care premiums for eligible college employees. This amount increased by $3.4 million over the prior year 
due to the 2% salary increase,  slight premium increases  and an increase in the number of college employees 
deemed eligible for reimbursement.  Property tax revenues increased by $2.4 million over the prior year.  While 
the total tax rate remained the same as last year ($0.100263), total tax revenue increased due to increases in property 
valuations.  In addition, as HCC’s debt service requirements decrease, more of the tax revenue can be utilized to 
cover costs such as salary increases.  Gifts and other non-operating revenues increased $2.6 million over fiscal 
year 2018 primarily due to an overall increase in returns on investments related to higher interest rate earnings 
throughout the year of approximately .24 %.  The increases are offset by a $0.7 million decrease in Title IV grants 
related to the decrease in enrollment. 
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Expenses 
 
Total Operating Expenses increased by $12.3 million due largely to increases in Scholarships.  Scholarships 
increased $10.5 million due to funds received from the CARES Act and HEEFR for students affected by COVID-
19.  The $4.1 million increases in the functional area of institutional support can be largely attributed to the $4.6 
million increase in GASB No. 68 (Pension) expenses.  The increases are offset by an overall 2% reduction in 
expenses for FY 2020 implemented by the System.  
 
Operating Expenses are presented in two formats: Natural Classification and Functional Classification. The Natural 
Classification is intended to show “what” the dollars were spent on and the Functional Classification shows “who” 
spent the dollars.   
 
The schedules below provide a three-year historical record of the use of funds by natural and functional 
classification. A schedule of pension and OPEB expenses has been added to show the impact of GASB No. 68 
(Pension) and GASB No. 75 (OPEB) on total expenses for the three-year period.  The expenses reported include 
both restricted and unrestricted funds. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2020
% of 
Total 2019

% of 
Total 2018

% of 
Total 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019

Salaries & Benefits 282,078,340$ 60.7% 281,737,446$ 62.3% 259,642,773$ 61.0% 340,894$ 22,094,673$ 

Scholarships, Net of Discounts 70,043,436 15.1% 59,527,291 13.2% 62,863,907 14.8% 10,516,145 (3,336,616) 

Departmental Expenses 78,461,015 16.9% 77,276,539 17.1% 77,315,528 18.2% 1,184,476 (38,989) 

Depreciation 33,801,477 7.3% 33,535,408 7.4% 26,031,782 6.1% 266,069 7,503,626 

Total Operating Expenses 464,384,268$ 100% 452,076,684$ 100% 425,853,990$ 100% 12,307,584$ 26,222,694$ 

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification

Change
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2020
% of 
Total 2019

% of 
Total 2018

% of 
Total 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019

GASB 68 - Pension 11,367,226$ 37.2% 6,745,629$ 26.0% 1,350,865$ 40.6% 4,621,597$ 5,394,764$ 

GASB 75 - OPEB 19,203,830 62.8% 19,163,889 74.0% 1,977,968 59.4% 39,941 17,185,921 

Total Pension & OPEB Expenses 30,571,056$ 100% 25,909,518$ 100% 3,328,833$ 100% 4,661,538$ 22,580,685$ 

Pension and OPEB Expenses

Change
(Included in Salaries & Benefits)

2020
% of 
Total 2019

% of 
Total 2018

% of 
Total 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019

Instruction 148,406,567$      32.0% 147,989,245$      32.7% 137,284,602$       32.2% 417,322$          10,704,643$     

Public Service 8,143,057           1.8% 9,311,660           2.1% 10,193,891          2.4% (1,168,603)        (882,231)          

Academic Support 35,588,733          7.7% 35,805,979         7.9% 34,548,211          8.1% (217,246)           1,257,768         

Student Services 38,689,466          8.3% 37,882,929         8.4% 35,658,710          8.4% 806,537            2,224,219         

Institutional Support 90,478,900          19.5% 86,426,838         19.1% 77,856,244          18.3% 4,052,062         8,570,594         

Operation/Maint. of Plant 29,472,178          6.3% 31,324,884         6.9% 29,844,750          7.0% (1,852,706)        1,480,134         

Scholarship/Fellowship 70,043,436          15.1% 59,527,291         13.2% 62,863,907          14.8% 10,516,145        (3,336,616)        

Auxiliary Enterprises 9,760,454           2.1% 10,272,450         2.3% 11,571,893          2.7% (511,996)           (1,299,443)        

Depreciation 33,801,477          7.3% 33,535,408         7.4% 26,031,782          6.1% 266,069            7,503,626         

Total Operating Expense 464,384,268$      100% 452,076,684$      100% 425,853,990$       100% 12,307,584$      26,222,694$     

Operating Expenses by Functional Classification Change
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Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
Operating expenses by functional classification increased in fiscal year 2020 by $12.3 million due largely to 
increases in Scholarships.  Scholarships increased $10.5 million due to funds received from the CARES Act and 
HEEFR for students affected by COVID-19.  The $4.1 million increases in the functional area of institutional 
support can be attributed to the $4.6 million increase in GASB No. 68 Pension expense.  The increases are offset 
by decreases in public service and operations and maintenance of plant categories due to the transition to remote 
work related to COVID-19 and an overall 2% reduction in expenses for FY 2020 implemented by the System.     

 
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
Operating expenses by functional classification increased in fiscal year 2019 by $26.2 million or 6.2% compared 
to fiscal year 2018. The increases in most of the functional areas such as instruction, academic support, student 
services and institutional support can be attributed to salaries and benefits which are higher due to the increase in 
expenses recorded in fiscal year 2019 relative to fiscal year 2018 related to GASB 68 (Pension) and GASB 75  
(OPEB).  Operations and maintenance of plant has increased over fiscal year 2018 due to the new buildings that 
have been placed in service.  Depreciation increased due to the substantial completion of all but one of the 2013 
CIP program projects which are now operational and being depreciated.  Last year scholarship expenses were $3.3 
million higher than this fiscal year due to scholarships granted during fiscal year 2018 to students affected by 
Hurricane Harvey. 
 
 
The Foundation  
 
As required by the reporting entity criteria in GASB 61, HCC includes the Statements of Financial Position and 
Statements of Activities for the Foundation in its CAFR. For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2020, the 
Foundation’s total assets were $16.2 million, an amount that represents 1% of HCC’s total assets for the same 
period. For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2019, the Foundation’s total assets were $15.5 million, which 
represents 1% of HCC’s total assets for the same fiscal year. The income from the Foundation is partially used to 
fund scholarships and grants for the students of HCC. However, most of the Foundation’s net assets have donor 
restrictions and therefore not available for HCC’s direct use. The Foundation net assets with donor restrictions 
were $15.7 million and $14.7 million for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
 
 
Statements of Cash Flows 
 
The Statements of Cash Flows combine information from the Statements of Net Position and the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position to illustrate the effect of various actions of HCC on the 
availability and ultimate change in the amount of cash from one year to the next. The cash provided or used by 
operations, capital and non-capital financing, and investing activities combine to show the net change in cash and 
cash equivalents. The final portion of the Statements of Cash Flows reconciles the net income or loss from 
operations to the cash provided or used by operations. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Changes in net capital assets are the result of acquisitions, improvements, disposals and changes in accumulated 
depreciation.  In accordance with GASB Statements No. 34 and 35, the System does not record the cost of capital 
assets as an expense at the time of acquisition or completion of the asset, but rather shows the expense 
systematically over the expected life of the asset as depreciation expense. The amount shown in the accounting 
records for the value of the asset will decrease each year until the asset is fully depreciated or removed from service. 
As a result, the amount of capital assets shown in the Statements of Net Position may decrease from one year to 
another, even though new assets have been acquired during the year. Capital assets subject to depreciation include 
improvements to land (such as parking lots and signage), buildings and other real estate improvements, library 
books and furniture and equipment. Land is not depreciated. 
 
Capital Improvement Program  
 
As of the end of fiscal year 2020 all of the 2013 CIP projects were substantially complete. The projects were 
completed in different fiscal years starting from 2016 to 2020. In August 2019, the Board approved a new list of 
projects, collectively called the 2013 CIP 2.0 Program, that will be funded from residual savings from the 2013 
CIP program. Included below is a summary of the 2013 CIP 2.0 projects approved by the Board.  The West Houston 
Expansion with a budget of $55 million was approved by the Board in fiscal year 2019. The Regional Resiliency 
Operations Center (RROC) has a tentative budget of $24 million that will be approved by the Board in fiscal year 
2020. 
 
2013 CIP 2.0 Program 

 
 
West Houston Expansion – The System will relocate and increase the size of the Katy Campus to meet the needs 
of the far west Houston area, our current service area, and to expand our programs to meet the growing needs for 
science and workforce programs, such as nursing, at the most economical cost and value to our district. With the 
support of the HCC Board of Trustees, the community, and a unique partnership with the University of Houston, 
HCC will co‐locate its Katy Campus with the University of Houston to provide a seamless transfer program 
arrangement, accommodate additional instruction delivery and expand science facilities.  The new 130,000 square 
foot building is anticipated to cost $55 million including the land, design and construction. 
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Regional Resiliency Operations Center (RROC) – HCC continues to address sustainability and the long‐term 
needs of the community by expanding its training offerings. The System plans to increase the size of the Northeast 
campus first response and public service training programs to meet the expectations of our community, the Gulf 
coast, and our state. With the support of the HCC Board of Trustees, we will build a unique facility that provides 
controlled, yet realistic, training scenarios in flood, rising and swift‐water conditions. Our emergency responders 
are in need of a facility of this caliber and we are dedicated to providing it.   To this end, HCC requested exceptional 
item funding totaling $12 million via its Legislative Appropriations Request (LAR), submitted in August 2018 for 
the 2020-2021 biennium, to design, develop and construct the RROC at the Northeast Campus.  In consideration 
of the rationale behind this initiative, the 86th legislature appropriated $2.5 million for this project.  To continue 
completion of this extraordinary resource for Texas, HCC requested additional funding support of $2.3 million in 
the next biennium.  HCC will continue to solicit funding from interested parties including our surrounding 
community, local, state and federal agencies, private sector industry and the educational sector.  Depending on the 
final design and functionality, the estimated project cost is $24 million pending approval by Board of Trustees. 
 
 
Capital Assets, Net  
 

 

 
 
Fiscal Year 2020:  
 
Net capital assets decreased $18.4 million from fiscal year 2019 to fiscal year 2020. In fiscal year 2020 the 
remaining 2013 CIP projects were completed and transferred from Construction in Progress to Investment in Plant 
under their respective asset categories. The decrease is attributable to depreciation being more than the current year 
asset and CIP additions.  In fiscal year 2020 the West Houston Expansion Project is in the design stage and 
construction will begin in fiscal year 2021.  The Regional Resiliency Operations Center was approved by the Board 
of Trustees in 2019 and is currently in the design stage.  The cost estimate for the RROC is $24 million.  
 
Fiscal Year 2019:  
 
Net capital assets increased $4.4 million from fiscal year 2018 to fiscal year 2019. All but one (Central Campus 
Culinary Institute) of the 2013 CIP projects were substantially completed and moved from CIP to their respective 
asset categories and are now being depreciated. As a result, depreciation was more than the prior year offsetting 
some of the current year asset and CIP additions.  In fiscal year 2019, the Board approved $55 million for the West 
Houston Expansion Project and $12.5 million of that was used to purchase land for the new facility. 

 
See Footnote 6 of the financial statements for additional information regarding the capital asset activity. 
 

 
 
 
 

2020 2019 2018 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019

Capital Assets:

Land 147,090,804$    147,090,804$     134,932,685$    -$                  12,158,119$    

Construction in Progress 4,081,802           23,719,776          47,421,069         (19,637,974)    (23,701,293)     

Buildings 916,866,662       906,987,920       884,382,886       9,878,742        22,605,034      

Other Real Estate Improvements 83,374,096         88,871,038          91,969,910         (5,496,942)       (3,098,872)       

Library Books 3,206,843           3,068,980            3,149,404           137,863           (80,424)            
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles and Other 
Equipment 28,823,907         30,033,449          31,400,445         (1,209,542)       (1,366,996)       

Telecommunications and Peripheral Equipment 2,486,769           4,538,007            6,614,984           (2,051,238)       (2,076,977)       

Total Capital Assets, Net 1,185,930,883$ 1,204,309,974$  1,199,871,386$ (18,379,091)$  4,438,588$      

Change
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Outstanding Debt 
 

 
 
Fiscal Year 2020: 
 
There was a $54.8 million decrease in outstanding debt in fiscal year 2020 which was attributable to principal 
payments of $40.4 million, premium amortization of $5.7 million, new borrowings of $94.6 million and principal 
reductions of $103.3 million due to refundings of bonds. 
     
  
Fiscal Year 2019: 
 
There was a $36.2 million decrease in outstanding debt in fiscal year 2019 attributable to principal payments of 
$37.5 million, premium amortization of $7.3 million, and principal reductions of $4.2 million due to refunding of 
bonds.  These decreases were offset by new borrowings of $12.8 million for land related to the West Houston 
Expansion project.   
 
See footnotes 7 through 11 of the financial statements for additional information regarding outstanding debt 
activity.       
 
 
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 
 
Houston’s Economic Outlook 
 
While most indications are that Houston’s economy will experience continued growth at a slow to moderate pace, 
there are national and regional indicators that a recession is in progress.  While we can’t predict the future of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, any change in the economy will likely have some impact on the System.  Typically in 
periods of growth, property values rise and enrollment can decline if workers are in high demand.  In periods of 
recession, property values rise at a much slower pace or decline and enrollment can increase as the unemployment 
rate rises and unemployed workers go back to school to increase their skills and opportunities. 
 
Ad Valorem Taxes 
 
The total ad valorem tax rate for calendar year 2020 (fiscal year 2021) remains the same as calendar year 2019 
(fiscal year 2020) at $0.100263.  The debt service tax rate of $0.021058 per $100 of assessed valuation is lower 
than last year’s rate of $0.022431 since the principal and interest payments for fiscal year 2021 are lower than the 
amounts due in fiscal year 2020.  In contrast, the maintenance and operations (M & O) tax rate for fiscal year 2021 
($0.079205 per $100 of assessed valuation) is slightly higher than the fiscal year 2020 M & O rate ($0.077832) to 
fund increases in operating expenses.  The certified taxable values for calendar 2020 (fiscal year 2021) are 6.1% 
higher than the prior year contributing to an increase in estimated total tax revenues of $12.9 million. 
 

2020 2019 2018 2019 to 2020 2018 to 2019
Outstanding Debt:
  Notes Payable 48,723,801$    96,027,514$    101,637,261$  (47,303,713)$       (5,609,747)$     
  Tax-Exempt Note Purchase Agreement 13,098,857      12,804,100      -                         294,757                 12,804,100      
  Revenue Bonds 167,543,208    191,380,394    217,121,333    (23,837,185)          (25,740,939)     
  General Obligation Bonds 478,975,884    497,085,140    511,685,732    (18,109,256)          (14,600,592)     
  Maintenance Tax Bonds 64,900,036      30,747,737      33,873,578      34,152,298           (3,125,840)       
    Total Outstanding Debt 773,241,786$  828,044,885$  864,317,903$  (54,803,099)$       (36,273,018)$  

Change
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Tuition and Fees 
 
The Board approved additional tuition and fee increases effective in the Fall 2019. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic 
distance education fees were waived for the Summer 2020 term. HCC’s in-district rates remain the lowest among 
our local peers, and our out-of-district/state rates are very competitive. One of the Board of Trustees’ priorities is 
to keep education affordable for HCC’s students. 
 
 
Financial Reserves  
 
In June 2018, the Board of Trustees revised the financial reserves policy to establish 180 days (+/-5%) of operating 
expenditures as the minimum level for the System’s Annual Days Cash on Hand.  The revised policy provides for 
six months of reserves for unforeseen circumstances.  HCC’s Days Cash on Hand was $233.2 million and $210.7 
million at August 31, 2020 and 2019 with 264 and 234 days, respectively. 
 
Given the excess Days Cash on Hand at August 31, 2018, the Board of Trustees approved using $8 million of these 
excess reserves to fund deferred maintenance in fiscal year 2020.  The fiscal year 2020 approved operating budget 
included an additional $3 million for a total commitment of $11 million of funding for priority projects identified 
in the facility conditions assessment completed during fiscal year 2019. 
 
 
Opportunities 
 
HCC’s strong financial position, prudent debt reduction strategies and excess Days Cash on Hand financial reserves 
policy will allow the Board of Trustees and the administration to continue to address funding of its deferred 
maintenance and GASB liabilities in the fiscal year 2021 – 2023 integrated budget and planning development 
process, which began in October 2020. 
 
 
HCC’s outlook for the foreseeable future continues to be positive as a result of its strategic leadership, fiscal 
management and stable local economy. 
 
 
 
CONTACTING THE SYSTEM’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT  
 
This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, students, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the System’s finances and to demonstrate the System’s accountability for the money it receives.  If 
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact the Senior Vice 
Chancellor of Finance and Administration’s office at 3100 Main, Houston, Texas 77002.  Additional information 
can also be found on HCC’s Financial Transparency page at the following link: http://www.hccs.edu/about-
hcc/transparency/.   
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

AUGUST 31, 2020 AND 2019 
Exhibit 1 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.  

ASSETS
2020 2019

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 4) 152,915,467$           94,740,550$           
Accounts Receivable and Other Receivable, Net (Note 5) 19,504,824              26,230,494             
Prepaid Charges 15,972,337              9,779,544               
Restricted Short - Investments (Note 4) 2,624,476                2,622,649               
Other Short - Term Investments (Note 4) 80,310,469              114,496,727           

     Total Current Assets 271,327,573             247,869,964             

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 4) 31,690,065              41,500,420             
Other Long - Term Investments (Note 4) -                         1,499,254               
Restricted Long - Term Investments (Note 4) 27,291                    37,925                     
Capital Assets Net, (Note 6) 1,185,930,883          1,204,309,974           

     Total Noncurrent Assets 1,217,648,239          1,247,347,573           

TOTAL ASSETS 1,488,975,812          1,495,217,537           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Advance Funding Valuation 6,598,004                7,310,083                 
  OPEB 96,603,510              106,771,070             
  Pension 37,571,124              45,154,241               
     Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 140,772,638             159,235,394             

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable (Note 5) 6,415,411              12,632,897             
Accrued Liabilities 11,690,345            12,437,192             
Compensated Absences (Note 16) 5,060,464              3,713,263               
Funds Held for Others 826,119                833,963                 
Unearned Revenues 31,447,590            45,482,734             

    Net OPEB Liability - Current Portion (Note 7 and 21) 5,793,110              2,405,639               
Notes Payable - Current Portion (Note 7 and 11) 3,552,569              7,510,687               
Bonds Payable - Current Portion (Note 7 and 8) 39,490,000            32,810,000             

     Total Current Liabilities 104,275,608             117,826,375             

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
    Net OPEB Liability (Note 7 and 21) 176,987,192          161,134,022           

Net Pension  Liability  (Note 7 and 14) 90,173,836            107,909,379           
Notes Payable (Note 7 and 11) 58,270,088            101,320,927           
Bonds Payable (Note 7 and 8) 671,929,128          686,403,271           

     Total Non-current Liabilities 997,360,244             1,056,767,599           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,101,635,852          1,174,593,974           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
  Advance Funding Valuation 10,279,649              3,298,763                 
  OPEB 53,088,135              63,300,384               
  Pension 33,098,931              20,235,389               
     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 96,466,715              86,834,536               

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 417,973,160             383,077,877             
Restricted for 
     Expendable
            Loans 962,043                   393,380                   
            Debt Service 12,867,034              12,647,475               
Unrestricted (156,354)                 (3,094,311)                

TOTAL NET POSITION 431,645,883$           393,024,421$            
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 AND 2019 
Exhibit 2 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.  

2020 2019
OPERATING REVENUES:
  Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts 83,937,951$   76,925,390$   
  Federal Grants and Contracts 29,265,821     13,664,066     
  State Grants and Contracts 4,386,846       5,257,785       
  Local Grants and Contracts 172,245         88,039           
  Non-Governmental Grants and Contracts 1,389,647       1,448,396       
  Sales and Services of Educational Activities 2,319,427       447,777         
  Auxiliary Enterprises 9,978,940       10,769,661     
     Total Operating Revenues (Schedule A) 131,450,877   108,601,114   

  Instruction 148,406,567   147,989,245   
  Public Service 8,143,057       9,311,660       
  Academic Support 35,588,733     35,805,979     
  Student Services 38,689,466     37,882,929     
  Institutional Support 90,478,900     86,426,838     
  Operations and Maintenance 29,472,178     31,324,884     
  Scholarships and Fellowships 70,043,436     59,527,291     
  Auxiliary Enterprises 9,760,454       10,272,450     
  Depreciation 33,801,477     33,535,408     
     Total Operating Expenses (Schedule B) 464,384,268   452,076,684   
OPERATING LOSS (332,933,391)  (343,475,570)  

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
  State Appropriations 91,605,974     86,745,264     
  Maintenance Ad Valorem Taxes 161,157,699   152,465,955   
  Debt Service Ad Valorem Taxes 46,849,119     46,902,232     
  Gifts 1,853,254       2,351,677       
  Investment Income, Net 3,961,565       7,155,919       
  Interest on Capital Related Debt (28,456,822)    (28,956,205)    
  Title IV Grants 88,136,837     87,471,633     
  Hurricane Harvey -                148,521         
  Other Non-operating Revenues 5,994,663       2,811,091       
  Other Non-operating Expenses (9,847,436)     (10,718,448)    
     Net Non-operating Revenues (Schedule C) 361,254,853   346,377,639   
Increase In Net Position 28,321,462     2,902,069       
Net Position, Beginning of Year 393,024,421   390,122,352   
Cumulative effect for TRS credit adjustments 10,300,000     -                
Net Position, Beginning of the Year, Restated 403,324,421   -                
Net Position, End of Year 431,645,883$ 393,024,421$ 

OPERATING EXPENSES:
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 AND 2019 
Exhibit 3 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Students and Other Customers 86,508,474$      92,051,044$      
Receipts from Grants and Contracts 34,846,342 21,723,040
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (76,678,459) (76,204,689)
Payments to or On Behalf of Employees (262,773,740) (257,260,961)
Payments for Scholarships and Fellowships (68,002,644) (59,737,797)
Receipts for Sales and Services 3,123,846 -                  
Other Operating Revenue 593,860 1,533,606

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (282,382,321) (277,895,757)     

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Ad Valorem Taxes 207,043,101 198,327,778      
Receipts from State Allocations 91,605,974 86,745,264        
Receipts from Private Gifts 1,853,254 2,351,674         
Payment of Taxes -                  (226,150)           
Received Federal Direct Student Loans (SA: Federal Note 4) 67,552,413 74,170,077        
Disbursement of Federal Direct Student Loans (SA: Federal Note 4) (67,552,413) (74,170,077)      
Receipts from Title IV 88,136,837 87,471,633        
Receipts from Harvey Relief -                  81,304              

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital Financing Activities 388,639,166 374,751,503

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from the Issuance of Capital Debt 94,550,138        44,995,127        
Bond Issue Cost Paid on New Capital Debt Issue (567,566)           (496,269)           
Purchase of Capital Assets (15,299,221)      (39,345,581)      
Payments of Capital Related Expenses (6,331,356)        (6,318,308)        
Payments on Capital Debt and Leases - Principal (135,400,687)     (72,135,951)      
Payments on Capital Debt and Leases - Interest and Fees (34,499,477)      (36,570,321)      

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (97,548,169) (109,871,303)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 140,876,084      96,946,252        
Interest on Investments 3,961,565         7,155,919         
Purchase of Investments (105,181,763)     (83,983,068)      

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 39,655,886 20,119,103

INCREASE(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 48,364,562 7,103,546
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEG OF YEAR (EXHIBIT 1) 136,240,970 129,137,424

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR (EXHIBIT 1) 184,605,532$    136,240,970$    
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 AND 2019 
Exhibit 3 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2020 2019
Operating loss (332,933,391)$   (343,475,570)$   

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense 33,801,477 33,535,408        
Bad Debt Expense 819,139            833,561            
OPEB Expense 33,028,573        33,839,898        
Pension Expense 5,845,079 11,875,068        

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts and Other Receivables 7,182,905 3,540,293         
Prepaid Charges 4,107,205 (251,938)           
Accounts Payables and Accruals (5,006,782) (877,305)           

  Deferred Outflows (21,122,973) (180,922,453)     
  Deferred Inflows 2,651,293 48,706,191        

Unearned Revenues (13,599,301) 3,036,371         
Compensated Absences 1,347,201 (82,841)            
Net Pension Liability (17,735,543) 33,619,196        
Net OPEB Liability 19,240,641 78,783,815        
Funds Held for Others (7,844) (55,451)            

Total Adjustments 50,551,070 65,579,813

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (282,382,321)$   (277,895,757)$   

Schedule of non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Payments Made Directly by State for Benefits 22,952,728$      18,562,857$      
Increase (decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 118,700 129,080            
Amortization of Premium on Bonds 5,680,564 7,346,924         
Amortization of Deferred Charges on Bonds Refunding 712,079 971,437            

Net Non-cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities 29,464,071$      27,010,298$      
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY 
 
Houston Community College System (HCC or the System) was established on May 18, 1971, in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Texas, and serves the educational needs of its service area as outlined in Chapter 130 of 
the Texas Education Code.  The service area includes the Houston Independent School District, Alief Independent 
School District, Katy Independent School District, Spring Branch Independent School District, Stafford 
Municipal School District, and the portions of Fort Bend Independent School District located in the cities of 
Houston, Pearland and Missouri City.  Those portions of the service area located in the Katy and Spring Branch 
Independent School Districts lie outside of the taxing authority of HCC.  The System is a comprehensive public 
two-year institution offering academic, general, occupational, development, and continuing adult education 
programs through a network of locations. 
 
HCC is considered to be a special purpose, primary government involved in business-type activities as defined 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  While the System receives funding from local, state and 
federal sources, and must comply with the spending, reporting, and record keeping requirements of these entities, 
it is not a component unit of any other governmental entity. 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) provides guidance in determining whether certain 
organizations related to the System should be reported as component units based on the nature and significance 
of their relationship with the primary government.  Using the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 61, The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, and GASB 
Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units – An Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 14, the System’s management has determined that the Houston Community College Foundation 
(the Foundation)  and the Houston Community College System Public Facility Corporation (PFC) should be 
reported as component units of the System using a discrete and blended presentation, respectively.  Note 23 to 
the financial statements describes the Foundation and PFC and their financial statement presentation in more 
detail. 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
Reporting Guidelines 
 
The significant accounting policies followed by the System in preparing these financial statements are in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by GASB.  
The accompanying financial statements are also in accordance with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating 
Board’s (THECB) Annual Financial Reporting Requirements for Texas Public Community and Junior Colleges. 
 

Basis of Accounting 
 
HCC’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting whereby all revenues are 
recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded when they have been reduced to a legal or contractual 
obligation to pay. 
 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditures of 
funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of 
formal budgetary integration.  Under Texas law, appropriations lapse at August 31 of each year and encumbrances 
outstanding at that time are to be either canceled or appropriately provided for in the subsequent year’s budget. 
 
Tuition Discounting  
 
Texas Public Education Grants - Certain tuition amounts are required to be set aside for use as scholarships by 
qualifying students.  This set-aside, called the Texas Public Education Grant (TPEG), is shown with tuition and 
fee revenue amounts as a separate set-aside amount (Texas Education Code §56.033). When the award is used  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 
 
by the student for tuition and fees, the amount is recorded as tuition discount. If the amount is dispersed directly 
to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense 
 
Title IV, Higher Education Act (HEA) Program Funds - Certain Title IV Higher Education Act Program funds 
are received by the System to pass-through to the student.  These funds are initially received by the System and 
recorded as grant revenue. When the award is used by the student for tuition and fees, the amount is recorded as 
tuition discount. If the amount is dispersed directly to the student, the amount is recorded as a scholarship expense. 
 
Other Tuition Discounts - Student tuition and fees revenue are reported net of scholarship discounts in the 
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  The scholarship discount is the 
difference between the actual amount for tuition and fees charged by the System and the amount that is paid by 
students or by third parties on the students’ behalves. Student financial assistance grants, such as Pell Grants, and 
other federal, state or non-governmental programs, are recorded as either operating or non-operating revenues in 
the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  To the extent that revenues 
from these programs are used to satisfy tuition, fees, and other charges, the System has recorded a scholarship 
discount. Schedule A provides a detail of tuition discounts 
 
Budgetary Data 
 
Each community college district in Texas is required by law to prepare an annual operating budget of anticipated 
revenues and expenditures for each fiscal year beginning September 1.  The System’s Board of Trustees adopts 
the budget, which is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  A copy of the approved budget must be filed 
with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, Legislative Budget Board, Legislative Reference Library, 
and Governor’s Office of Budget and Planning by December 1 of the respective year. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits with original maturities of 
three months or less from the date of acquisition.  The System has classified public funds investment pools 
comprised of Lone Star Investment Pool (Lone Star) and Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool) to 
be cash equivalents. 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until 
then. Governments are permitted only to report deferred outflows of resources in circumstances specifically 
authorized by the GASB. HCC has deferred charges for other post-employment benefits (OPEB), pension, and 
advanced funding valuation. 

 
Investments  
 
Investments are reported at fair value.  Fair values are based on published market rates.  Short-term investments 
have an original maturity greater than three months but less than one year at the time of purchase.  Long-term 
investments have an original maturity of greater than one year at the time of purchase. Investment funds related 
to bond issues set aside for construction of capital assets are classified as restricted investments. 
 
Prepaid Charges 
 
Expenses and costs paid in advance which pertain to the subsequent fiscal year(s), such as scholarships disbursed 
to students before August 31 for fall semester classes are accounted for as prepaid charges. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of donation.  The System reports 
depreciation under a single line-item, as would be done by an entity reporting as a business-type unit.  
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets and is not 
allocated to the functional expenditure categories.  The threshold for capitalization of assets is $5,000. 
Renovations of $100,000 to buildings and infrastructure and land improvements that significantly increase the 
value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that 
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are charged to operating expense in the year 
in which the expense is incurred.  The following estimated useful lives are used for depreciable assets: 
 
 Buildings 50 years 
 Facilities and Other Improvements 20 years 
 Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles and Other Equipment 5-10 years 
 Telecommunications and Peripheral Equipment 5 years 
 Library Books 15 years 
 Leasehold Improvements Lease term 
 
OPEB (Other Post - Employment Benefits) 
 
The System participates in the Employer Retirement System of Texas (ERS) OPEB plan, a multiple-employer 
cost-sharing-defined benefit OPEB plan with a special funding situation. The fiduciary net position of ERS has 
been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. 
This includes, for purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB, OPEB expense, and information about assets, liabilities and additions 
to/deductions from ERS’s fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.  
 
Pension 
 
The System participates in the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS) pension plan, a multiple-employer 
cost-sharing-defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation. The fiduciary net position of TRS has 
been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. 
This includes, for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, and information about assets, liabilities and additions 
to/deductions from TRS’s fiduciary net position. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.  
 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and so is not recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
Governments are permitted only to report deferred inflows of resources in circumstances specifically authorized 
by the GASB.  The System has deferred inflows of resources for other post-employment benefits (OPEB), pension 
and advanced funding valuation. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED  
 
Unearned Revenues 
 
Tuition, fees, and other revenues received and or billed during the current fiscal year, but related to the period 
after August 31 of any one year have been reported as unearned revenues. Also reported as unearned revenues 
are public education grant revenues that must be matched to certain scholarship disbursements reported as prepaid 
charges. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The System is exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 115, Income of States, 
Municipalities, Etc., although unrelated business income may be subject to income taxes under Internal Revenue 
Code Section 511(a)(2)(B), Imposition of Tax on Unrelated Business Income of Charitable Organizations, etc.  
HCC has minimal unrelated business income tax liability for the years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019. 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts 
and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates that have the most 
impact on financial position and results of operations primarily relate to the collectability of tuition and taxes 
receivable, the useful lives of property and equipment, certain accrued liabilities, and the allocation of expenses 
among functional areas.  Management believes these estimates and assumptions provide a reasonable basis for 
the fair presentation of the financial statements. 
 
Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
The System presents its revenues and expenses as operating or non-operating based on recognition definitions 
promulgated by GASB.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection 
with the System’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are tuition and related fees and 
contracts and grants. The major non-operating revenues are allocations from the State, ad valorem taxes and Title 
IV financial aid funds. Ad valorem taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. The 
bookstore and vending machine operations are owned and managed by third parties.  
 
Adoption of New Accounting Standards 
 
Effective with fiscal year 2020, the System implemented GASB Statement No. 95 Postponement of the Effective 
Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief 
to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished by 
postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first became 
effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and later. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

44 
 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED 
 
The GASB’s statement listed below were reviewed, but found not to be applicable to the System at this time. 
 
  GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. 
  

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 
61.  

  
 GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 
  
Effective with fiscal year 2019, the System implemented the following: 
 

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements 
 

Pending Pronouncements 
 
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  The objective of this Statement is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by 
governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring 
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and 
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 
 
In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The objective of this 
Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the 
replacement of an IBOR. The requirements of this Statement will enhance comparability in the application of 
accounting and financial reporting requirements and will improve the consistency of authoritative literature. More 
comparable reporting will improve the usefulness of information for users of state and local government financial 
statements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 
 
In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans- An amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The primary objectives of this 
Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units 
in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary 
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated 
with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment 
benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee 
benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, 
consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code  
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(IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and 
for benefits provided through those plans. The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting 
and financial reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. 
 
Prior Year Reclassifications 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year reported amounts to conform to the current year 
presentation. 
 
NOTE 3 - AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 
 

The System is authorized to invest in obligations and instruments as defined in the Public Funds Investment Act 
(PFIA) (Sec. 2256.001 Texas Government Code).  Such investments include (1) obligations of the United States 
or its agencies, (2) direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, (3) obligations of political subdivisions 
rated not less than “A” by a national investment rating firm, (4) certificates of deposit, and (5) other instruments 
and obligations authorized by statute. 
 
NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The carrying amount (book balance) of the System demand deposits with financial institutions as of August 31, 
2020 and 2019 was $15,701,727 and $7,877,568 and bank balances (physical assets) equaled $19,219,283 and 
$11,226,494, respectively. Of the bank balance for fiscal year 2019, $750,000 is covered by FDIC and 
$18,469,283 was covered by collateral pledged in the System’s name. For fiscal year 2019, $750,000 was covered 
by FDIC and $10,476,494 was covered by collateral pledged in the System’s name. For both fiscal years, the 
collateral was held in an account of an independent third party agent. 
 
Cash and deposits included on Exhibit 1, Statements of Net Position, consist of the items reported below: 
 
 

2020 2019

Demand Deposits 15,701,727$          7,877,568$             

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Petty Cash on Hand 54,951                   54,868                    

Cash at Bank 634,426                 2,228,156               

Money Market Funds 12,340,915            19,776,558             

TexPool 111,363,920          76,360,750             

Lone Star 44,509,593            29,943,070             

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 168,903,805          128,363,402           

Total Cash and Deposits 184,605,532          136,240,970           

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (31,690,065)          (41,500,420)           

Cash and Cash Equivalents  ( Exhibit 1) 152,915,467$        94,740,550$           
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NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED 

 
Items consisting of cash and investments included on Exhibit 1, Statements of Net Position, consist of the items 
reported below: 
 

 

 
 

As of August 31, 2020 HCC had the following investments and maturities:  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Weighted Average
Investment Type Amount Maturity (Years)

Fannie Mae ARM pool 27,291$          13.49                        
U.S. Government Securities - Treasuries 62,883,375     0.29                          
U.S. Government Securities - Agencies 20,051,570     0.19                          
Investment Pools 155,873,513    -                           
Cash and Money Market Funds 28,732,019     -                           
Total Fair Value 267,567,768$  

Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.09                          
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with state law and the System’s investment policy, the System does not 
purchase any investments with maturities greater than ten years. The System manages its exposure to declines in 
fair value by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to two years or less. The System's 
intention is to hold all investments to their maturity. 
 
Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk - In accordance with state law and the System’s investment policy, 
investments in mutual funds and investment pools must be rated at least “AAA”, commercial paper must be rated 
at least “A-1” or “P-1”, and investments in obligations from other states, municipalities, counties, etc. must be 
rated at least “A”. The System limits the amount it may invest in any one issuer to no more than 50 % of its total 
investment portfolio. Currently, the United States has an AA+ credit rating as graded by Standard and Poor’s. 
 
Commercial Paper, US Agency, Treasury Notes and bonds classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are 
valued using a matrix pricing technique.  Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities 
relationship to benchmark quoted prices. 
 
The credit quality (ratings) and concentration of credit exposure of securities in excess of 5% of total investments 
as of August 31, 2020 is as follows: 

 
 

The Texas State Comptroller of Public Accounts (the Comptroller) exercises oversight responsibility over the 
TexPool. Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence operations, and designate management and 
accountability for fiscal matters.  Additionally, the Comptroller has established an advisory board (the Advisory 
Board) composed of both participants in TexPool and other persons who do not have a business relationship with 
TexPool.  The Advisory Board members review the investment policy and management fee structure.  TexPool 
is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. As a requirement to maintain the rating, weekly portfolio information is 
submitted to both Standard & Poor’s and the Comptroller for review. 
 
TexPool uses amortized cost rather than market value to report net assets to compute share prices.  Accordingly, 
the fair value of the position in TexPool is the same value as the value in TexPool shares. 
 
Lone Star is a public funds investment pool established in accordance with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 
Chapter 791, Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 225, Texas Government 
Code. Lone Star is governed by trustees comprised of active participants in Lone Star.  The board of trustees for 
Lone Star has the responsibility for adopting and monitoring compliance with the investment policy, of appointing 
investment officers, of overseeing the selection of an investment advisor, custodian, investment consultant, 
administrator and other service providers. Lone Star uses amortized cost rather than market value to report net 
assets to compute share prices. Accordingly, the fair value of the position in Lone Star is the same as the value in 
Lone Star shares. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Credit Credit 
Rating Exposure

FHLB (Federal Home Loan Bank) AAA 6%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED 
 
Fair Value Investments 
 
HCC categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of 
the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs. Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  
 
Bank of America, as custodian of HCC’s securities, obtains market quotes on a daily basis from Interactive Data 
Corporation, and reports them to HCC via Bank of America’s web site. Interactive Data Corporation evaluates 
U.S. Treasury securities by obtaining feeds from a number of live data sources including active market makers 
and inter-dealer brokers. Sources are reviewed on the basis of their historical accuracy for individual issues and 
maturity ranges. Evaluations are marked at 15:00 and 16:00 (ET).  
 
As required by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, the following table presents 
the financial instruments carried on the statements of financial position by caption and by level of inputs within 
the valuation hierarchy as of August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 FY 2020

Fannie Mae ARM Pool -$              27,291$          -$              27,291$             

U.S. Government Securities - Treasuries -                62,883,375     -                62,883,375         

U.S. Government Securities - Agency -                20,051,570     -                20,051,570         

Total * -$              82,962,236$    -$              82,962,236$       

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 FY 2019

Fannie Mae ARM Pool -$              37,925$          -$              37,925$             

U.S. Government Securities - Treasuries -                38,571,816     -                38,571,816         

U.S. Government Securities - Agency -                80,046,814     -                80,046,814         

Total * -$              118,656,555$  -$              118,656,555$     

*This amount excludes investments in local government pools which are recorded at amortized cost. These excluded investments
total $155,873,513 and $106,303,820 as of August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019, respectively.

Assets at fair value as of August 31, 2019

Assets at fair value as of August 31, 2020
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NOTE 5 - DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES BALANCES  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Receivables at August 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
2020 2019

     Accounts Receivable 4,124,865$             2,141,512$             
     Grants Receivable 
          Federal Grants 3,307,102               2,370,389               
          State Grants 278,623                  247,050                  
          Local Grants 724                         91,305                    
          Private Grants 43,057                    150,086                  
     Other Receivables 1,313,769               1,441,909               
     Student Receivables 26,513,401             34,738,645             
     Taxes Receivable  8,839,861               7,334,175               
          Total Receivables 44,421,402             48,515,071             

     Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
     Accounts Receivable (154,866)                 (154,866)                 
     Student Receivables (19,679,258)            (17,832,389)            
     Taxes Receivable  (5,082,454)              (4,297,323)              

          Total Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (24,916,578)            (22,284,577)            

     Total Receivables, Net of Allowances 19,504,824$           26,230,494$           

Payables at August 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

2020 2019
     Vendor Payables 837,188$                2,299,339$             
     Salaries & Benefits Payable (1,302,807)              2,646,864               
     Student Payables 5,252,611               3,623,112               
     Retainage Payable 24,835                    2,370,302               
     Other Payables 1,603,584               1,693,280               

     Total Accounts Payables 6,415,411$             12,632,897$           
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2020 was as follows: 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 Balance Decreases/  Balance
 August 31, 2019  Increases  Transfers  August 31, 2020  

            Not depreciated:
Land $ 147,090,804               $ -                               $ -                                $ 147,090,804             
Construction in Process 23,719,776                 12,012,262              31,650,236               4,081,802                 

            Subtotal 170,810,580               12,012,262              31,650,236               151,172,606             

            Other capital assets:
Buildings 1,052,478,508            32,409,904              3,598,838                 1,081,289,574          
Other Real Estate Improvements 130,841,345               271,586                   -                                131,112,931             

            Subtotal 1,183,319,853            32,681,490              3,598,838                 1,212,402,505          

Library Books 18,971,690                 489,376                   45,366                      19,415,700               
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles
and Other Equipment 108,822,365               6,289,049                800,717                    114,310,697             
Telecommunications and 
Peripheral Equipment 41,542,342                 -                               -                                41,542,342               

            Subtotal 1,352,656,250            39,459,915              4,444,921                 1,387,671,244          

Total Capital Assets 1,523,466,830            51,472,177              36,095,157               1,538,843,850          

            Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 145,490,588               18,932,324              -                                164,422,912             
Other Real Estate Improvements 41,970,307                 5,768,528                -                                47,738,835               

            Subtotal 187,460,895               24,700,852              -                                212,161,747             

Library Books 15,902,710                 351,513                   45,366                      16,208,857               
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles
and Other Equipment 78,788,916                 6,697,874                -                                85,486,790               
Telecommunications and 
Peripheral Equipment 37,004,335                 2,051,238                -                                39,055,573               

Total Accumulated Depeciation 319,156,856               33,801,477              45,366                      352,912,967             

            Net Depreciable Capital Assets 1,033,499,395            5,658,438                4,399,555                 1,034,758,277          

            Net Capital Assets $ 1,204,309,974            $ 17,670,700              $ 36,049,791               $ 1,185,930,883          
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS – CONTINUED 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2019 was as follows: 
 
 

 

 Balance Decreases/  Balance
 August 31, 2018 Increases  Transfers  August 31, 2019 

            Not depreciated:
Land $ 134,932,685               $ 12,158,119              $ -                                $ 147,090,804             
Construction in Process 47,421,069                 19,355,146              43,056,439               23,719,776               

            Subtotal 182,353,754               31,513,265              43,056,439               170,810,580             

            Other capital assets:
Buildings 1,011,664,193            41,256,929              442,614                    1,052,478,508          
Other Real Estate Improvements 128,281,619               2,559,726                -                                130,841,345             

            Subtotal 1,139,945,812            43,816,655              442,614                    1,183,319,853          

Library Books 18,793,805                 286,898                   109,013                    18,971,690               
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles
and Other Equipment 102,969,617               6,321,565                468,817                    108,822,365             
Telecommunications and 
Peripheral Equipment 41,542,342                 -                               -                                41,542,342               

            Subtotal 1,303,251,576            50,425,118              1,020,444                 1,352,656,250          

Total Capital Assets 1,485,605,330            81,938,383              44,076,883               1,523,466,830          

            Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 127,281,307               18,209,281              -                                145,490,588             
Other Real Estate Improvements 36,311,709                 5,658,598                -                                41,970,307               

            Subtotal 163,593,016               23,867,879              -                                187,460,895             

Library Books 15,644,401                 367,322                   109,013                    15,902,710               
Furniture, Machinery, Vehicles
and Other Equipment 71,569,171                 7,223,228                3,483                        78,788,916               
Telecommunications and 
Peripheral Equipment 34,927,356                 2,076,979                -                                37,004,335               

Total Accumulated Depeciation 285,733,944               33,535,408              112,496                    319,156,856             

            Net Depreciable Capital Assets 1,017,517,632            16,889,710              907,948                    1,033,499,395          

            Net Capital Assets $ 1,199,871,386            $ 48,402,975              $ 43,964,387               $ 1,204,309,974          
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NOTE 7 - NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Non-current liabilities activity for the years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019 was as follows:  
 

 

Balance as of Balance as of Current Noncurrent
September 1, 2019 Additions Reductions August 31, 2020 Portion Portion

Long-Term Notes Payable 96,027,514$          (47,303,713)$   48,723,801$       3,552,569$   45,171,232$      
Tax-Exempt Note Purchase Agreement 12,804,100            294,757           -                       13,098,857         -                    13,098,857        

108,831,614          294,757           (47,303,713)     61,822,658         3,552,569     58,270,089        

Bonds:
Revenue Bonds 191,380,394          16,208,792      (40,045,978)     167,543,208       20,470,000   147,073,208      
General Obligation Bonds 497,085,140          40,481,227      (58,590,483)     478,975,884       12,685,000   466,290,884      
Maintenance Tax Bonds 30,747,737            37,565,362      (3,413,063)       64,900,036         6,335,000     58,565,036        

    Total Bonds 719,213,271          94,255,381      (102,049,524)   711,419,128       39,490,000   671,929,128      

Net Pension Liability 107,909,379          (17,735,543)     90,173,836         -                    90,173,836        
Net OPEB Liability 163,539,661          19,240,641      182,780,302       5,793,110     176,987,192      

Total Non-current Liabilities 1,099,493,925$     113,790,779$  (167,088,780)$ 1,046,195,924$  48,835,679$ 997,360,245$    

Balance as of Balance as of Current Noncurrent
September 1, 2018 Additions Reductions August 31, 2019 Portion Portion

Long-Term Notes Payable 101,637,261$        1,896,775$      (7,506,522)$     96,027,514$       7,510,687$   88,516,827$      
Tax-Exempt Note Purchase Agreement -                            12,804,100      -                       12,804,100         -                    12,804,100        

101,637,261          14,700,875      (7,506,522)       108,831,614       7,510,687     101,320,927      

Bonds:
Revenue Bonds 217,121,333          30,368,397      (56,109,336)     191,380,394       19,100,000   172,280,394      
General Obligation Bonds 511,685,732          -                      (14,600,592)     497,085,140       11,310,000   485,775,140      
Maintenance Tax Bonds 33,873,578            -                      (3,125,840)       30,747,737         2,400,000     28,347,737        
    Total Bonds 762,680,643          30,368,397      (73,835,768)     719,213,271       32,810,000   686,403,271      

Net Pension Liability 74,290,183            33,619,196      107,909,379       -                    107,909,379      
Net OPEB Liability 84,755,846            78,783,815      -                       163,539,661       2,405,639     161,134,022      

-                       
Total Non-current Liabilities 1,023,363,933$     157,472,283$  (81,342,291)$   1,099,493,925$  42,726,326$ 1,056,767,599$ 
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NOTE 8 - BONDS PAYABLE 
 

Student Fee Revenue Bonds: 
 

The System issued several Student Fee Revenue Bonds as Senior Lien Bonds or Junior Lien Bonds during the fiscal years 
2006 through 2020 with interest rates ranging from .31% to 5.25% and maturities ranging from 2007 through 2031. Debt 
service requirements are payable solely from and secured by a first lien on certain pledged revenues which include general 
fees, out-of-district fees and any other revenues or receipts of the System which may, in the future, be pledged to the 
payment of the bonds.  Certain outstanding bonds may be redeemed at their par value prior to their normal maturity dates 
in accordance with the terms of the related bond indenture.  All authorized bonds have been issued.  The System has never 
defaulted on any bond or interest payment.  

 
The Bond Resolutions, which authorize the issuance of Revenue Bonds, do not establish specific events of default. Under 
Texas law, there is no right to the acceleration of the maturity of the Bonds upon the failure of the System to observe any 
covenant under the Bond Resolutions. If a default were to occur, the only practical remedy of a registered bond holder is 
to file a mandatory injunction to compel System officials to carry out their legally imposed duties with respect to the 
Bonds. 

 
Limited Tax Bonds: 
 
The System issued $109,490,000 in Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 (“Series 2011 Bonds”) on October 12, 
2011 with interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $16,767,575. Bond 
maturities range from February 15, 2014 through February 15, 2028. Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2022 are 
subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities on February 15, 2021. The Series 2011 Bonds are direct 
obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located within the 
System. The Series 2011 Bonds were used to partially refund $112,195,000 of outstanding Limited Tax Bonds, Series 
2003 (“Series 2003 Bonds”) with interest rates ranging from 5.00% to 5.25%. The optional redemption date of the Series 
2003 Bonds was February 15, 2013. Additionally, the Series 2011 Bonds were used to totally refund $4,955,000 of 
outstanding Limited Tax Building and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (“Series 2005”) with interest rates of 5.00%. The 
optional redemption date of the Series 2005 Bonds was November 14, 2011. 
 
The System issued $398,775,000 in Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (“Series 2013 Bonds”) on March 
19, 2013 with interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $55,392,571. Bond 
maturities range from February 15, 2015 through February 15, 2043. Bonds maturing on or after February 15, 2024, except 
those maturing in 2027, 2036 and 2037 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities on February 15, 2023. 
Bonds maturing on February 15, 2027 were called and redeemed on August 24, 2015. Bonds maturing on February 15, 
2035 and February 15, 2036 were subject to redemption on February 15, 2020. These bonds totaling $40,000,000 were 
defeased on February 19, 2020 with the issuance of the Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020. See Note 9. Bonds 
maturing on February 15, 2037 were subject to redemption on February 15, 2017. These bonds totaling $20,000,000 were 
defeased on September 21, 2016 with the issuance of the Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2016. The Series 2013 
Bonds are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located 
within the System. The Series 2013 Bonds were used for the construction, maintenance and equipment of school buildings 
in the System and the purchase of necessary sites therefore, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Bonds.  

 
The System issued $19,455,000 in Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (“Series 2016 Bonds”) on September 21, 
2016 with interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.00%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $1,192,336 and mature on 
February 15, 2037. Bonds maturing on February 15, 2037 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities on 
February 15, 2026. The Series 2016 Bonds are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes 
levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Series 2016 Bonds were used to partially refund 
$20,000,000 of outstanding Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (“Series 2013 Bonds”) with an interest 
rate of 5.00%. The optional redemption date of the Series 2013 Bonds was February 14, 2017. 
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NOTE 8 - BONDS PAYABLE - CONTINUED 
 

The System issued $33,290,000 in Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (“Series 2016 Bonds”) on February 19, 
2020 with interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $7,191,227 and mature on 
February 15, 2036. Bonds maturing on February 15, 2035 and February 15, 2036 are subject to redemption prior to their 
scheduled maturities on February 15, 2029. The Series 2020 Bonds are direct obligations of the System and are payable 
from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Series 2020 Bonds were used to 
partially refund $40,000,000 of outstanding Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 (“Series 2013 Bonds”) 
with an interest rate of 5.00%. The optional redemption date of the Series 2013 Bonds was February 14, 2020. See Note 
9. 

 
The Bond Resolutions do not specifically provide any remedies to a registered owner if the System defaults on the payment 
of the principal of or interest on the Bonds, nor does it provide for the appointment of a trustee to protect and enforce the 
interests of the registered owners upon the occurrence of such a default. If a registered owner of a Bond does not receive 
payment of principal or interest when due, the registered owner may seek a writ of mandamus from a court of competent 
jurisdiction requiring the System to levy and collect taxes. Such registered owner also may seek a judgment against the 
System. The mandamus remedy, however, may be impractical and difficult to enforce. There is no provision for the 
acceleration of maturity of principal of a Bond in the event of a default. A registered owner of a Bond could file suit against 
the System if a default occurred in the payment of principal of or interest on any such Bonds; however, a suit for monetary 
damages could be vulnerable to the defense of sovereign immunity and any judgment could not be satisfied by execution 
against any property of the System. The enforcement of a claim for the payment of a Bond also would be subject to the 
applicable provisions of the Federal bankruptcy laws and to any other statutes affecting the rights of creditors of political 
subdivisions and may be limited by general principles of equity. 

 
Maintenance Tax Bonds: 

 
The System issued $28,870,000 in Maintenance Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 on September 21, 2016 with an interest 
rate of 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $6,535,208 and mature on February 15, 2028. Bonds maturing on 
February 15, 2027 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities on February 15, 2026. The Series 2016 
Bonds are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located 
within the System. The Bonds were used to partially refund $33,275,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2008 with 
interest rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% with an optional redemption date of February 15, 2018.  

 
The System issued $32,060,000 in Maintenance Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 on February 19, 2020 with an interest 
rate of 5.00%. The Bonds were issued at a premium of $5,505,362 and mature on February 15, 2029. The Series 2020 
Bonds are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located 
within the System. The Bonds were used to partially refund $2,980,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2006 with 
interest rates ranging from 4.25% to 4.375% with an optional redemption date of February 15, 2016; $5,560,000 in 
Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2009 with interest rates ranging from 3.625% to 5.00% with an optional redemption date 
of February 15, 2019; and $28,605,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2010 with interest rates of 5.00% with an optional 
redemption date of February 15, 2020. See Note 9. 
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NOTE 8 - BONDS PAYABLE - CONTINUED 
 
The Bond Resolution, which authorizes the issuance of the Maintenance Tax Bonds, does not establish specific events of 
default. Under Texas law, there is no right to the acceleration of the maturity of the Bonds upon the failure of the System 
to observe any covenant under the Bond Resolution. If a default were to occur, the only practical remedy of a registered 
bond holder is to file a mandatory injunction to compel the System to levy, assess and collect an annual ad valorem tax 
sufficient to pay principal and interest on the Bonds as it becomes due. The enforcement of any such remedy may be 
difficult and time-consuming and a registered bond holder could be required to enforce such a remedy on a periodic basis. 

 
 

 

Date Series 
Issued Par Value Maturity Date Interest Rate

2010 $ 27,250,000 04/15/2012 - 2031 3.000% - 5.250% $ -                  $ 19,160,000
2011 $ 33,940,000 04/15/2012 - 2025 4.000% - 5.125% 11,550,000 13,540,000

2014A $ 9,210,000 04/15/2015 - 2026 2.000% - 4.000% 5,060,000 5,795,000     
2014B $ 30,900,000 04/15/2015 - 2026    .31% - 4.070% 5,975,000 6,865,000     
2015 $ 68,865,000 04/15/2016 - 2031 2.000% - 5.000% 50,355,000 57,555,000    
2016 $ 50,345,000 04/15/2017 - 2031 3.000% - 5.000% 40,085,000 42,960,000    
2019 $ 26,870,000 04/15/2020 - 2030 5.000% 22,685,000 26,870,000    
2020 $ 13,595,000 04/15/2021 - 2031 4.000% - 5.000% 13,595,000 -                  

2011 $ 109,490,000 02/15/14 - 2028 2.250% - 5.000% 64,735,000    71,865,000    
2013 $ 398,775,000 02/15/15 - 2043 3.000% - 5.000% 313,240,000  357,420,000  
2016 $ 19,455,000 2/15/2037 3.000% - 4.000% 19,455,000    19,455,000    
2020 $ 33,290,000 02/15/35 -2036 4.000% - 5.000% 33,290,000    -                  

Maintenance Tax Bonds:
2016 $ 28,870,000 02/15/19 - 2028 5.000% 24,185,000 26,585,000    
2020 $ 32,060,000 02/15/22 - 2031 5.000% 32,060,000 -                  

Total Principal Payable 636,270,000 648,070,000
Unamortized Premium and Discount, Net 75,149,128 71,143,271

Total Bonds Payable $ 711,419,128 $ 719,213,271

Student Fee Revenue Bonds:

Limited Tax Bonds:

Balances at   
August 31, 2020

Outstanding Outstanding 
Balances at     

August 31, 2019
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NOTE 8 - BONDS PAYABLE – CONTINUED 

 
Debt service requirements to maturities as of August 31, 2020 are summarized as follows: 

 

 
 

Debt service requirements to maturities as of August 31, 2019 are summarized as follows: 
 

 
 

Year ending 
August 31, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 20,470,000 7,109,225 $ 27,579,225 $ 6,335,000     2,653,875    $ 8,988,875     $ 12,685,000    19,842,844 $ 32,527,844 $ 39,490,000 29,605,944 $ 69,095,944
2022 17,205,000 6,175,233 23,380,233 6,660,000     2,329,000    8,989,000     14,175,000    19,171,344 33,346,344 38,040,000 27,675,577 65,715,577
2023 14,110,000 5,338,809 19,448,809 7,005,000     1,987,375    8,992,375     12,730,000    18,506,219 31,236,219 33,845,000 25,832,403 59,677,403
2024 14,800,000 4,656,039 19,456,039 7,355,000     1,628,375    8,983,375     13,450,000    17,859,219 31,309,219 35,605,000 24,143,633 59,748,633
2025 15,510,000 3,943,249 19,453,249 6,895,000     1,272,125    8,167,125     14,225,000    17,167,344 31,392,344 36,630,000 22,382,718 59,012,718

2026 - 2030 60,380,000 10,255,222 70,635,222 21,995,000    1,996,875    23,991,875    75,245,000    75,840,219 151,085,219 157,620,000 88,092,316 245,712,316
2031 - 2035 6,830,000 280,175 7,110,175 -                  -                -                  117,555,000  51,834,484 169,389,484 124,385,000 52,114,659 176,499,659
2036 - 2040 -                   -                 -                   -                  -                -                  106,030,000  26,742,325 132,772,325 106,030,000 26,742,325 132,772,325
2041 - 2043 -                   -                 -                   -                  -                -                  64,625,000    4,439,875 69,064,875 64,625,000 4,439,875 69,064,875

$ 149,305,000 $ 37,757,952 $ 187,062,952 $ 56,245,000 $ 11,867,625 $ 68,112,625 $ 430,720,000 $ 251,403,873 $ 682,123,873 $ 636,270,000 $ 301,029,450 $ 937,299,450

Student Fee Revenue Bonds Maintenance Tax Bonds Limited Tax Bonds Total Bonds

Year ending 
August 31, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2020 $ 19,100,000 8,258,833 $ 27,358,833 $ 2,400,000     1,269,250    $ 3,669,250     $ 11,310,000    20,922,519 $ 32,232,519 $ 32,810,000 30,450,602 $ 63,260,602
2021 20,735,000 7,340,574 28,075,574 2,520,000     1,146,250    3,666,250     12,685,000    20,343,544 33,028,544 35,940,000 28,830,368 64,770,368
2022 17,540,000 6,329,133 23,869,133 2,650,000     1,017,000    3,667,000     14,175,000    19,672,044 33,847,044 34,365,000 27,018,177 61,383,177
2023 14,460,000 5,489,409 19,949,409 2,790,000     881,000      3,671,000     12,730,000    19,006,919 31,736,919 29,980,000 25,377,328 55,357,328
2024 15,165,000 4,789,139 19,954,139 2,930,000     738,000      3,668,000     13,450,000    18,359,919 31,809,919 31,545,000 23,887,058 55,432,058

2025 - 2029 65,200,000 13,669,646 78,869,646 13,295,000    1,371,125    14,666,125    68,170,000    81,929,094 150,099,094 146,665,000 96,969,864 243,634,864
2030 - 2034 20,545,000 1,269,850 21,814,850 -                  121,335,000  59,947,453 181,282,453 141,880,000 61,217,303 203,097,303
2035 - 2039 -                   -                 -                   -                  107,570,000  31,897,875 139,467,875 107,570,000 31,897,875 139,467,875
2040 - 2043 -                   -                 -                   -                  87,315,000    7,846,375 95,161,375 87,315,000 7,846,375 95,161,375

$ 172,745,000 $ 47,146,584 $ 219,891,584 $ 26,585,000 $ 6,422,625 $ 33,007,625 $ 448,740,000 $ 279,925,741 $ 728,665,741 $ 648,070,000 $ 333,494,950 $ 981,564,950

Student Fee Revenue Bonds Maintenance Tax Bonds Limited Tax Bonds Total Bonds
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NOTE 9 - DEFEASANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The System issued $33,290,000 in Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 on February 19, 2020. The Bonds were used to 
refund $40,000,000 in Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 with interest rates of 5.00% with an optional 
redemption date of February 15, 2023, which the System exercised.  

 
Proceeds of $40,481,227 of the Limited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow 
agent and will be used to redeem the Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 on February 15, 2023.  The liabilities 
for these refunded bonds and the securities held by the escrow agent have been excluded from the Statement of Net Position. 

 
The advance refunding had the following results: 

 $14,554,136 in future cash flow savings resulting from a decrease in the aggregate debt service payments over the 
next seventeen years. 

 Economic gain of $12,095,006, which is the difference between the present value of the old and new debt service 
payments. 

 Advance funding valuation of $4,444,003 was created, which is the difference between the reacquisition price of 
$40,144,428 and the carrying amount of the refunded bonds of $44,588,431. The valuation is deferred and 
amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the defeased Bonds. 

 
The System issued $32,060,000 in Maintenance Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 on February 19, 2020. The Bonds were used 
to refund: 1) $2,980,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2006 with interest rates of 4.25% to 4.375% with an optional 
redemption date of February 15, 2016, which the System exercised; 2) $5,560,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2009 with 
interest rates of 3.625% to 5.00% with an optional redemption date of February 15, 2019, which the System exercised; and 3) 
$28,605,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2010 with interest rates of 5.00% with an optional redemption date of February 
15, 2020, which the System exercised.  

 
Proceeds of $37,565,362 of the Maintenance Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 were placed in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent and were used to redeem all of the above Bonds on February 19, 2020.   

 
The advance refunding had the following results: 

 $6,274,490 in future cash flow savings resulting from a decrease in the aggregate debt service payments over the 
next ten years. 

 Economic gain of $5,790,620, which is the difference between the present value of the old and new debt service 
payments. 

 Advance funding valuation of $2,315,483 was created, which is the difference between the reacquisition price of 
$37,274,346 and the carrying amount of the refunded bonds of $39,589,829. The valuation is deferred and 
amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the defeased Bonds. 

 
The System issued $13,595,000 in Combined Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 on May 19, 2020. The Bonds were 
used to refund $17,935,000 in Senior Lien Student Fee Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 with interest rates of 4.00% to 5.00% 
with an optional redemption date of April 15, 2020, which the System exercised.  

 
Proceeds of $16,208,792 of the Combined Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 were placed in an irrevocable trust with 
an escrow agent and were used to redeem the Senior Lien Student Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 on June 18, 2020.  
The liabilities for these refunded bonds and the securities held by the escrow agent have been excluded from the Statement of 
Net Position. 
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NOTE 9 - DEFEASANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The advance refunding had the following results: 

 $3,389,814 in future cash flow savings resulting from a decrease in the aggregate debt service payments over the 
next twelve years. 

 Economic gain of $2,906,490, which is the difference between the present value of the old and new debt service 
payments. 

 Advance funding valuation of $1,091,409 was created, which is the difference between the reacquisition price of 
$18,082,316 and the carrying amount of the refunded bonds of $19,173,725. The valuation is deferred and 
amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the defeased Bonds. 

 
See Note 10 for defeased bonds outstanding as of August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019.                 

 
NOTE 10 - DEFEASED BONDS OUTSTANDING 
        
The defeased bonds and notes outstanding at August 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows: 
 

 
 
 
NOTE 11 - NOTES PAYABLE 
 
Notes Payables at August 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows: 
 

 
 
2011 Issuance 
The System issued $19,590,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2011A (“Notes”) on October 12, 2011 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.00% to 5.25%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $2,467,247. Note maturities range from February 15, 
2013 through February 15, 2031. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2022 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturities on February 15, 2021.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied 
against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes were used for the renovation and equipment of existing 
facilities and replacement of information technology systems, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note Issue Year Refunded August 31, 2020 August 31, 2019

Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013 2020 $ 40,000,000         $ -                       

Par Value Outstanding

Principal Unamortized Principal Unamortized
Description Outstanding Premium Total Outstanding Premium Total

Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2006 $                   -                  - $                    - $      3,650,000        20,842 $      3,670,842 
Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2009                   -                  -                    -      6,530,000      214,661      6,744,661 
Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2010                   -                  -                    -    31,075,000   2,209,326    33,284,326 
Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2011   27,770,000   1,047,970    28,817,970    29,600,000   1,143,241    30,743,241 
Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2011A   13,415,000   1,187,196    14,602,196    14,300,000   1,295,123    15,595,123 
LoanSTAR Revolving Loan Program     5,303,635      5,303,635      5,989,321                 -      5,989,321 

  Total $   46,488,635 $   2,235,166 $    48,723,801 $    91,144,321 $   4,883,193 $    96,027,514 

As of August 31, 2020 As of August 31, 2019
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NOTE 11 - NOTES PAYABLE - CONTINUED 
 
The System issued $41,560,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2011 (“Notes”) on March 10, 2011 with interest rates ranging 
from 3.00% to 5.25%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $1,800,441. Note maturities range from February 15, 2012 through 
February 15, 2031. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2022 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities 
on February 15, 2021.  The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all 
taxable property located within the System. The Notes were used for the renovation and equipment of existing facilities and 
replacement of information technology systems, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  

 
2010 Issuance 
The System issued $47,645,000, in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2010 (“Notes”) on July 29, 2010 with interest rates ranging 
from 2.00% to 5.00%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $4,925,575. Note maturities range from February 15, 2012 through 
February 15, 2029. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2021 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities 
on February 15, 2020.  These Notes were defeased on February 19, 2020. See Note 9. The Notes are direct obligations of the 
System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes were 
used for the renovation and equipment of existing facilities, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  

 
2009 Issuance 
The System issued $13,830,000, in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2009 (“Notes”) on September 1, 2009 with interest rates 
ranging from 2.50% to 5.00%. The Notes were issued at a premium of $451,444. Note maturities range from February 15, 2011 
through February 15, 2025. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2020 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturities on February 15, 2019.  These Notes were defeased on February 19, 2020. See Note 9. The Notes are direct obligations 
of the System and are payable from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes 
were used to pay for rehabilitation and energy conservation renovations to existing facilities, and to pay the costs of issuance 
related to the Notes. 
 
2006 Issuance 
The System issued $12,000,000 in Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2006 (“Notes”) on February 1, 2006 with interest rates ranging 
from 3.00% to 4.50%. The Notes were issued at a discount of $88,756. Note maturities range from February 15, 2007 through 
February 15, 2026. Notes maturing on or after February 15, 2007 are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities 
on February 15, 2016.  Notes totaling $1,700,000 were called and redeemed on September 30, 2016. The remaining Notes of 
$2,980,000 were defeased on February 19, 2020. See Note 9. The Notes are direct obligations of the System and are payable 
from ad valorem taxes levied against all taxable property located within the System. The Notes were used for the construction 
of a central utility plant on the Central campus, and to pay the costs of issuance related to the Notes.  
 
LoanSTAR Program 
The System entered into a revolving loan agreement on March 22, 2016 for $5,229,822 with the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts through its State Energy Conservation Office. The purpose of the loan was to finance energy efficiency projects. 
Borrowings under the Program totaled $4,263,993. All energy projects have been completed and a final repayment schedule has 
been determined by the State. The loan will be repaid over 9.25 years with an annual interest rate of 1%. The loan balance 
outstanding was $3,536,767 and $3,988,634 at August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019, respectively. 

 
The System entered into a second revolving loan agreement on December 7, 2016 for $7,056,096 with the Texas Comptroller 
of Public Accounts through its State Energy Conservation Office. The purpose of the loan was to finance energy efficiency 
projects. Borrowings under the Program totaled $1,987,134. All energy projects have been completed and a final repayment 
schedule has been determined by the State. The loan will be repaid over 8.25 years with an annual interest rate of 1%. The loan 
balance outstanding was $1,766,868 and $2,000,687, respectively, at August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019. 
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NOTE 11 - NOTES PAYABLE - CONTINUED 
 
In the event of default by the System to make a loan payment under the LoanSTAR Loan Agreements, the State shall notify the 
System of the default and the System shall have a reasonable opportunity, not to exceed twenty (20) days, to cure the default. If 
the System fails to cure the default, the State shall be released from all of its obligations under the Agreements and shall have 
the right to declare the loans in default and all amounts loaned to the System under the Agreements and earned interest shall 
become immediately due. The System waives all demands for payment, presentations for payment, and notices of intention to 
accelerate maturity, notices of acceleration of maturity, protest, and notices of protest, to the extent permitted by law. Upon 
receipt of notice of default from the State, the System shall cancel or otherwise terminate any contract, agreement or order 
relating to the project and cease to incur any cost or expense relating to the project. If the System fails to repay the loan within 
ninety (90) days of State’s declaration of default under the Agreements, the State may notify the Office of the Governor, 
Legislative Budget Board and the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board of the System’s breach of the Agreements and 
the amount owing by the System under the Agreements and recommend to the Legislative Budget Board that the System’s 
appropriation of funds for the next succeeding biennium be reduced by an amount equal to the total amount due under the 
Agreements. 

 
Tax-Exempt Note Purchase Agreement 
On December 13, 2018 the System entered into a three year Tax-Exempt Variable Rate Note Purchase Agreement with a 
commercial bank for the purpose of development of a new Katy Campus in west Houston. The project will entail the purchase 
of 24 acres of land and construction of a 130,000 square foot building at a total estimated cost of $54,000,000. The maximum 
borrowing under the Agreement is $55,000,000 at an approximate annual interest rate at August 31, 2020 of .86%, based upon 
a one-month factor of LIBOR. The outstanding balance of the loan was $13,098,857 and $12,804,100 at August 31, 2020 and 
August 31, 2019, respectively. Upon completion of the building, the System intends to issue permanent revenue bonds and retire 
the outstanding notes. Interest only will be paid semi-annually on the notes during the term of the interim financing agreement. 
 
The following constitute events of default: (i) the System fails to pay when due any fee or expense payable under the Agreement; 
(ii) any representation, warranty, certification, or statement made by the System in the Board Resolution, the Agreement or in 
any certificate, financial statement, or other document delivered pursuant to the Board Resolution or the agreement shall prove 
to have been incorrect in any material respect when made; (iii) a final unappealable judgment or order for the payment of money 
in excess of $5,000,000 payable from the pledged revenues shall be rendered against the System and such judgment or order 
shall continue unsatisfied and unstayed for a period of sixty (60) days; (iv) default by the System in the payment of any 
outstanding bonds when due or within any applicable grace period; (v) the occurrence of any event under any ordinance, 
resolution, agreement or instrument giving rise to or entered in connection with any Senior Lien Bonds or Junior Lien Bonds, 
which results in or would entitle the obligee thereof or a trustee on behalf of such obligee to pursue any remedies against the 
System, including the right to declare the acceleration of any maturity thereof; (vi) any material provision of the Agreement 
shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on the System as a result of federal or state legislative or 
administrative action, or shall be declared in a final unappealable judgment by any court having jurisdiction over the System to 
be null and void, invalid, or unenforceable, or the validity or enforceability thereof shall be contested by the System; (vii) the 
powers of the System shall be limited in any way or the Resolution shall be modified or amended in any way which prevents 
the System from fixing, charging or collecting the pledged revenues in an amount sufficient to pay outstanding bonds as they 
become due; or (viii) default shall be made by the System in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants, 
agreements or conditions on its part in the Resolution, the Notes or the Agreement, and such default shall continue for a period 
of 30 days after written notice thereof to the System by the commercial bank. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, the 
commercial bank may cease purchasing Notes under the Agreement and may terminate the Agreement. In addition, the 
commercial bank may take any action permitted by law or equity, including without limitation actions to petition a court of 
competent jurisdiction to issue a mandamus order to the System and compel specific performance of the covenants and 
agreements of the System contained in the Agreement or the Resolution. 
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NOTE 11 - NOTES PAYABLE - CONTINUED 
 
Maturities of notes payable at August 31, 2020 were as follows: 

 
 

 
 
Maturities of notes payable at August 31, 2019 were as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Year ending August 31
 Central Utility 

Plant 
 Capital 

Improvements  Total 

2021                     -        5,572,545          5,572,545 
2022                     -        5,575,340          5,575,340 
2023                     -        5,582,911          5,582,911 
2024                     -        5,592,022          5,592,022 
2025                     -        5,595,860          5,595,860 

2026 - 2030                     -      26,148,656        26,148,656 
2031                     -        4,876,350          4,876,350 

Total Payments                     -      58,943,684        58,943,684 
Less Amounts Representing Interest     (12,455,050)      (12,455,050)
Plus Unamortized Premium        2,235,166          2,235,166 

Total Notes Payable $                     - $      48,723,801 $        48,723,801 

Year ending August 31
 Central Utility 

Plant 
 Capital 

Improvements  Total 

2020          813,744      10,759,768        11,573,512 
2021          809,738      10,773,282        11,583,020 
2022          814,000      10,770,171        11,584,171 
2023          811,406      10,775,980        11,587,386 
2024          812,391      10,782,266        11,594,657 

2025 - 2029                     -      47,788,520        47,788,520 
2030 - 2031                     -        9,754,406          9,754,406 

Total Payments       4,061,279    111,404,393      115,465,672 
Less Amounts Representing Interest        (411,278)     (23,910,072)      (24,321,350)
Plus Unamortized Premium            20,841        4,862,351          4,883,192 

Total Notes Payable $       3,670,842 $      92,356,672 $        96,027,514 
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NOTE 12 - OPERATING LEASES 
 
The System leases certain educational facilities, offices and equipment. Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable 
operating leases having remaining terms as of August 31, 2020 for the next fiscal year are as follows: 
 

 
 
Rent expense totaled approximately $122 thousand and $1.2 million for each of the fiscal years ended August 31, 2020 and 
2019, respectively. 
 
NOTE 13 - LEASED FACILITIES 
 
The System leases office space to other entities under operating leases. Minimum lease payments due to the System under these 
operating leases as of August 31, 2020 are as follows: 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The System received approximately $7.4 million and $7.4 million in rental income for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2020 
and 2019. 
 
NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
The State of Texas has joint contributory retirement plans for almost all its employees.  One of the primary plans in which the 
system participates is administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas. 
 
Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
 
Plan Description.  HCC contributes to the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (TRS), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined 
benefit pension plan that has a special funding situation.  TRS administers retirement and disability annuities, and death and 
survivor benefits to employees and beneficiaries of employees of the public school systems of Texas.  It operates primarily under 
the provisions of the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Sec. 67, and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C.  The pension 
trust fund is a qualified pension trust under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.  The Texas Legislature establishes 
benefits and contribution rates within the guidelines of the Texas Constitution.  TRS’s Board of Trustees does not have the 
authority to establish or amend benefit terms. 
 
All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in Texas who are employed for one-half or more of the standard 
work load and who are not exempted from membership under Texas Government Code, Title 8, Section 822.002 are covered by 
TRS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year ending August 31 Amount
2021 $ 20,369

Year Ending August 31, Amount

2021 2,821,755$                   

2022 1,002,683                     

2023 882,469                        

2024 741,320                        

2025 749,240                        

Thereafter 1,738,616                     

Total 7,936,083$                   
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED  
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the Teacher Retirement System’s fiduciary net position is 
available in a separately-issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information.  That report may be obtained from TRS’ website at http://www.trs.state.tx.us/ about/ documents/ 
cafr.pdf# CAFR; by writing to; TRS at 1000 Red River Street, Austin, TX, 78701-2698; or by calling (512) 542-6592. 
 
Benefits Provided. TRS provides service and disability retirement, as well as death and survivor benefits, to eligible employees 
(and their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas. The pension formula is calculated using 2.3 percent (multiplier) 
times the average of the five highest annual creditable salaries times years of credited service to arrive at the annual standard 
annuity except for members who are grandfathered, the three highest annual salaries are used.  The normal service retirement is 
at age 65 with 5 years of credited service or when the sum of the member’s age and years of credited service equals 80 or more 
years. Early retirement is at age 55 with 5 years of service credit or earlier than 55 with 30 years of service credit.  There are 
additional provisions for early retirement if the sum of the member’s age and years of service credit total at least 80, but the 
member is less than age 60 or 62 depending on date of employment, or if the member was grandfathered in under a previous 
rule.  There are no automatic post-employment benefit changes; including automatic cost of living adjustments (COLA).  Ad 
hoc post-employment benefit changes, including ad hoc COLAs can be granted by the Texas Legislature as noted in the Plan 
description. 
 
Contributions.  Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by Article 16, section 
67 of the Texas Constitution.  The state funding policy is as follows:  (1) The state constitution requires the legislature to establish 
a member contribution rate of not less than 6% of the member’s annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not less 
than 6% and not more than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation paid to members of the systems during the fiscal year.  
(2) Texas Government Code section 821.006 prohibits benefits improvements or contribution reductions if, as a result of a 
particular action, the time required to amortize TRS’ unfunded actuarial liabilities would be increased to a period that exceeds 
31 years, or, if that amortization period already exceeds 31 years, the period would be increased by such action.  
 
Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402.  The 85th Texas Legislature, General 
Appropriations Act (GAA) affirmed that contribution rates for fiscal years 2018 and 2019 would remain the same as the previous 
years.  The TRS Pension Reform Bill (Senate Bill 12) of the 86th Texas Legislature amended Texas Government Code 825.402 
for member contributions and increased employee and employer contribution rates for fiscal years 2020 through 2025. 
 

Contribution Rates 
  2020 2019 
 Member 7.7% 7.7% 
 Non-Employer Contributing Entity (State) 7.5% 6.8% 
 Employers 7.5% 6.8% 
 
 FY 2019 District or Member Contributions  $6,071,572  

FY 2019 State On-behalf Contributions  $3,709,954  
 FY 2019 System or College Contributions  $3,869,654  
 
 
HCC contributions to the TRS pension plan in 2020 were $6,975,537 as reported in the Schedule of System Contributions in the 
Required Supplementary Information section of these financial statements. Estimated State on-behalf contributions for 2020 
were $3,800,000. 
 
As the non-employer contributing entity for public education and junior colleges, the State of Texas contributes to the retirement 
system an amount equal to the current employer contribution rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all participating 
members of the pension trust fund during that fiscal year reduced by the amounts described below which are paid by the 
employers.    
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 
 
Public junior college or junior college districts are required to pay the employer contribution rate in the following instances: 
 

 On the portion of the member's salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entitled to the statutory 
minimum under Section 21.402 of the Texas Education Code. 

 During a new member’s first 90 days of employment. 
 When any part or all of an employee’s salary is paid by federal funding sources, a privately sponsored source, from 

non-educational and general, or local funds. 

 When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the employer shall contribute to 
the retirement system an amount equal to 50% of the state contribution rate for certain instructional or 
administrative employees; and 100% of the state contribution rate for all other employees. 

 In addition to the employer contributions listed above, when employing a retiree of the Teacher Retirement System 
the employer shall pay both the member contribution and the state contribution as an employment after retirement 
surcharge. 

 
Actuarial Assumption. The total pension liability in the August 31, 2018 actuarial valuation rolled forward to August 31, 2019 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

 
Valuation Date August 31, 2018, rolled forward to  
 August 31, 2019 
Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age Normal 
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll, Floating 
Amortization Period 30 Years 
Asset Valuation Method Market Value 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Single Discount Rate 7.25% 
Long-term Expected Investment Rate of Return* 7.25% 
Municipal Bond Rate* 2.63* 
Inflation 2.30% 
Payroll Growth Rate 3.00% 
Salary increases including inflation 3.05% to 9.05%  
Benefit changes during the year None 
Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes None 

 

 
* Source for the rate is the Fixed Income Market Data/Yield Curve/Data Municipal Bonds with 20 years to maturity that include 
only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as reported in Fidelity Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index." 
 

The actuarial methods and assumptions were selected by the Board of Trustees based upon analysis and recommendations by 
the System's actuary. The TRS Board of Trustees has sole authority to determine the actuarial assumptions used for the Plan. 
The actuarial methods and assumptions were primarily based on a study of actual experience for the three-year period ending 
August 31, 2018 and were adopted in July 2018.  The actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the total pension 
liability are the same assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2018. 
 
Discount Rate.  The single discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%.  The single discount rate was 
based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.25% and a municipal bond rate of 2.63%.  The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of contributing 
employers and the non-employer contributing entity are made at statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was sufficient to finance the benefit payments until the year 2069.  As a result, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through the year 2069, and 
the municipal bond rate was applied to all benefit payments after that date.  The long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.   
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 
 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return 
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class included in the Systems target asset allocation as of August 31, 2019 are summarized below: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                Source:  Teacher Retirement System of Texas 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 
 
Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis.  The following schedule shows the impact of the Net Pension Liability if the discount rate 
used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that was used (7.25%) in measuring the 2019 Net Pension Liability. 

1% Decrease in 
Discount Rate 

(6.25%)
Discount Rate 

(7.25%)

1% Increase in 
Discount Rate 

(8.25%)

Houston Community 
College System 
proportionate share of 
the net pension 
liability:

 $          138,610,285  $            90,173,836  $            50,930,963 

 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions: At August 31, 2020, HCC reported a liability of $90,173,836 for its proportionate share of the TRS’s net pension 
liability.  This liability reflects a reduction for State pension support provided to HCC.  The amount recognized by HCC as its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that 
was associated with HCC were as follows: 

 
Houston Community College System  proportionate share of the collective net pension 
liability  90,173,836$         

State’s proportionate share that is associated with Houston Community College System 55,101,858           

Total 145,275,694$       

 
The net pension liability was measured as of August 31, 2018 and rolled forward to August 31, 2019 and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2018 rolled forward 
to August 31, 2019.  The employer’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the employer’s contributions to the 
pension plan relative to the contributions of all employers to the plan for the period September 1, 2018 thru August 31, 2019. 
 
At the measurement date of August 31, 2019, the employer’s proportion of the collective net pension liability was 
0.1734675123%, which was a decrease of 0.0225801275% from its proportion measured as of August 31, 2018. 
 
Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation.  The following were changes to the actuarial assumption or other inputs that 
affected measurement of the total pension liability since the prior measurement period. 
 

 The single discount rate as of August 31, 2018 was a blended rate of 6.907% and that has changed to the long-term 
rate of return of 7.25% as of August 31, 2019. 

 
 With the enactment of SB 3 by the 2019 Texas Legislature, an assumption has been made about how this would 

impact future salaries.  It is assumed that eligible active members will each receive a $2,700 increase in fiscal year 
2020. This is in addition to the salary increase expected based on the actuarial assumptions. 

 
There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the measurement period. 
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 
 
For the year ended August 31, 2020, the Houston Community College System recognized pension expense of $8,655,726 and 
revenue of $8,655,726 for support provided by the State. 
 
At August 31, 2020, HCC reported its proportionate share of the TRS’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience 378,811$                    $          3,130,979 

Changes in actuarial assumptions 27,976,352                           11,561,152 

Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings 905,450                                                 - 

Changes in proportion and difference between the employer’s 
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions

1,334,974                             18,406,800 

Contributions paid to TRS subsequent to the measurement date 6,975,537                  ‐                              

      Total 37,571,124$               $        33,098,931 

 
 
The $6,975,537 reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended August 31, 2021. 
 
The net amounts of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Optional Retirement Plan 
 

Plan Description.  The State has also established an optional retirement program for institutions of higher education.  
Participation in the Optional Retirement Program is in lieu of participation in the Teacher Retirement System.  The optional 
retirement program provides for the purchase of annuity contracts and operates under the provisions of the Texas Constitution, 
Article XVI, Sec. 67, and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. 
 
Funding Policy.  Contribution requirements are not actuarially determined but are established and amended by the State 
Legislature.  The percentages of participant salaries currently contributed by the state and each participant are 6.60% and 6.65%, 
respectively. Benefits fully vest after one year plus one day of employment.  Because these are individual annuity contracts, the 
state has no additional or unfunded liability for this program. 
 
 

Year ended August 31:

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter 

Total  $              (2,503,345)

(1,317,428)                 

Pension Expense 
Amount

(1,404,822)$               

(2,126,531)                 

1,884,692                  

1,572,933                  

(1,112,189)                 



 

68 
 

 
HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - CONTINUED 
 
Retirement Expense  

The retirement expense to the State for the System was $11,367,226 and $6,746,764 for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2020 
and 2019 respectively.  This amount represents the portion of expended appropriations made by the State Legislature on behalf 
of the System. 
 
The total payroll for all System employees was $213,503,716 and $212,344,483 for fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
The total payroll of employees covered by the Teacher Retirement System was $150,697,784 and $144,837,608 and the total 
payroll of employees covered by the Optional Retirement Program was $35,820,211 and $37,702,900 for fiscal years 2020 and 
2019, respectively. 
 
NOTE 15 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PROGRAM 
 
The System’s employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for income tax and investment purposes pursuant to 
authority granted in Government Code 609.001. Both a 403(b) plan and a 457 plan are available.  The plan is funded by employee 
contributions such that the employer is not liable for the diminution in value or loss of all or part of the participating employees’ 
deferred amounts or investment income due to market conditions or the failure, insolvency or bankruptcy of a qualified vendor. 
The total number of employees participating in the program at August 31, 2020 and 2019 were 610 and 638, respectively. 
 
During fiscal years ended August 31, 2020 and August 31, 2019, employee contributions amounting to $4,509,832 and 
$4,483,086 were invested in the plan respectively. 
 
NOTE 16 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 

Full-time employees earn sick leave at the rate of eight hours for every month of service in the System up to a maximum of 680 
hours.  Each pay period, four sick leave hours and two catastrophic leave hours accrue.  Leave hours are not available for use 
until accrued.  After the maximum 680 hours sick leave accrual is reached, the full-time employee will accrue catastrophic leave 
of six hours per month up to a maximum of 1,000 hours.  Earned sick or catastrophic leave unused by employees is not 
compensated by the System under any circumstances.  

 
Employees can earn up to 160 vacation hours. Up to 80 earned but unused vacation hours may be carried forward by employees 
from one fiscal year to the next, but must be utilized before the end of August of the following year or be lost.  An employee is 
compensated for any earned but unused vacation hours upon termination of employment with the System. Accrued compensable 
absences of $5,060,464 and $3,713,263 for earned but unused vacation hours in accordance with HCC’s vacation earning and 
carry-forward policy has been included in the financial statements for the years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
In FY2020 employees were allowed to carryover an additional 20 hours, primarily due to employees taking less vacation time 
due to COVID-19. 
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NOTE 17 - FUNDS HELD IN TRUST BY OTHERS 
 
HCC did not have any funds held in trust by others during fiscal year 2020. 
 
NOTE 18 - CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 
 
The System has entered into construction commitments for various projects, including the renovation and repair of facilities and 
the construction of buildings. At August 31, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding commitments under construction contracts for 
facilities and other projects were $21,845,321 and $13,416,383 respectively. Proceeds from the sales of various bonds and notes 
are being used to fund the purchase and construction of new facilities. 
  
NOTE 19 – CONTINGENCIES  
 
The System is a defendant in various lawsuits and administrative actions arising in the ordinary course of the performance of its 
governmental functions, certain of which seek substantial damages. Such litigation and actions include lawsuits claiming 
damages that allege personal injuries, wrongful deaths and property damage and lawsuits and administrative actions alleging 
discriminatory hiring and firing practices; various claims from contractors for amounts under construction contracts; inverse 
condemnation claims; and various other liability claims. The status of such litigation and actions ranges from an early discovery 
stage to various levels of appeal of judgments. The amount of damages is limited in certain cases under the Texas Tort Claims 
Act and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and is subject to appeal. The System intends to defend itself against each of 
these lawsuits and actions vigorously. The System cannot predict, as of the date hereof, the final outcome of any particular claim, 
suit or action.  
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NOTE 20 - HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 
 
The State provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for active employees.  These and similar benefits are provided 
through a self-funded State plan which is administered by an insurance company. The premiums are based on benefits paid 
during the previous year.  The table below depicts the cost of providing health care benefits to the System’s retired and active 
employees, and the amount appropriated to the System from the State.  Payments of these benefits by the State were recognized 
as restricted state appropriations with an equal amount recognized as restricted benefits expenses.  These payments do not flow 
through the System’s cash accounts.   
   

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HealthSelect of Texas Plan

Member Only 624.82$                              

Member & Spouse 982.82                                

Member & Child (ren) 864.52                                

Member & Family 1,222.52                             

HealthSelect of Texas Plan

Member Only 624.82$                              

Member & Spouse 982.82                                

Member & Child (ren) 864.52                                

Member & Family 1,222.52                             

2020 State/Employer 
Contribution

2019 State/Employer 
Contribution

State/Employer Contribution for Health Care Insurance (includes 
basic life insurance rate)

Cost of Providing Health Care Insurance 2020 2019
Number of Retirees 744                        705                      
Cost of Health Benefits for Retirees 5,331,926$            5,000,484$          

Number of Active Full Time Employees 2,669                     2,688                   
Cost of Health Benefits for Active Full Time Employees 22,175,541$          21,910,561$        

State Appropriation for Health Insurance 12,685,961$          11,240,496$        
System's Expense for Health Insurance 13,661,552$          15,670,526$        
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NOTE 21 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS  
 
Plan Description. The System participates in a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan 
with a special funding situation. The Texas Employees Group Benefits Program (GBP) is administered by the ERS. The GBP 
provides certain postemployment health care, life and dental insurance benefits to retired employees of participating universities, 
community colleges, and State agencies in accordance with Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code. Almost all employees may 
become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the State and retire with at least 10 
years of service to eligible entities. Surviving spouses and dependents of these retirees are also covered. Benefit and contribution 
provisions of the GBP are authorized by State law and may be amended by the Texas Legislature.  
 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the GBP’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued ERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that includes financial statements, notes to the financial statements 
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at https://ers.texas.gov/AboutERS/Reports-
and-Studies/Reports-on-Overall-ERS-Operations-and-Financial-Management; or by writing to ERS at: 200 East 18th Street, 
Austin, TX 78701; or by calling (877) 275-4377. The fiduciary net position of the plan has been determined using the same 
basis used by the OPEB plan.  
 
Benefits Provided. Retiree health benefits offered through the GBP are available to most State retirees and their eligible 
dependents. Participants need at least ten years of service credit with an agency or institution that participates in the GBP to be 
eligible for GBP retiree insurance. The GBP provides self-funded group health (medical and prescription drug) benefits for 
eligible retirees under HealthSelect. The GBP also provides a fully insured medical benefit option for Medicare-primary 
participants under the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees via a minimum 
premium funding arrangement. The authority under which the obligations of the plan members and employers are established 
and/or may be amended is Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code.  
 
Contributions. Section 1551.055 of Chapter 1551, Texas Insurance Code, provides that contribution requirements of the plan 
members and the participating employers are established and may be amended by the ERS Board of Trustees. The employer 
and member contribution rates are determined annually by the ERS Board of Trustees based on the recommendations of ERS 
staff and its consulting actuary. The contribution rates are determined based on (i) the benefit and administrative costs expected 
to be incurred, (ii) the funds appropriated and (iii) the funding policy established by the Texas Legislature in connection with 
benefits provided through the GBP. The Trustees revise benefits when necessary to match expected benefit and administrative 
costs with the revenue expected to be generated by the appropriated funds. 
 
The following table summarizes the maximum monthly employer contribution toward eligible retirees’ health and basic life 
premium. Retirees pay any premium over and above the employer contribution. The employer does not contribute toward dental 
or optional life insurance. Surviving spouses and their dependents do not receive any employer contribution. As the non-
employer contributing entity (NECE), the State pays part of the premiums for the junior and community colleges. 
 

 
Maximum Monthly Employer Contribution 

Retiree Health and Basic Life Premium 
Fiscal Years 2019 and 2018 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Source:   ERS FY 2019 and 2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

2019 2018
Retiree only 624.82$  621.90$  
Retiree and spouse 1,340.82 1,334.54 
Retiree and children 1,104.22 1,099.06 
Retiree and family 1,820.22 1,811.70 
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NOTE 21 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - CONTINUED   
 
Contributions of premiums to the GBP plan for the current and prior fiscal year by source is summarized in the following table: 

Premium Contributions by Source 
Group Benefits Program Plan 

For Years Ended August 31, 2019 
  
 FY 2020 System or College Contributions  $1,987,500 
 FY 2019 Measurement year NECE On-behalf Contributions*  $11,240,496 
 
*NECE on-behalf contributions include both active members and retirees 
 
Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of August 31, 2019 using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:  

 

Actuarial Assumptions 
ERS Group Benefits Program Plan 

 

 
Source: FY19 ERS CAFR except for mortality assumptions obtained from ERS FY19 GASB 75 Actuarial Valuation 

Remaining Amortization Period 30 Years

Asset Valuation Method N/A

Inflation Assumption rate 2.50%

HealthSelect

HealthSelect Medicare Advantage

Projected annual salary increase (includes inflation) 2.50 to 9.50%
Discount Rate 2.97%
Mortality 1. State Agency Members

7.30 for FY21, 7.40% for FY22,7.00% for FY23, decreasing 0.5% per 
year to 4.50% for FY 2028 and later years

10.80% for FY21, 7.40% for FY22, 7.00% for FY23, decreasing 0.5% 
per year to 4.50% for FY 2028 and later years

b. Disability Retirees: Tables based on TRS experience with Ultimate MP 
projection from the year 2018 using a 3-year set forward and minimum 
mortality rates of  four per 100 male members and two per 100 female 
members.

c. Active Members: Sex Distinct RP-2014 Employee Mortality 
multiplied by 90% with Ultimate MP projection Scale from the year 
2014.

a. Service Retirees, Survivors and other Inactive Members: Tables based 
on TRS experience withUltimate MP projection using Scale from the 
year 2018.

a. Service Retirees, Survivors and other Inactive Members - 2017 State 
Retirees of Texas Mortality table with a 1 year set forward for male 
CPO/CO members and Ultimate MP Projection Scale projected from the 
b. Disability Retirees- RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality with Ultimate 
MP Projection Scale projected from the year 2014

c. Active Members: RP-2014 Employee Mortality tables with Ultimate 
MP Projection Scale from year 2014

2. Higher Education Members
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NOTE 21 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - CONTINUED   
 
Many of the actuarial assumptions used in this valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies performed by 
the ERS and TRS retirement plan actuaries for the period September 1, 2011 to August 31, 2016 for State Agency members and 
for the period September 1, 2010 to August 31, 2017 for Higher Education members. 
 
Investment Policy. The State Retiree Health Plan is a pay-as-you-go plan and does not accumulate funds in advance of 
retirement; therefore, the assumed asset allocation and long-term expected real rate of return on investments is not applicable. 
The ERS’s Board of Trustees adopted the amendment to the investment policy in August 2017 to require that all funds in the 
plan be invested in short-term fixed income securities and specify that the expected rate of return on these investments is 2.4% 
(see FY 2019 ERS CAFR, OPEB footnote).  
 
Discount Rate.  Because the GBP does not accumulate funds in advance of retirement, the discount rate that was used to measure 
the total OPEB liability is the municipal bonds rate. The discount rate used to determine the total OPEB liability as of the 
beginning of the measurement year was 3.96%. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of the end of the 
measurement year was 2.97%, which amounted to a decrease of 0.99%. The source of the municipal bond rate was the Bond 
Buyer Index of general obligation bonds with 20 years to maturity and mixed credit quality. The bonds average credit quality is 
roughly equivalent to Moody’s Investors Service’s Aa2 rating and Standard & Poor’s Corp’s AA rating. Projected cash flows 
into the plan are equal to projected benefit payments out of the plan. Because the plan operates on a pay-as-you-go (PAYGO) 
basis and is not intended to accumulate assets, there is no long-term expected rate of return on plan assets and therefore the years 
of projected benefit payments to which the long-term expected rate of return is applicable is zero years.  
 
Changes to Actuarial Assumptions since prior Actuarial Valuation.  The following assumptions have been updated since the 
previous valuation to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends: 
 

 Percentage of current retirees and retiree spouses not yet eligible to participate in the HealthSelect Medicare Advantage 
Plan and future retirees and retiree spouses who will elect to participate in the plan at the earliest date at which coverage 
can commence. 

 Percentage of future male retirees assumed to be married and electing coverage for their spouse. 
 Percentage of future retirees and future retiree spouses assumed to use tobacco. 

 
In addition, assumed Per Capita Health Benefits Costs and Health Benefit Cost and Retiree Contribution trends have been 
updated since the previous valuation to reflect recent health plan experience and its effects on our short-term expectations. 
 
Lastly, the discount rate was changed from 3.96% to 2.97% as a result of requirements by GASB No. 74, Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefit Plans other than Pension Plans to reflect the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general 
obligation bonds rated AA/Aa (or equivalent) or higher in effect on the measurement date 
 
Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The following schedule shows the impact on the System proportionate share of the collective 
net OPEB Liability if the discount rate used was 1 percent less than and 1 percent greater than the discount rate that was used 
(2.97%) in measuring the net OPEB Liability. 
 

1% Decrease in Discount 
Rate (1.97%)

Discount Rate (2.97%)
1% Increase in Discount 

Rate (3.97%)

Houston Community 
College System 
proportionate share of the 
net OPEB liability:

 $                        218,113,751  $                                     182,780,302  $                     155,592,494 
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NOTE 21 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - CONTINUED 
 
Healthcare Trend Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The initial healthcare trend rate is 7.3% for HealthSelect and 10.8% for 
HealthSelect Medicare Advantage and the ultimate rate is 4.5% for both. The following schedule shows the impact on the 
Systems proportionate share of the collective net OPEB Liability if the healthcare cost trend rate used was 1 percent less than 
and 1 percent greater than the healthcare cost trend rate that was used (7.3%) in measuring the net OPEB Liability. 
 

1% Decrease (HealthSelect: 
6.30% decreasing to 3.50%; 

HealthSelect Medicare 
Advantage: 9.80% to 3.50%)

Current Healthcare Cost Trend Rates  
(HealthSelect: 7.30% decreasing to 

4.50%; HealthSelect Medicare 
Advantage: 10.80% to 4.50%)

1% Increase (HealthSelect: 
8.30% decreasing to 5.50%; 

HealthSelect Medicare 
Advantage: 11.80% to 

5.50%)

Houston Community 
College System 
proportionate share of the 
net OPEB liability:

 $                        153,479,002  $                                     182,780,302  $                     221,070,390 

 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB.  
At August 31, 2020, the System reported a liability of $182,780,302 for its proportionate share of the ERS’s net OPEB liability. 
This liability reflects a reduction for State support provided to HCC for OPEB. The amount recognized by the System as its 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was 
associated with the System were as follows: 
 
 

Houston Community College System proportionate share of the collective net OPEB  
liability  182,780,302$       

State’s proportionate share that is associated with Houston Community College System 131,107,295         

Total 313,887,597$       

 
 
The net OPEB liability was measured as of August 31, 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the 
employer’s contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the contributions of all employers to the plan for the period September 1, 
2018, thru August 31, 2019. 
 
At the measurement date of August 31, 2019, the employer’s proportion of the collective net OPEB liability was 0.52883726%, 
which was a decrease of 0.02295801% from its proportion measured as of August 31, 2018.  
 
For the year ended August 31, 2020, the System recognized an offset to OPEB expense and revenue in the amount of $148,532 
for support provided by the State. 
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NOTE 21 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - CONTINUED 
 
At August 31, 2019, the System reported its proportionate share of the ERS plan’s collective deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic experience -$                               $          4,756,107 
Changes in actuarial assumptions 13,007,501                           40,844,469 
Net Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 75,146                                                 -   
Changes in proportion and difference between the employer’s 
contributions and the proportionate share of contributions

81,533,363                             7,487,559 

Contributions paid to ERS subsequent to the measurement date 1,987,500                                            -   

      Total 96,603,510$               $        53,088,135 

 
 

 
The $1,987,500 reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended August 31, 2021. 
 
The net amounts of the employer’s balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized 
in OPEB expense as follows: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year ended August 31:

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter 

Total  $              41,527,877 

-                             

OPEB Expense 
Amount

8,365,606$                

8,365,606                  

13,377,265                

10,848,865                

570,535                     
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NOTE 22 - PROPERTY TAX 
 
The System's Property tax is levied each October 1 on the basis of assessed values listed as of the prior January 1 for all real 
and business personal property located in System.  
 

 
 
Taxes levied for the years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019, based on the certified rolls, as reported by the Taxing authorities 
amounted to $209,325,728 and $203,806,060 respectively, which includes any penalty and interest assessed if applicable. 
 
Taxes are due by January 31 of the year following the levy and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of that year. 
 
The authorized and assessed tax rates for the System for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows: 
 

 

 
 
 
Tax collections for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows: 
 

 
 
For the years ended August 31, 2020 and 2019 tax collections represent 99% and 97.4% of the tax levy, respectively. Taxes 
assessed are recorded in the System’s financial statements net of the related allowance for uncollectable taxes, based upon the 
System’ expected collection experience. The use of Tax proceeds is restricted to either maintenance and operations or interest 
and sinking expenditures. 
 
Harris and Fort Bend counties ("the Appraisal Districts") are responsible for the recording and appraisal of property for all taxing 
units in their respective counties. The Appraisal Districts are required by State law to assess property at 100% of its appraised 
value. Further, real property must be reappraised at least every four years. Under certain circumstances, taxpayers and taxing 
units, including the System, may challenge orders of the appraisal review boards through various appeals and, if necessary, 
institute legal action. 
 
The System has entered into agreements with the county tax assessors to bill and collect the System’s property taxes, net of a 
collection fee. 

 
 
 

August 31, 2020 August 31, 2019
At August 31: (Tax Year 2019) (Tax Year 2018)

Assessed valuation of the System 266,413,595,740$      251,225,945,441$   
Less: Exemptions (57,636,949,886)        (47,954,489,698)     

Net assessed valuation of the System 208,776,645,854$      203,271,455,743$   

Current Debt Current Debt
Operations Service Total Operations Service Total

Authorized rate per $100 0.50             0.50         1.00                         0.50                     0.50        1.00               
valuation
Assessed rate per $100 0.079205      0.021058  0.100263 0.076751              0.023512 0.100263
valuation

     August 31, 2019     August 31, 2020

2020 2019
Current taxes collected 207,268,131$            198,595,648$         
Delinquent taxes collected 2,391,122 2,908,194
Penalties and interest collected 1,624,041 1,800,243
Total 211,283,294$            203,304,085$         
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 23 - COMPONENT UNITS  
 
The Houston Community College Foundation (the Foundation) – A Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 
The Foundation was organized in the State of Texas on May 13, 1976 to function as a legally separate, non-profit foundation 
and it is controlled by a separate board of trustees. The System does not appoint any of the Foundation’s board members nor 
does it fund or is it obligated to pay debt related to the Foundation. The Foundation’s purpose is (1) to maintain, develop, increase 
and extend the facilities and services of HCC; (2) to provide broad educational opportunities to the System’s students, staff, 
faculty and the residents of the geographical area that the System serves; (3) to solicit and receive by gift, grant, devise, or 
otherwise, property, both real and personal, and to manage and administer the same, and (4) to make contributions, grants, gifts 
and transfers of property to or for the benefit of the System, or to or for the benefit of other tax exempt organizations identified 
and associated with the System. 
 
Using the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-An Amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and No. 34, and GASB No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units – An 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, the System’s management has determined that the Foundation should be reported as a 
discrete component unit of the System because of the nature and significance of its relationship with the System.  The Foundation 
raises and holds economic resources for the direct benefit of HCC.  Accordingly, the Foundation’s financial statements are 
included in the System’s comprehensive annual financial report as a discretely presented component unit as Exhibit 1A – 
Statements of Financial Position - Foundation and Exhibit 2A and 2B – Statements of Activities – Foundation for the fiscal 
years ended August 31, 2019 and 2018.  
 
For complete financial information about the Foundation, please contact the Foundation at:  Houston Community College 
Foundation, 3100 Main, Suite 12B12, Houston, TX 77002 or visit their website at: 
https://www.hccsfoundation.org/page.aspx?pid=767. 
 
NOTE 24 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On October 21, 2020 the Board of Trustees approved the refunding of the following bonds and notes: 1)  $9,460,000 of the 
Junior Lien Student Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011; 2) $765,000 of the Combined Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2014A; 3) $2,750,000 of the Combined Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015; 4) $25,845,000 of the Maintenance 
Tax Notes, Series 2011; 5) $12,480,000 of the Maintenance Tax Notes, Series 2011A; and 6) $57,325,000 of the Limited Tax 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011. It is anticipated that the new Maintenance Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2021, the Limited Tax 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2021, and the Combined Fee Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 will be priced in January 2021 
and closed in February 2021. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(Unaudited) 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM’S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY 

FOR THE LAST THREE MEASUREMENT YEARS** 
 

Fiscal Year Ending August 31*, 2019 2018 2017

System's proportionate share of collective net OPEB 
liability(%) 0.5288372600% 0.55179527% 0.24874785%

System's proportionate share of collective net OPEB 
liability($)

 $      182,780,302  $            163,539,661 84,755,846$             

State's  proportionate share of net OPEB liability 
associated with System 131,107,295                       110,392,282 84,826,192               
     Total 313,887,597$      273,931,943$            169,582,038$           

System's covered payroll 173,839,594        173,191,132              162,660,919             

System's share of collective net OPEB liability as a 
percentage of covered payroll 105.14% 94.43% 52.11%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB 
liability 0.17% 1.27% 2.04%

*The amounts presented above are as of the measurement date of the collective net OPEB liability.

**The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM’S OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS** 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Fiscal Year Ending August 31*, 2020 2019 2018

Legally required contributions 1,987,500$              2,512,107$                2,557,844                     

Actual contributions 1,987,500                2,512,107                  2,557,844                     

Contributions deficiency (excess) -$                             -$                               -$                             

System covered payroll amount 186,517,995$          173,839,594$            173,191,132$               

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 1.07% 1.45% 1.48%

**The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.  

* The amounts presented above are as of System respective fiscal year-end.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NET OPEB LIABILITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 

 
Changes in Benefit Terms 

Under Q/A #4.107 of GASB’s Implementation Guide No. 2017-2, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans 
Other Than Pension Plans, any plan changes that have been adopted and communicated to plan members by the time the 
valuation is prepared must be included in the valuation. Accordingly, this valuation reflects the benefit changes that will 
become effective January 1, 2020, since these changes were communicated to plan members in advance of the preparation 
of the valuation used for this report. The only benefit change for FY2020 for HealthSelect retirees and dependents for 
whom Medicare is not primary is an increase in the out-of-pocket maximum for both HealthSelect and Consumer Directed 
HealthSelect (CDHP) from $6,650 to $6,750 for individuals and from $13,300 to $13,500 for families in order to remain 
consistent with Internal Revenue Service maximums. This minor benefit change is provided for in the FY2020 Assumed 
Per Capita Health Benefit Costs. There are no benefit changes for HealthSelect retirees and dependents for whom Medicare 
is Primary. 
 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 

Since the last valuation was prepared for this plan, assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and assumed Health Benefit 
Cost and Retiree Contribution trends have been updated to reflect recent experience and its effects on our short-term 
expectations. Furthermore, (a) the percentage of current retirees and their spouses not yet eligible to participate in the 
HealthSelect Medicare Advantage Plan and future retirees and their spouses who will elect to participate in the plan at the 
earliest date at which coverage can commence, (b) the percentage of future male retirees assumed to be married and electing 
coverage for their spouse and (c) the percentage of future retirees and future retiree spouses assumed to use tobacco have 
been updated to reflect recent plan experience and expected trends. 
 
In addition, the discount rate assumption was changed from 3.96% to 2.97% as a result of requirements by GASB No. 75 
to utilize the yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds rated AA/Aa (or equivalent) 
or higher in effect on the measurement date. 
 
Demographic Assumptions 

The following assumptions have been updated since the previous valuation to reflect recent plan experience and expected 
trends: 
 

 Percentage of current retirees and retiree spouses not yet eligible to participate in the HealthSelect Medicare 
Advantage Plan and future retirees and retiree spouses who will elect to participate in the plan at the earliest date 
at which coverage can commence. 

 Percentage of future male retirees assumed to be married and electing coverage for their spouse. 
 Percentage of future retirees and future retiree spouses assume to use tobacco. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NET OPEB LIABILITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 

 
Economic Assumptions 
 
Assumed Per Capita Health Benefit Costs and Health Benefit Cost and Retiree Contribution trends have been updated 
since the previous valuation to reflect recent health plan experience and its effects on our short-term expectations. 
 
The discount rate was changed from 3.96% to 2.97% as a result of requirements by GASB No. 75 to utilize the yield or 
index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation bonds rated AA/Aa (or equivalent) or higher in effect on the 
measurement date. 
 
Minor benefit changes described below have been reflected in the FY2020 Assumed Per Capita Health Benefits Costs. 
 
Actuarial assumption changes are described in ERS’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and the ERS Actuarial 
Valuation Report for the year ended August 31, 2019, which can be accessed at: 

https://www.ers.texas.gov/About-ERS/Reports-and-Studies/Reports-on-Overall-ERS-Operations-and-Financial-
Management/2019-CAFR.pdf 

https://www.ers.texas.gov/About-ERS/Reports-and-Studies/ERS-Actuarial-Valuation-Reports/2019-ERS-OPEB-
Valuation-Report-December-2019.pdf 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF SYSTEM’S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE LAST SIX MEASUREMENT YEARS** 
 
 

Year Ending August 31*, 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

System's proportionate share of collective net pension 
liability (%) 0.1734675123% 0.1960476398% 0.2323411497% 0.2261676% 0.2211843% 0.2524331%

System's proportionate share of collective net pension 
liability ($)

 $          90,173,836  $            107,909,379  $        74,290,183  $        85,465,382  $        78,185,706 67,428,372$           

State's  proportionate share of net pension liability 
associated with HCC 55,101,858                             55,835,569            13,365,973 11,565,790          9,346,029            10,129,723             
     Total 145,275,694$        163,744,948$             $        87,656,156  $        97,031,172  $        87,531,735 77,558,095$           

System's covered payroll 144,837,608$        148,417,506$            131,555,086$      119,277,740$      111,062,958$      108,523,260$         

System's share of collective net pension liability as a 
percentage of covered payroll 62.26% 72.71% 56.47% 71.65% 70.40% 62.13%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total 
pension liability 75.24% 73.74% 82.17% 0.780000 78.43% 83.25%

*The amounts presented above are as of the measurement date of the collective net pension liability.

**The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF SYSTEM’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS** 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Fiscal Year Ending August 31*, 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Legally required contributions 6,975,537$           3,869,654$             7,588,046$           7,099,251$           6,832,860$            5,873,294$              

Actual contributions 6,975,537$           3,869,654$             7,588,046$           7,099,251$           6,832,860$            5,873,294$              

Contributions deficiency (excess) -$                         -$                            -$                         -$                         -$                           -$                             

System covered payroll amount 150,697,784$       144,837,608$         148,417,506$       131,555,086$       119,277,740$        111,062,958$          

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 4.63% 2.67% 5.11% 5.40% 5.73% 5.29%

**The schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.  

*** During fiscal year 2020, administration determined that more HCC employees could be classified as instructional or administrative resulting in a reduction

of HCC's contributions and additional contributions made by the State on behalf of HCC.  HCC has initiated the process of requesting credit from the

State for previous contributions related to these employees.

* The amounts presented above are as of System's  respective fiscal year-end.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NET PENSION LIABILITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 

 
Changes of Assumptions 

 The single discount rate as of August 31, 2018 was a blended rate of 6.907 percent and that has changed to the 
long-term rate of return of 7.25 percent as of August 31, 2019. 

 
 With the enactment of SB 3 by the 2019 Texas Legislature, an assumption has been made about how this would 

impact future salaries.  It is assumed that eligible active members will each receive a $2,700 increase in fiscal 
year 2020. This is in addition to the salary increase expected based on the actuarial assumptions. 

 

Changes in Benefit Terms 

There were no changes of benefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the measurement 
period.  A 13th check was paid during fiscal year 2019 with a supplemental appropriation made by the State. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING REVENUES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 
(WITH MEMORANDUM TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019) 

 
Schedule A 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

See Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants 

Total
Educational Auxiliary FY 2020 FY 2019

Unrestricted Restricted Activities Enterprises Total Total
Tuition:

State Funded Courses:
In-District Resident Tuition 20,992,281$        -$                       20,992,281$        -$                       20,992,281$             18,889,646$             
Out-of-District Resident Tuition 31,936,916          -                         31,936,916          -                         31,936,916              27,389,124              
State Funded Continuing Education 5,463,300            5,463,300            -                         5,463,300                6,913,639                

TPEG (Credit) 1,454,917            -                         1,454,917            -                         1,454,917                1,458,688                
TPEG (Non-Credit) 255,745              -                         255,745               -                         255,745                   314,582                   
Non-Resident Tuition 19,886,468          -                         19,886,468          -                         19,886,468              17,298,848              
Non-State Funded Continuing Education 1,066,234            -                         1,066,234            -                         1,066,234                1,419,765                

Total Tuition 81,055,861          -                         81,055,861          -                         81,055,861              73,684,292              

Fees:
    Distance Learning Fees 4,302,931            -                         4,302,931            4,302,931                3,883,324                

Installment Plan Fees 930,711              -                         930,711               -                         930,711                   986,256                   
General Fees 31,930,159          -                         31,930,159          -                         31,930,159              32,362,392              
Laboratory Fees 1,418,237            -                         1,418,237            -                         1,418,237                1,462,791                
Other Fees 17,844,579          -                         17,844,579          -                         17,844,579              12,769,617              
Student Service Fees 1,514,897            73,721                1,588,618            1,843,714            3,432,332                3,925,381                
Total Fees 57,941,514          73,721                58,015,235          1,843,714            59,858,949              55,389,761              

Scholarship Allowances and Discounts:
Remissions and Exemptions-State (13,948,210)         -                         (13,948,210)         -                         (13,948,210)             (12,370,649)             
Remissions and Exemptions-Local (1,120,083)          -                         (1,120,083)           -                         (1,120,083)               (1,429,200)               
Title IV Federal Grants (34,792,895)         -                         (34,792,895)         -                         (34,792,895)             (30,645,030)             
Other Federal Grants (2,483,934)          -                         (2,483,934)           -                         (2,483,934)               (2,507,228)               
TPEG Awards (1,087,046)          -                         (1,087,046)           -                         (1,087,046)               (1,220,319)               
Other State Grants (2,104,542)          -                         (2,104,542)           -                         (2,104,542)               (2,235,673)               
Other Local Grants (1,440,148)          -                         (1,440,148)           -                         (1,440,148)               (1,740,564)               
Total Scholarship Allowances and Discounts (56,976,858)         -                         (56,976,858)         -                         (56,976,858)             (52,148,663)             
Total Net Tuition and Fees 82,020,517          73,721                82,094,238          1,843,714            83,937,952              76,925,390              

Other Operating Revenues:
Federal Grants and Contracts -                         29,265,821          29,265,821          -                         29,265,821              13,664,066              
State Grants and Contracts -                         4,386,846            4,386,846            -                         4,386,846                5,257,785                
Local Grants and Contracts -                         172,245              172,245               -                         172,245                   88,039                     
Non-Governmental Grants and Contracts -                         1,389,647            1,389,647            -                         1,389,647                1,448,396                
Sales and Services 1,178,846            1,140,581            2,319,427            2,319,427                447,777                   
Total Other Operating Revenues 1,178,846            36,355,140          37,533,986          -                         37,533,986              20,906,063              

Auxiliary Enterprises:
Bookstore -                         -                         -                         1,867,627            1,867,627                2,168,389                
Long-Term Parking -                         -                         -                         670,813              670,813                   600,917                   
Rental of Facilities -                         -                         -                         7,135,032            7,135,032                7,464,887                
Restaurant -                         -                         -                         200,468              200,468                   419,968                   
Vending and Other Commissions -                         -                         -                         105,000              105,000                   115,500                   
Total Auxiliary Enterprises -                         -                         -                         9,978,940            9,978,940                10,769,661              

Total Operating Revenues 83,199,363$        36,428,861$        119,628,224$       11,822,654$        131,450,877$           108,601,114$           

         (Exhibit 2)          (Exhibit 2)
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY OBJECT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 
(WITH MEMORANDUM TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019) 

 Schedule B 
 

 
 
 

See Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants 

Salaries Other FY 2020 FY 2019
and Wages State Local Expenses Total Total

Unrestricted Educational Activities
Instruction 108,977,295$    -$                23,474,969$     2,477,001$       134,929,265$    137,211,285$    
Public Service 733,406           -                  157,984           308,616           1,200,006         1,352,255         
Academic Support 23,607,558       -                  4,149,687         5,037,374         32,794,619       33,528,350       
Student Services 24,877,287       -                  5,098,563         2,987,770         32,963,620       32,638,152       
Institutional Support 43,649,555       -                  10,598,565       27,278,951       81,527,071       81,776,845       
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 2,626,728         -                  565,828           26,279,622       29,472,178       31,324,884       
Total Unrestricted Educational Activities 204,471,829     -                  44,045,596       64,369,334       312,886,759     317,831,771     

Restricted Educational Activities
Instruction 472,601           12,437,497       52,692             514,512           13,477,302       10,777,960       
Public Service 4,635,906         -                  782,501           1,524,644         6,943,051         7,959,405         
Academic Support 283,175           2,198,586         63,201             249,152           2,794,114         2,277,629         
Student Services 1,617,633         2,701,318         31,215             1,375,680         5,725,846         5,244,777         
Institutional Support 26,782             5,615,327         1,481               3,308,239         8,951,829         4,649,993         
Scholarships and Fellowships -                  -                  -                  70,043,436       70,043,436       59,527,291       
Total Restricted Educational Activities 7,036,097         22,952,728       931,090           77,015,663       107,935,578     90,437,055       

Total Educational Activities 211,507,926     22,952,728       44,976,686       141,384,997     420,822,337     408,268,826     

Auxiliary Enterprises 1,995,790         -                  645,210           7,119,454         9,760,454         10,272,450       
Depreciation Expense - Buildings -                  -                  -                  24,697,426       24,697,426       23,869,807       
Depreciation Expense - Equipment -                  -                  -                  8,749,112         8,749,112         9,300,207         
Depreciation Expense - Library Books -                  -                  -                  354,939           354,939           365,394           

Total Operating Expenses 213,503,716$    22,952,728$     45,621,896$     182,305,928$    464,384,268$    452,076,684$    

(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit2)

Benefits
Operating Expenses
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 

(WITH MEMORANDUM TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019) 
 

 Schedule C 
 

  Auxiliary FY 2020 FY 2019
 Unrestricted  Restricted  Enterprises Total Total

NON-OPERATING REVENUES:

       State Appropriations:
             Educational and General State Support 68,600,049$        -$                          -$                68,600,049$            68,133,037$          
             State Group Insurance -                           12,648,431 -                  12,648,431 11,864,237
             State Retirement Matching -                           10,312,122 -                  10,312,122 6,706,443
             Other State Appropriations 45,372                 -                            -                  45,372 41,547                   
                 Total State Appropriations 68,645,421 22,960,553 -                  91,605,974 86,745,264

             Maintenance Ad Valorem Taxes 161,157,699 -                            -                  161,157,699 152,465,955

             Debt Service Ad Valorem Taxes -                           46,849,119 -                  46,849,119 46,902,232
             Gifts -                           1,753,254 100,000       1,853,254 2,351,677
             Investment Income, Net 3,961,565 -                            -                  3,961,565 7,155,919
             Title IV Grants -                           88,136,837 -                  88,136,837 87,471,633
             Hurricane Harvey   -                           -                            -                  -                               148,521                 
             Other Non-operating Revenue 5,970,343 1,350                    22,970         5,994,663 2,811,091
                  Total Non-operating Revenues 239,735,028 159,701,113 122,970       399,559,111 386,052,292

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:

             Interest on Capital-Related Debt (28,456,822) -                            -                  (28,456,822) (28,956,205)
             Hurricane Harvey Expenses (Net of Recoveries) -                           -                            -                  -                           -                            
             Other Non-operating Expenses (9,846,086) (1,350)                   -                  (9,847,436) (10,718,448)
                  Total Non-operating Expenses (38,302,908) (1,350)                   -                  (38,304,258) (39,674,653)
NET NON-OPERATING REVENUES 201,432,120$      159,699,763$       122,970$     361,254,853$          346,377,639$        

(Exhibit 2) (Exhibit 2)

 
 
 
 

See Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY SOURCE AND AVAILABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 
(WITH MEMORANDUM TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2019) 

 Schedule D 
 

 
 

Capital Assets
Net of Depreciation

Unrestricted Expendable Non-Expendable & Related Debt Total Yes No

Current:
  Unrestricted (53,561,209)$  -$                    -$                    -$                    (53,561,209)$     (53,561,209)$     -$                    

  Auxiliary enterprises 13,984,285     -                      -                      13,984,285        13,984,285        -                      

Loan 962,043          -                      -                      962,043            -                      962,043            
Endowment: -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Plant: -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

 Unexpended 39,420,570     -                      -                      -                      39,420,570        39,420,570        -                      
 Debt Services -                      12,867,034        -                      -                      12,867,034        -                      12,867,034        
 Investment in Plant -                      -                      -                      417,973,160      417,973,160      -                      417,973,160      
     

 Total Net Position August 31, 2020 (156,354)         13,829,077        -                      417,973,160      431,645,883      (156,354)           431,802,237      
 Exhibit 1

 Total Net Position August 31, 2019 (3,094,311)      13,040,855        -                      383,077,877      393,024,421      (3,094,311)        396,118,732      
Exhibit 1

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 2,937,957$        788,222$          -$                    34,895,283$      38,621,462$      2,937,957$        35,683,505$      

Exhibit 2

Restricted

Detail by Source Available for Current Operations

 
 
 
 

 
 

See Report of Independent Certified Public Accountant
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

(Unaudited) 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATISTICAL SECTION NARRATIVE 

 
Statistical Section 
 
This part of the College’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the College’s overall financial health. 
 
Financial Trends 
 
This segment contains trend information to help the reader understand how the College’s financial performance 
and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity 
 
This segment includes information to help the reader assess the College’s most significant local revenue source, 
the property tax. 
 
Debt Capacity 
 
This segment presents information to help the reader assess the affordability of the College’s current levels of 
outstanding debt and the College’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
 
Economic & Demographic Information 
 
This segment depicts demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within 
which the College’s financial activities take place. 
 
Operating Information 
 
This segment displays service and capital asset data to help the reader understand how the information in the 
College’s financial report relates to the services the College provides and the activities it performs. 
 
Sources: Unless otherwise stated, the information in this section is derived from the comprehensive annual 
financial reports for the relevant year. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands) 

(Unaudited) 
 

 Table 1 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 2019 2018** 2017 2016 2015* 2014 2013 2012 2011

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 417,973    $ 383,077    $ 363,332    $ 374,111    $ 318,344    $ 290,771    $ 244,073    $ 230,706    $ 234,825    $ 207,977    
Restricted - Expendable 13,829      13,041      12,121      18,555      14,035      13,290      14,804      1,216        488           488           
Unrestricted (156)         (3,094)      14,669      73,796      82,082      60,357      114,975    107,142    87,004      73,959      

Total Primary Government,
  Net Position $ 431,646    $ 393,024    $ 390,122    $ 466,462    $ 414,461    $ 364,418    $ 373,852    $ 339,063    $ 322,317    $ 282,424    

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position $ 38,622      $ 2,902        $ (76,340)    $ 52,001      $ 50,043      $ (9,434)      $ 34,789      $ 16,746      $ 39,893      $ 14,879      

  * GASB 68 was implemented in FY 2015 `
** GASB 75 was implemented in FY 2018
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
  Table 2 

  

  

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

OPERATING REVENUES:
Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts $ 83,937,951       $ 76,925,390        $ 75,875,184       $ 78,928,147        $ 79,625,900        $ 75,079,230       $ 70,689,034       $ 71,433,953        $ 71,415,957       $ 67,907,897       

Federal Grants and Contracts 29,265,821       13,664,066        14,618,765       14,092,252        13,844,635        13,782,110       14,019,776       14,702,419        16,848,269       16,064,089       

State Grants and Contracts 4,386,846         5,257,785          7,241,239         6,848,608          6,790,982          9,250,630         5,714,975         6,267,894          5,166,289         6,600,375         

Local Grants and Contracts 172,245            88,039               97,715              148,327             157,041             162,920            116,899            81,407               95,226              275,085            

Non-governmental Grants and Contracts 1,389,647         1,448,396          1,350,083         1,680,496          3,060,584          2,446,357         2,441,076         2,413,531          2,497,892         1,283,150         

Sales and Services of Educational Activities 2,319,427         447,777             281,262            333,874             273,441             177,222            189,043            193,328             329,382            369,530            

Auxiliary Enterprises 9,978,940         10,769,661        9,951,241         12,100,510        10,141,084        13,544,991       16,420,059       16,092,899        16,096,494       14,535,914       

Total Operating Revenues 131,450,877     108,601,114      109,415,489     114,132,214      113,893,668      114,443,460     109,590,862     111,185,431      112,449,510     107,036,040     

NON-OPERATING REVENUES:
State Appropriations 91,605,974       86,745,264        83,382,430       84,194,227        83,877,620        82,249,495       81,675,719       82,105,228        81,839,826       84,838,315       

Ad Valorem Taxes 208,006,818     199,368,187      197,010,814     191,684,394      179,907,211      173,457,004     143,389,744     129,256,277      123,638,019     115,820,065     

Gifts 1,853,254         2,351,677          2,009,979         1,875,561          2,025,562          1,260,854         1,436,292         1,591,888          2,053,638         1,573,601         

Investment Income 3,961,565         7,155,919          4,221,227         3,557,445          2,752,692          2,950,156         3,704,351         (140,747)           789,917            566,945            

Title IV (Pell) 88,136,837       87,471,633        88,168,184       80,531,464        86,117,577        95,673,111       94,092,798       94,423,841        102,023,662     96,171,936       

Other Non-operating Revenues 5,994,663         2,959,612          3,233,099         7,157,578          2,848,147          7,460,036         1,672,149         6,446,858          9,341,129         6,153,631         

Total Non-operating Revenues 399,559,111     386,052,292      378,025,733     369,000,669      357,528,809      363,050,656     325,971,053     313,683,345      319,686,191     305,124,493     

TOTAL REVENUES $ 531,009,988     $ 494,653,406      $ 487,441,222     $ 483,132,883      $ 471,422,478      $ 477,494,116     $ 435,561,915     $ 424,868,776      $ 432,135,701     $ 412,160,533     

Note:  Nursing Shortage Reduction revenue was classified as operating revenue versus non-operating revenue in FY 2017.  All prior periods have been adjusted to reflect this change.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM REVENUES BY SOURCE- CONTINUED 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 Table 2  

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

OPERATING REVENUES:
Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts 15.81% 15.55% 15.57% 16.34% 16.89% 15.72% 16.23% 16.81% 16.53% 16.48%

Federal Grants and Contracts 5.51% 2.76% 3.00% 2.92% 2.94% 2.89% 3.22% 3.46% 3.90% 3.90%

State Grants and Contracts 0.83% 1.06% 1.49% 1.42% 1.44% 1.94% 1.31% 1.48% 1.20% 1.60%

Local Grants and Contracts 0.03% 0.02% 0.02% 0.03% 0.03% 0.03% 0.03% 0.02% 0.02% 0.07%

Non-governmental Grants and Contracts 0.26% 0.29% 0.28% 0.35% 0.65% 0.51% 0.56% 0.57% 0.58% 0.31%

Sales and Services of Educational Activities 0.44% 0.09% 0.06% 0.07% 0.06% 0.04% 0.04% 0.05% 0.08% 0.09%

Auxiliary Enterprises 1.88% 2.18% 2.04% 2.50% 2.15% 2.84% 3.77% 3.79% 3.72% 3.53%

Total Operating Revenues 24.75% 21.95% 22.45% 23.62% 24.16% 23.97% 25.16% 26.17% 26.02% 25.97%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES:
State Appropriations 17.25% 17.54% 17.11% 17.43% 17.79% 17.23% 18.75% 19.32% 18.94% 20.58%

Ad Valorem Taxes 39.17% 40.30% 40.42% 39.68% 38.16% 36.33% 32.92% 30.42% 28.61% 28.10%

Gifts 0.35% 0.48% 0.41% 0.39% 0.43% 0.26% 0.33% 0.37% 0.48% 0.38%

Investment Income 0.75% 1.45% 0.87% 0.74% 0.58% 0.62% 0.85% -0.03% 0.18% 0.14%

Title IV (Pell) 16.60% 17.68% 18.09% 16.67% 18.27% 20.04% 21.60% 22.22% 23.61% 23.33%

Other Non-operating Revenues 1.13% 0.60% 0.66% 1.48% 0.60% 1.56% 0.38% 1.52% 2.16% 1.49%

Total Non-operating Revenues 75.25% 78.05% 77.55% 76.38% 75.84% 76.03% 74.84% 73.83% 73.98% 74.03%

TOTAL REVENUES 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Note:  Nursing Shortage Reduction revenue was classified as operating revenue versus non-operating revenue in FY 2017.  All prior periods have been adjusted to reflect this change.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS  
(Unaudited) 

 Table 3 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Instruction $ 148,406,567      $ 147,989,245      $ 137,284,602      $ 131,976,183      $ 123,860,246      $ 118,383,131      $ 112,628,406      $ 111,931,030      $ 100,319,497      $ 112,617,877      

Public Service 8,143,057          9,311,660          10,193,891        11,251,480        10,885,467        10,295,409        10,628,104        11,638,013        11,868,925        11,766,675        

Academic Support 35,588,733        35,805,979        34,548,211        33,437,021        32,357,317        31,781,726        26,699,201        25,060,153        22,771,173        19,616,391        

Student Services 38,689,466        37,882,929        35,658,710        32,769,639        30,877,171        31,448,417        29,244,604        29,165,865        24,906,487        31,901,438        

Institutional Support 90,478,900        86,426,838        77,856,244        76,337,702        69,312,047        60,572,436        60,301,482        54,332,112        56,815,639        53,657,535        

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 29,472,178        31,324,884        29,844,750        27,636,411        27,396,317        28,820,028        35,885,631        31,438,811        27,969,778        28,350,817        

Scholarships and Fellowships 70,043,436        59,527,291        62,863,907        55,435,891        58,153,241        61,638,293        58,733,940        57,092,409        61,504,372        65,346,087        

Auxiliary Enterprises 9,760,454          10,272,450        11,571,893        11,064,979        11,839,737        13,853,632        17,233,929        18,760,757        15,736,795        14,607,330        

Depreciation 33,801,477        33,535,408        26,031,782        24,303,365        22,724,776        21,484,508        19,743,511        19,492,034        18,848,802        17,067,466        

Total Operating Expenses 464,384,268      452,076,684      425,853,990      404,212,671      387,406,319      378,277,581      371,098,808      358,911,184      340,741,468      354,931,616      

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:

Interest on Capital Related Debt 28,456,822        28,956,205        30,411,867        17,991,413        19,535,342        24,312,876        16,346,638        36,827,644        28,498,392        29,424,886        

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -                     -                     -                     -                     5,517,511          -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Hurricane Expense, Net -                     -                     184,313             -                     -                     -                     -                     12,431               626,194             284,103             

Other Non-operating Expenses 9,847,436          10,718,448        8,395,813          8,927,703          8,920,785          7,940,686          13,327,637        12,371,070        22,377,547        12,639,933        

Total Non-operating Expenses 38,304,258        39,674,653        38,991,993        26,919,116        33,973,638        32,253,562        29,674,275        49,211,145        51,502,133        42,348,922        

Total Expenses $ 502,688,526      $ 491,751,337      $ 464,845,983      $ 431,131,787      $ 421,379,957      $ 410,531,143      $ 400,773,083      $ 408,122,329      $ 392,243,601      $ 397,280,538      

Note: Property tax expense was classified as non-operating expense versus operating expense in FY 2017.  All prior periods have been adjusted to reflect this change.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROGRAM EXPENSES BY FUNCTION - CONTINUED 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS  
(Unaudited) 

 Table 3 
 

  

 
 

 
 
 
 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Instruction 29.52% 30.09% 29.53% 30.61% 29.39% 28.84% 28.10% 27.43% 25.58% 28.35%

Public Service 1.62% 1.89% 2.19% 2.61% 2.58% 2.51% 2.65% 2.85% 3.03% 2.96%

Academic Support 7.08% 7.28% 7.43% 7.76% 7.68% 7.74% 6.66% 6.14% 5.81% 4.94%

Student Services 7.70% 7.70% 7.67% 7.60% 7.33% 7.66% 7.30% 7.15% 6.35% 8.03%

Institutional Support 18.00% 17.58% 16.75% 17.71% 16.45% 14.75% 15.05% 13.31% 14.48% 13.51%

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 5.86% 6.37% 6.42% 6.41% 6.50% 7.02% 8.95% 7.70% 7.13% 7.14%

Scholarships and Fellowships 13.93% 12.11% 13.52% 12.86% 13.80% 15.01% 14.66% 13.99% 15.68% 16.45%

Auxiliary Enterprises 1.94% 2.09% 2.49% 2.57% 2.81% 3.37% 4.30% 4.60% 4.01% 3.68%

Depreciation 6.72% 6.82% 5.60% 5.64% 5.39% 5.23% 4.93% 4.78% 4.81% 4.30%

Total Operating Expenses 92.38% 91.93% 91.61% 93.76% 91.94% 92.14% 92.60% 87.94% 86.87% 89.34%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:

Interest on Capital Related Debt 5.66% 5.89% 6.54% 4.17% 4.64% 5.92% 4.08% 9.02% 7.27% 7.41%

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1.31% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Hurricane Ike Expense, Net 0.00% 0.00% 0.04% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.16% 0.07%

Other Non-operating Expenses 1.96% 2.18% 1.81% 2.07% 2.12% 1.93% 3.33% 3.03% 5.71% 3.18%

Total Non-operating Expenses 7.62% 8.07% 8.39% 6.24% 8.06% 7.86% 7.40% 12.06% 13.13% 10.66%

Total Expenses 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Note: Property tax expense was classified as non-operating expense versus operating expense in FY 2017.  All prior periods have been adjusted to reflect this change.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TUITION AND FEES 

LAST TEN ACADEMIC YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 Table 4 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Academic 
Year 

Semester  Tuition 
 General 

Fee 
 Techno-
logy Fee 

 Student 
Activity 

Services Fee 

 Recrea- 
tion Fee 

 Cost for 12 
SCH  

Increase from 
Prior Semester

2019-2020 Fall $ 396 $ 306 $ 204.00 $ 12 $ 6 $ 924.00 6.9%
2018-2019 Spring 372 306 168.00 12 6 864.00 5.9%
2018-2019 Fall 372 306 120.00 12 6 816.00 0.0%
2017-2018 Fall 372 306 120.00 12 6 816.00 0.0%
2016-2017 Fall 372 306 120.00 12 6 816.00 0.0%
2015-2016 Fall 372 306 120.00 12 6 816.00 0.1%
2014-2015 Fall 372 306 118.80 12 6 814.80 0.0%
2013-2014 Fall 372 306 118.80 12 6 814.80 0.1%
2012-2013 Fall 372 306 117.60 12 6 813.60 0.1%
2011-2012 Fall 372 306 116.40 12 6 812.40 0.1%
2010-2011 Summer 372 306 115.20 12 6 811.20 18.4%
2010-2011 Fall 300 264 103.20 12 6 685.20 0.2%

Note: Recreation Fee previously known as Athletic Fee.

IN-DISTRICT

SEMESTER CREDIT HOUR (SCH)

In addition students may incur course related fees such as laboratory fees, testing fees, distance education fees and certification fees.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TUITION AND FEES - CONTINUED 

LAST TEN ACADEMIC YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 4 
  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Academic 
Year 

Semester  Tuition 

 Out-of-
District 
General 

Fee 

 Techno-
logy Fee 

 Student 
Activity 

Services Fee 

 Recrea- 
tion Fee 

 Cost for 12 
SCH  

Increase from 
Prior Semester

2019-2020 Fall $ 1,452     $ 402 $ 204.00 $ 12 $ 6 $ 2,076.00 8.1%
2018-2019 Spring 1,332     402 168.00 12 6 1,920.00 14.3%
2018-2019 Fall 1,140     402 120.00 12 6 1,680.00 0.0%
2017-2018 Fall 1,140     402 120.00 12 6 1,680.00 0.0%
2016-2017 Fall 1,140     402 120.00 12 6 1,680.00 0.0%
2015-2016 Fall 1,140     402 120.00 12 6 1,680.00 0.1%
2014-2015 Fall 1,140     402 118.80 12 6 1,678.80 0.0%
2013-2014 Fall 1,140     402 118.80 12 6 1,678.80 0.1%
2012-2013 Fall 1,140     402 117.60 12 6 1,677.60 0.1%
2011-2012 Fall 1,140     402 116.40 12 6 1,676.40 3.8%
2010-2011 Summer 1,080     402 115.20 12 6 1,615.20 14.0%
2010-2011 Fall 972        324 103.20 12 6 1,417.20 6.4%

Note: Recreation Fee previously known as Athletic Fee.

SEMESTER CREDIT HOUR (SCH)

OUT-OF-DISTRICT

In addition students may incur course related fees such as laboratory fees, testing fees, distance education fees and certification fees.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TUITION AND FEES - CONTINUED 

LAST TEN ACADEMIC YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 Table 4 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Academic 
Year 

Semester  Tuition 

 Out-of-
State 

General 
Fee 

 Techno-
logy Fee 

 Student 
Activity 

Services Fee 

 Recrea- 
tion Fee 

 Cost for 12 
SCH  

Increase from 
Prior Semester

2019-2020 Fall $ 1,812     $ 600 $ 204.00 $ 12 $ 6 $ 2,634.00 11.7%
2018-2019 Spring 1,572     600 168.00 12 6 2,358.00 25.6%
2018-2019 Fall 1,140     600 120.00 12 6 1,878.00 0.0%
2017-2018 Fall 1,140     600 120.00 12 6 1,878.00 0.0%
2016-2017 Fall 1,140     600 120.00 12 6 1,878.00 0.0%
2015-2016 Fall 1,140     600 120.00 12 6 1,878.00 0.1%
2014-2015 Fall 1,140     600 118.80 12 6 1,876.80 0.0%
2013-2014 Fall 1,140     600 118.80 12 6 1,876.80 0.1%
2012-2013 Fall 1,140     600 117.60 12 6 1,875.60 0.1%
2011-2012 Fall 1,140     600 116.40 12 6 1,874.40 3.4%
2010-2011 Summer 1,080     600 115.20 12 6 1,813.20 7.1%

2010-2011 Fall 972        600 103.20 12 6 1,693.20 7.7%

Note: Recreation Fee previously known as Athletic Fee.

OUT-OF-STATE/INTERNATIONAL

In addition students may incur course related fees such as laboratory fees, testing fees, distance education fees and certification fees.

SEMESTER CREDIT HOUR (SCH)
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ASSESSED VALUE AND TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE OF PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 

 Table 5 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal 
Year

Assessed Valuation 
of Property

Less: Exemptions & 
Abatements

Taxable Assessed 
Value

(TAV)

Ratio of Taxable 
Assessed Value 

to Assessed 
Value

Maintenance
 & Operations

Debt    
Service

Total Tax
Rate (a)

2020 $     266,413,595,740 $       57,636,949,886 $     208,776,645,854 78.37% $ 0.079205 $ 0.021058 $ 0.100263

2019     251,225,945,441       47,954,489,698     203,271,455,743 80.91% 0.076751 0.023512 0.100263

2018     242,829,176,276       42,433,914,452     200,395,261,824 82.53% 0.076652 0.023611 0.100263

2017     238,048,215,381       44,312,008,221     193,736,207,160 81.39% 0.075277 0.024986 0.100263

2016     221,458,121,257       42,287,303,553     179,170,817,704 80.91% 0.075631 0.026311 0.101942

2015     198,955,482,183       36,077,649,997     162,877,832,186 81.87% 0.077055 0.029835 0.106890

2014     180,734,029,067       34,213,942,090     146,520,086,977 81.07% 0.077055 0.020118 0.097173

2013     145,875,030,461       12,890,703,534     132,984,326,927 91.16% 0.079673 0.017500 0.097173

2012     159,141,889,758       31,729,564,366     127,412,325,392 80.06% 0.083399 0.013823 0.097222

2011     157,165,651,239       31,190,173,147     125,975,478,092 80.15% 0.074901 0.017319 0.092220

Notes: Property is assessed at full market value.

(a) Total Tax Rate is per $100 Taxable Assessed Valuation

Source: Local Appraisal Districts

Tax Rate
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT1 BEFORE CONTACT HOUR ADJUSTMENTS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 6a 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appropriation Funding Elements (Allocated) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

State Appropriation Contact Hour Funding (CH) 58,499,161$ 60,710,669$ 60,712,276$   63,177,743$ 63,177,743$ 62,190,430$ 62,190,430$ 70,326,503$ 70,326,503$ 70,337,113$ 

State Appropriation Student Success Points (SSP) 8,170,482     6,741,962     6,741,962       6,484,471     6,484,471     6,458,505     6,458,505     -               -               -               

State Appropriation Core Operations (CO) 680,406        680,406        680,406          500,000        500,000        500,000        500,000        -               -               -               

 State Appropriation Bachelor of Applied Technology (BAT) -               -               -                  -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

 State Appropriation Non-Formula Items 1,250,000     -               -                  -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

Total 68,600,049$ 68,133,037$ 68,134,644$   70,162,214$ 70,162,214$ 69,148,935$ 69,148,935$ 70,326,503$ 70,326,503$ 70,337,113$ 

1 General Appropriations Act, SB 1, 85th Texas Legislature, Section 1 (page III-209) - Informational Listing of Appropriated Funds.

Note: The requirements for Tables 6 were changed by the THECB in fiscal year 2018.

Source: THECB - Ten Pay Schedule for FY 2020 thru FY 2010.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATE APPROPRIATION PER FTSE  

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 6b 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year

State 
Appropriation 
(Unrestricted) 
From Sch C* FTSE 

1

State
Appropriation

per FTSE

2020 68,600,049$       36,104         1,900$                

2019 68,133,037         36,242         1,880                  

2018 68,134,644         37,551         1,814                  

2017 70,276,780         38,065         1,846                  

2016 70,162,218         38,518         1,822                  

2015 69,148,935         39,721         1,741                  

2014 69,148,935         38,766         1,784                  

2013 70,014,003         38,958         1,797                  

2012 70,232,038         40,486         1,735                  

2011 65,957,104         41,274         1,598                  

* Actual Received

1 In order to provide consistency with other reporting, HCC has elected to adopt the THECB standard methodology for calculating FTSE that is used for benchmarking and HCC’s internal KPI’s (Key Performance 
Indicator). Prior year calculations have been restated to reflect this change. The FTSE ratios calculated and published by THECB are based on CBM submissions and are calculated as follows: Fiscal Year FTSE (Full-
Time Student Equivalent) is equal to the sum of state funded (Fall SCH [Semester Credit Hours] + Spring SCH + Summer SCH for the current fiscal year, or 30 SCH) plus state funded continuing education (Fall CH 
(Contact Hours) + Spring CH + Summer CH for the current fiscal year, or 900 CH).
Source: Schedule C (AFR) and HCC Certified Reports (CBM004 & CBM00C).
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATE APPROPRIATION PER FUNDED CONTACT HOUR (CH) 

CONTRACT HOUR PORTION ONLY OF STATE APPROPRIATION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
 

Table 6c 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

Fiscal Year

State 
Appropriation 

(Unrestricted) (1)
Academic 

CH
Technical

CH

Continuing 
Education 

CH
Total Funded 

CH

State
Appropriation
per Funded CH

2020* 58,499,161$         14,734,611  4,941,920           1,715,532     21,392,063   2.73$                

2019* 60,710,669           14,735,065  4,961,424           1,843,055     21,539,544   2.82                  

2018* 60,712,276           15,688,714  4,844,368           2,019,420     22,552,502   2.69                  

2017* 63,177,743           15,443,656  5,298,512           2,296,406     23,038,574   2.74                  

2016* 63,177,743           15,527,528  5,762,048           2,146,857     23,436,433   2.70                  

2015* 62,190,430           15,873,248  6,122,448           2,290,228     24,285,924   2.56                  

2014* 62,190,430           15,931,744  5,822,268           1,980,830     23,734,842   2.62                  

2013 70,014,003           16,237,296  5,744,810           1,933,271     23,915,377   2.93                  

2012 70,232,038           17,354,256  5,822,072           1,798,940     24,975,268   2.81                  

2011 65,957,104           17,802,080  5,924,078           1,914,445     25,640,603   2.57                  

1 State funded contact hour appropriation as it appears in schedule 6a.

Note: State funded contact hours for Fall, Spring, and Summer of the current fiscal year.

*Formula funding methodology changed beginning in Fiscal Year 2014.

Source: HCC Certified Reports (CBM004 and CBM00C).
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STATE APPROPRIATION PER STUDENT SUCCESS POINT (SSP) - ANNUALIZED 

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 6d 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

Fiscal Year

SSP State 
Appropriation 

(Unrestricted) 
1

3-Year 
Weighted
Average 

SSP 
2

Annual 
Appropriation 

per SSP

2020 8,170,482$           80,683         101.27$              

2019 6,741,962             78,597         85.78                  

2018 6,741,962             78,597         85.78                  

2017 6,484,471             75,145         86.29                  

2016 6,484,471             75,145         86.29                  

2015 6,458,505             69,775         92.56                  

2014 6,458,505             69,775         92.56                  

2013 -                        -                   -                      

2012 -                        -                   -                      

2011 -                        -                   -                      

1
 State funded student success point appropriation as it appears in table 6a.

Source: Obtained from THECB Ten-Pay Schedules.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
 STUDENT SUCCESS POINTS (SSP) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 6e 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Math Readiness 3,807              4,928            3,255            3,250              2,738            2,376            2,395            3,440            7,176            5,000            

Read Readiness 1,456              1,775            1,316            1,384              983               1,115            1,579            2,517            2,253            1,846            

Write Readiness 1,563              2,161            1,258            1,295              1,087            941               984               1,412            1,963            1,620            

Students Who Pass FCL Math Course 7,692              7,815            7,795            7,968              9,383            8,599            7,748            7,484            9,044            7,288            

Students Who Pass FCL Read Course 8,155              8,108            8,127            7,452              7,279            7,038            7,598            8,060            7,251            1,294            

Students Who Pass FCL Write Course 6,998              6,431            6,514            6,311              6,355            6,452            6,540            6,210            2,418            744               

Students Who Complete 15 SCH 15,521            15,709          15,574          15,823            16,241          15,669          15,326          15,657          17,330          18,885          

Students Who Complete 30 SCH 9,687              10,130          9,902            10,142            10,130          9,696            9,566            9,828            10,691          10,846          

Student Transfers to a 4-Yr Inst 8,476              8,452            8,700            8,996              8,962            8,736            9,044            8,856            4,050            3,622            

Degrees, CCCs, or Certs (Undup) 13,534            14,392          14,486          15,466            15,504          11,690          11,480          10,998          9,990            8,770            

Degrees or Certs in Crit ical Fields 2,617              2,176            2,385            2,498              2,178            2,124            2,174            2,043            2,030            1,915            

Total Annual Student Success Points 79,506            82,075          79,312          80,583            80,840          74,436          74,433          76,504          74,195          61,829          

Source: Obtained from THECB Ten-Pay Schedules, Accountability System for FY 2017, FY 2018, FY 2019.

Student Success Point (Weighted) 
Elements

Note: These are the student success points that are the basis of the 3-year rolling average for the calculation of the biennium allocation of state funding for student success.  For instance fiscal 
years 2016, 2015, and 2014 form the basis for the weighted 3-year rolling average that is used for the allocation of state funds for the 2018-2019 biennium.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS  
(Taxable Value) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 7 
 

 
 
 

 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Taxpayer Industry

Centerpoint Energy Inc Utility $             1,801,934,275 $            1,737,031,171 $               989,802,949 $            1,644,000,381 $            1,626,152,344 $            1,418,862,516 $ 1,362,799,831 $            1,382,750,044 $           1,153,697,187 $            1,119,456,415 

BSREP 1HC-4HC* Real Estate                781,660,663               786,877,979               797,862,507               737,834,871               986,583,880               792,215,117 917,216,307               831,337,622              716,169,026            1,129,509,857 

Cullen Allen Holdings Lp Real Estate                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

Hines Interests Ltd Ptnrsp Real Estate                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -             1,163,749,277               967,638,791 

AT&T Mobility LLC Utility                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                318,206,364               446,070,581 

Tpg 2101 Citywest 1 & 2 Lp Real Estate                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                 497,060,529 

Chevron Chemical Co Oil & Gas                961,125,865               962,752,120            1,017,824,620            1,141,470,547            1,179,883,292            1,084,645,391 1,066,441,442               982,653,385              724,298,902               627,685,117 

Anheuser Busch Inc Brewery                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                357,792,263               366,424,086 

Houston Refining Oil & Gas                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

Valero Energy Corp Oil & Gas                607,940,208               695,743,538                                -                 721,980,186               591,345,920                                -                 418,086,374               426,028,458              363,437,432                                -   

Teachers Insurance Insurance                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

Shell Oil Co Oil & Gas                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                 492,784,337                               -                                  -                334,605,330               331,875,591 

HG Galleria I II III LP Real Estate                716,107,566               619,381,877               635,939,145               679,040,894               687,114,648               508,214,845               475,503,575               385,054,953              363,274,752               319,442,735 

Exxon Mobil Corp Oil & Gas                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                317,979,103               305,020,231 

1000 Louisiana LP Real Estate                                 -                                 -                 476,007,332               516,382,503               551,072,650               499,000,000               504,063,645               426,551,193                               -                                  -   

Texas Tower LTD Real Estate                                 -                                 -                 483,158,521               501,098,531               547,808,760                                -                 562,735,621               409,839,382                               -                                  -   

Four Oaks Place Operating LP Real Estate                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                 464,133,747               401,202,733                               -                                  -   

BG HOLDCO LLC Real Estate                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                 444,102,836               398,000,000                               -                                  -   

BUSYCON Properties LLC Real Estate                                 -                 480,421,218               484,510,539               512,787,835                                -                 505,450,307               536,989,676               453,269,103                               -                                  -   

PKY City West 1-4, POC, San* Real Estate                764,244,535               843,913,327               852,336,214               715,139,095            1,188,888,678            1,115,262,076                               -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

One, Two & Three Allen Center 
CO LLC

Real Estate                790,939,684               788,054,141               785,887,656               857,457,136               924,339,870               866,158,501                               -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

Flint Hill Resources Houston Oil & Gas                                 -                                 -                 459,371,730                               -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

GWP (Greenway Plaza) Real Estate                855,562,137               820,850,180                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

Finger FSC Real Estate                581,916,015               510,735,740                                -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

Southwestern Bell & ATT 
Mobility

Utility                                 -                                 -                                  -                                 -                 553,335,269               476,957,952                               -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

HCG Block 69 LLC Industrial 
Services

               503,452,103                               -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                  -                                 -                                  -                                 -                                  -   

Totals $ 8,364,883,051           $ 8,245,761,291          $ 6,982,701,213           $ 8,027,191,979          $ 8,836,525,311          $ 7,759,551,042          $ 6,752,073,054          $ 6,096,686,873          $ 5,813,209,636          $ 6,110,183,933           

$ 208,776,645,854       $ 203,271,455,743      $ 200,395,261,824       $ 193,736,207,160      $ 179,170,817,704      $ 162,877,832,186      $ 146,520,086,977      $ 132,984,326,927      $ 127,412,325,392      $ 125,975,478,092       

Source: Local County Appraisal District
*Note: In prior years BSREP was Crescent Real Estate and PKY City West was Cousins Greenway & POC.

Total Taxable Assessed Value

Taxable Assessed Value (TAV) by Tax Year
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS - CONTINUED  

(Taxable Value) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
 

Table 7 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Industry

Utility 0.86% 0.85% 0.49% 0.85% 0.91% 0.87% 0.93% 1.04% 0.91% 0.89%
Real Estate 0.37% 0.39% 0.40% 0.38% 0.55% 0.49% 0.63% 0.63% 0.56% 0.90%
Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.91% 0.77%
Utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.35%
Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.39%
Oil & Gas 0.46% 0.47% 0.51% 0.59% 0.66% 0.67% 0.73% 0.74% 0.57% 0.50%
Brewery 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.28% 0.29%
Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Oil & Gas 0.29% 0.34% 0.00% 0.37% 0.33% 0.00% 0.29% 0.32% 0.29% 0.00%
Insurance 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00% 0.26% 0.26%
Real Estate 0.34% 0.30% 0.32% 0.35% 0.38% 0.31% 0.32% 0.29% 0.29% 0.25%
Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.24%
Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.24% 0.27% 0.31% 0.31% 0.34% 0.32% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.24% 0.26% 0.31% 0.00% 0.38% 0.31% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.32% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00%

Real Estate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.30% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.00% 0.24% 0.24% 0.26% 0.00% 0.31% 0.37% 0.34% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.37% 0.42% 0.43% 0.37% 0.66% 0.68% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.38% 0.39% 0.39% 0.44% 0.52% 0.53% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Oil & Gas 0.00% 0.00% 0.23% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.41% 0.40% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Real Estate 0.28% 0.25% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Utility 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.31% 0.29% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Industrial 
Services

0.24% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

4.01% 4.06% 3.48% 4.14% 4.93% 4.76% 4.61% 4.58% 4.56% 4.85%

District
Crescent Real Estate and PKY City West was Cousins Greenway & POC.

% of Taxable Assessed Value (TAV) by Tax Year
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN TAX YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 8 

 

 
 

 
 

Fiscal Year
Tax Rate Per 

$100
Tax Base 

(Assessed Value) Total Tax Levy

Actual 
Collections per 

AFR
% of 
Levy 

2020 $ 0.100263      $ 208,776,645,854      $ 209,325,728       $       207,268,131 99.02%

2019 0.100263      203,271,455,743      203,806,060             198,595,648 97.44%

2018 0.100263      200,395,261,824      200,922,301             196,382,374 97.74%

2017 0.100263      193,736,207,160      194,245,733             192,672,263 99.19%

2016 0.101942      179,170,817,704      182,650,315             179,069,265 98.04%

2015 0.106890      162,877,832,186 174,100,115             173,168,964 99.47%

2014 0.097173      146,520,086,977 142,377,964             141,871,329 99.64%

2013 0.097173      132,984,326,927 129,224,860             126,900,573 98.20%

2012 0.097222      127,412,325,392      123,872,811       121,247,023     97.88%

2011 0.092220      125,975,478,092      116,179,580       113,187,929     97.42%

Source: Local Tax Assessor/Collectors and District records.

Collected within the Fiscal 
Year of the Levy
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 9 
 

 

 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

General Obligation Bonds $ 478,975,884             497,085,140             $ 511,685,732             $ 524,978,521             $ 540,213,663             $ 552,429,370             $ 568,407,151             $ 578,139,157          $ 126,509,613             $ 122,965,813             

Maintenance Tax Bonds 64,900,037               30,747,737               33,873,578               34,717,506               

Notes 43,420,166               90,038,192               97,208,764               106,793,553             151,938,465             160,781,387             168,926,738             177,016,887          184,862,037             169,764,659             

Less: Funds Restricted -                            -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                -                                

for Debt Service -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                -                                

Net General Bonded Debt 587,296,087             617,871,070             642,768,073             666,489,579             692,152,128             713,210,757             737,333,889             755,156,045          311,371,650             292,730,472             

Per Capita $ 236.74                      249.07                      $ 260.83                      $ 268.21                      $ 284.54                      $ 293.98                      $ 319.47                      $ 333.59                   $ 139.69                      $ 134.63                      

Per FTSE $ 16,266.79                 17,048.48                 $ 17,117.20                 $ 17,509.25                 $ 17,969.57                 $ 17,955.51                 $ 19,020.12                 $ 19,383.85              $ 19,291.92                 $ 19,002.32                 

As a Percentage of 
   Taxable Assessed Value

0.28% 0.30% 0.32% 0.34% 0.39% 0.44% 0.50% 0.57% 0.24% 0.23%

Revenue Bonds $ 167,543,207             191,380,394             $ 217,121,333             $ 240,546,861             $ 261,350,284             $ 288,802,667             $ 306,455,246             $ 323,322,694          $ 342,071,187             $ 341,086,330             

Notes 18,402,492               18,793,421               4,428,497                 2,395,310                 673,299                    1,346,598                 -                            -                         -                            691,584                    

Capital Lease Obligations -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                1,304,824                 

Total Outstanding Debt $ 773,241,786             828,044,885             $ 864,317,903             $ 909,431,751             $ 954,175,711             $ 1,003,360,022          $ 1,043,789,134          $ 1,078,478,739       $ 653,442,837             $ 635,813,210             

Per Capita 312                           334                           351                           $ 366                           392                           $ 414                           $ 452                           $ 476                        $ 293                           $ 292                           

Per FTSE 21,417                      22,848                      23,017                      $ 23,892                      24,772                      $ 25,260                      $ 26,925                      $ 27,683                   $ 16,140                      $ 15,405                      

As a Percentage of 
   Taxable Assessed Value

0.37% 0.41% 0.43% 0.47% 0.53% 0.62% 0.71% 0.81% 0.51% 0.50%

In order to provide consistency with other reporting, HCC has elected to adopt the THECB standard methodology for calculating FTSE that is used for benchmarking and HCC’s 
internal KPI’s (Key Performance Indicator). Prior year calculations have been restated to reflect this change. The FTSE ratios calculated and published by THECB are based on CBM 
submissions and are calculated as follows: Fiscal Year FTSE (Full-T ime Student Equivalent) is equal to the sum of state funded (Fall SCH [Semester Credit  Hours] + Spring SCH + 
Summer SCH for the current fiscal year, or 30 SCH) plus state funded continuing education (Fall CH (Contact Hours) + Spring CH + Summer CH for the current fiscal year, or 900 
CH).
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Table 10  
 

 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE $ 208,776,645,854    203,271,455,743    $ 200,395,261,824    $ 193,736,207,160    $ 179,170,817,704    

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:

Statutory Tax Levy Limit for Debt Service 1,043,883,229        1,016,357,279        1,001,976,309        968,681,036           895,854,089           

Less: Funds Restricted for Repayment of 

General Obligation Bonds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Net General Obligation Debt 1,043,883,229        1,016,357,279        1,001,976,309        968,681,036           895,854,089           

Current Year Debt Service Requirements 36,418,449             36,494,619             33,463,594             33,832,124             32,100,119             

Excess of Statutory Limit for Debt 

Service over Current Requirements $ 1,007,464,781        979,862,660           $ 968,512,715           $ 934,848,912           $ 863,753,970           

Net Current Requirements as a % 

of Statutory Limit 3.49% 3.59% 3.34% 3.49% 3.58%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE $ 162,877,832,166    146,520,086,977    132,984,326,927    $ 127,412,325,392    $ 125,975,478,092    

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:

Statutory Tax Levy Limit for Debt Service 814,389,161           735,016,644           664,921,635           637,061,627           629,877,207           

Less: Funds Restricted for Repayment of 

General Obligation Bonds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Net General Obligation Debt 814,389,161           735,016,644           664,921,635           637,061,627           629,877,207           

Current Year Debt Service Requirements 31,529,519             28,852,217             22,600,842             18,904,514             20,616,717             

Excess of Statutory Limit for Debt 

Service over Current Requirements $ 782,859,642           706,164,427           642,320,793           $ 618,157,113           $ 609,260,490           

Net Current Requirements as a % 

of Statutory Limit 3.87% 3.93% 3.40% 2.97% 3.27%

Net assessed valuation has been restated for prior years to conform to property tax footnote in AFR.

Note: Texas Education Code Section 130.122 limits the debt service tax levy of community colleges to $0.50 per hundred dollars taxable assessed valuation.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
 (Unaudited)  

Table 11 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Continuing
Technology Registration Laboratory Education Other Interest Vending Bookstore Rental

Fiscal Year Total Tuition Fees Fees Fees Fees Fees Income Commission Commission Revenue
2020 $ 92,184,015   $ 18,567,645    $ 12,576,457     $ 31,930,159    $ 1,418,237   $ 7,038,203     $ 8,230,184      $ 3,970,181  $ 105,000   $ 1,867,627    $ 6,480,321      
2019 88,442,146   16,259,037    7,552,392       32,362,392    1,461,786   9,166,992     7,912,994      4,939,438  115,500   2,168,389    6,503,226      
2018 84,544,426   15,539,949    5,432,664       33,919,617    1,680,583   9,336,141     7,340,130      3,237,953  126,000   2,367,482    5,563,907      
2017 86,675,262   15,524,223    5,424,763       33,979,683    1,690,989   10,690,264   7,225,312      2,012,777  132,930   2,796,712    7,197,608      
2016 84,059,232   15,564,359    5,466,412       34,302,596    1,709,948   10,583,589   7,140,293      1,109,495  135,680   1,915,983    6,130,877      
2015 98,017,475   11,646,452    5,639,728       51,188,252    1,674,943   11,523,728   7,601,377      543,991     140,275   2,623,595    5,435,135      
2014 94,161,412   11,442,938    5,614,551       50,458,748    1,779,425   9,093,829     7,066,095      432,133     201,162   2,884,880    5,187,651      
2013 94,956,856   11,731,661    5,747,728       50,940,723    1,828,481   9,136,539     7,031,565      432,022     129,999   2,786,137    5,192,001      
2012 98,214,059   12,206,115    5,998,853       53,283,093    1,974,359   9,330,828     7,234,999      303,384     151,823   2,864,738    4,865,866      
2011 89,655,895   10,549,582    4,930,929       48,356,423    2,085,644   8,614,733     6,777,965      260,462     175,322   2,693,341    5,211,494      

Coverage
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Ratio

2020 $ 19,100,000   $ 8,258,833      $ 27,358,833     3.37
2019 17,035,000   8,636,030      25,671,030     3.45
2018 17,630,000   10,113,836    27,743,836     3.05
2017 18,175,000   9,686,993      27,861,993     3.11
2016 15,640,000   8,560,997      24,200,997     3.47
2015 12,545,000   8,421,828      20,966,828     4.67
2014 11,320,000   9,658,049      20,978,049     4.49
2013 13,435,000   10,254,199    23,689,199     4.01
2012 12,715,000   10,579,416    23,294,416     4.22
2011 11,335,000   10,712,486    22,047,486     4.07

Note: Beginning in FY 2016, Out-of-District Fees were reclassed from Registration Fees to Tuition (25% of Tuition is pledged).  Prior years have been reclassed for comparison.

Pledged Revenues

Debt Service Requirements 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS - TAXING DISTRICT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 12 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Calendar 
Year 

Service Area 
Population 

Service Area 
Personal Income

Service Area 
Personal Income 

Per Capita

Service Area 
Unemployment 

Rate
2019 2,480,760 $ 90,071,434,080      $ 36,308 2.0%
2018 2,464,333 92,141,410,870      37,390 3.0%
2017 2,484,931 88,789,069,561      35,731 4.0%
2016 2,432,543 81,234,773,485      33,395 3.3%
2015 2,426,057 75,280,548,710      31,030 3.4%
2014 2,308,004 68,275,374,328      29,582 3.7%
2013 2,263,741 62,320,789,730      27,530 5.4%
2012 2,228,995 64,750,075,755      29,049 4.8%
2011 2,174,361 61,960,591,056      28,496 5.1%
2010 2,174,919 60,334,427,979      27,741 5.1%

Sources: HCC Service Area Demographics Report.
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Houston-Sugar Land-Baytown MSA  
(Austin, Brazoria, Chambers, Fort Bend, 
Galveston, Harris, Liberty Montgomery, 

San Jacinto, Waller)
June 
2020

June 
2019

June 
2018

June 
2017

June 
2016

July 
2015

June 
2014

June 
2013

June 
2012

June 
2011

Trade, Transportation, & Utilities 607,600 630,400 629,200 603,200 615,300 611,900 594,900 564,300 547,800 527,800
Professional & Business Services 500,800 516,400 523,000 486,100 458,600 473,700 466,800 429,700 410,900 383,900
Government 398,600 417,700 409,600 413,600 387,800 365,500 373,900 364,500 359,300 372,400
Education & Health Services 395,700 402,000 386,200 390,500 383,400 366,800 347,400 335,900 327,000 314,700
Mining and Logging/Construction 280,200 317,200 316,200 301,400 302,600 317,400 312,000 298,100 279,600 261,000
Manufacturing 219,700 240,900 228,200 234,100 231,500 245,300 255,300 252,800 244,600 228,200
Leisure & Hospitality 285,000 341,100 332,300 330,700 327,800 305,800 294,100 277,500 264,300 250,400
Financial Activities 164,500 166,600 163,800 156,200 154,500 152,100 148,100 143,200 141,000 137,100
Other Services 98,700 122,200 111,700 113,200 109,200 108,600 105,500 100,300 96,900 93,600
Information 29,600 30,700 31,400 32,200 31,200 32,900 33,300 32,700 31,500 31,900

Total 2,980,400 3,185,200 3,131,600 3,061,200 3,001,900 2,980,000 2,931,300 2,799,000 2,702,900 2,601,000

Trade, Transportation, & Utilities 20.4% 19.8% 20.1% 19.7% 20.5% 20.5% 20.3% 20.2% 20.3% 20.3%
Professional & Business Services 16.8% 16.2% 16.7% 15.9% 15.3% 15.9% 15.9% 15.4% 15.2% 14.8%
Government 13.4% 13.1% 13.1% 13.5% 12.9% 12.3% 12.8% 13.0% 13.3% 14.3%
Education & Health Services 13.3% 12.6% 12.3% 12.8% 12.8% 12.3% 11.9% 12.0% 12.1% 12.1%
Mining and Logging/Construction 9.4% 10.0% 10.1% 9.8% 10.1% 10.7% 10.6% 10.7% 10.3% 10.0%
Manufacturing 7.4% 7.6% 7.3% 7.6% 7.7% 8.2% 8.7% 9.0% 9.0% 8.8%
Leisure & Hospitality 9.6% 10.7% 10.6% 10.8% 10.9% 10.3% 10.0% 9.9% 9.8% 9.6%
Financial Activities 5.5% 5.2% 5.2% 5.1% 5.1% 5.1% 5.1% 5.1% 5.2% 5.3%
Other Services 3.3% 3.8% 3.6% 3.7% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6% 3.6%
Information 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.1% 1.0% 1.1% 1.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics - https://www.bls.gov/home.htm

Number of Employees

Percent of Employees

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 Table 13 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
FACULTY, STAFF AND ADMINISTRATORS STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 14 

 
 

 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Faculty

Full-Time 873 881 849 830 818 759 759 789 809 910

Part-Time 1,953 1,601 1,774 1,545 1,717 1,687 1,742 1,715 2,781 2,921

Total 2,826 2,482 2,623 2,375 2,535 2,446 2,501 2,504 3,590 3,831

Percent

Full-Time 30.9% 35.5% 32.4% 34.9% 32.3% 31.0% 30.3% 31.5% 22.5% 23.8%

Part-Time 69.1% 64.5% 67.6% 65.1% 67.7% 69.0% 69.7% 68.5% 77.5% 76.2%

Staff and Administrators

Full-Time 1,563 1,636 1,585 1,528 1,465 1,385 1,323 1,350 1,327 1,272

Part-Time 1,140 1,049 1,061 1,160 1,432 1,170 1,413 1,443 1,088 1,169

Total 2,703 2,685 2,646 2,688 2,897 2,555 2,736 2,793 2,415 2,441

Percent

Full-Time 57.8% 60.9% 59.9% 56.8% 50.6% 54.2% 48.4% 48.3% 54.9% 52.1%

Part-Time 42.2% 39.1% 40.1% 43.2% 49.4% 45.8% 51.6% 51.7% 45.1% 47.9%

Students per Full-Time*

Faculty 61.6 61.6 66.1 66.3 65.4 72.5 72.0 71.0 71.2 62.2

Staff and Administrator 34.4 33.2 35.4 36.0 36.5 39.7 41.3 41.5 43.4 44.5

Average Annual 

Faculty Salary* $ 73,379   $ 73,116    $ 73,136   $ 70,528   $ 68,504   $ 65,038   $ 64,962   $ 63,366   $ 63,473   $ 62,533   $

*All figures are calculated from the CBM001&00A reports combined, see tables 16 and 17.

Source: IPEDS Human Resources Survey, as of November 1, 20XX.

For FY 2019, the decrease in average annual faculty salary relates to faculty attrition. During FY 2016, 2017 and 2018, faculty salaries increased in response to a 
market-based compensation study. 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ANNUAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT TRENDS BY RESIDENCY CODE 

SEMESTER CREDIT HOUR (SCH)  
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 
Table 15 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011

In-District 49,766       50,285       51,590       53,400       54,157       56,532       57,203       57,755       59,567       58,896       

Out-of-District 22,659       23,314       21,765       21,665       20,869       21,701       21,369       21,267       22,674       23,264       

Out-of-State 7,431         8,687         9,671         10,365       10,270       9,684         8,871         9,137         10,101       10,389       

Other/Unknown 21              6                8                17              9                85              17              69              14              12              

Unduplicated Enrollment 79,877     82,292     83,034     85,447     85,305     88,002     87,460     88,228     92,356     92,561     

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011

Semester Credit Hour (SCH) 79,877       82,292       83,034       85,447       85,305       88,002       87,460       88,228       92,356       92,561       

Funded Continuing Education Unit (CEU) 10,894       13,151       14,480       16,701       16,753       18,170       16,344       17,901       16,971       17,134       

Non-Funded Continuing Education 6,863         6,811         5,172         3,147         2,344         2,214         4,708         1,116         1,265         1,673         

Adult HS ABE/ESL/GED 2,465         3,431         6,128         11,286       11,681       9,167         7,992         9,749         10,062       10,801       

Unduplicated Enrollment * 98,211     103,488   106,470   114,430   114,288   115,575   113,689   115,600   119,196   120,804   

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

ANNUAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT TRENDS BY CAREER TYPE

Note:  

* The unduplicated enrollment total cannot be arrived at by summing the columns. This is because students may take courses in multiple career types.

Source: HCC OIR DataMart Files, end-of-term, FY 2011 - FY 2020.
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
ENROLLMENT DETAILS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

Student Classification* Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Freshman 28,814 53.6% 28,654 52.8% 29,322 52.2% 27,849 50.6% 26,282 49.2% 27,504 50.0% 28,599 52.4% 29,955 53.5% 32,304 56.1% 32,660 57.7%
Sophomore 13,827 25.7% 14,533 26.8% 15,287 27.2% 14,264 25.9% 14,734 27.6% 14,681 26.7% 14,414 26.4% 14,380 25.7% 14,529 25.2% 13,447 23.8%
Unclassified 5,016 9.3% 5,108 9.4% 5,137 9.2% 5,078 9.2% 5,221 9.8% 5,213 9.5% 4,904 9.0% 4,677 8.3% 4,437 7.7% 3,390 6.0%
Assoc. Degree 9 0.0% 15 0.0% 14 0.0% 15 0.0% 21 0.0% 30 0.1% 37 0.1% 53 0.1% 64 0.1% 120 0.2%
BS & Above 47 0.1% 53 0.1% 57 0.1% 57 0.1% 117 0.2% 118 0.2% 152 0.3% 171 0.3% 279 0.5% 361 0.6%
Continuing Ed. Only 6,062 11.3% 5,884 10.8% 6,318 11.3% 7,791 14.2% 7,093 13.3% 7,495 13.6% 6,515 11.9% 6,778 12.1% 6,002 10.4% 6,614 11.7%

Total 53,775 100.0% 54,247 100.0% 56,135 100.0% 55,054 100.0% 53,468 100.0% 55,041 100.0% 54,621 100.0% 56,014 100.0% 57,615 100.0% 56,592 100.0%

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Less than 3 789 1.5% 822 1.5% 888 1.6% 506 0.9% 548 1.0% 650 1.2% 652 1.2% 660 1.2% 835 1.4% 748 1.3%
3-5 semester hrs 14,225 26.5% 14,210 26.2% 13,983 24.9% 13,975 25.4% 12,312 23.0% 12,503 22.7% 12,363 22.6% 13,116 23.4% 13,153 22.8% 13,516 23.9%
6-8 Semester hrs 14,131 26.3% 14,305 26.4% 14,796 26.4% 13,846 25.1% 13,712 25.6% 14,009 25.5% 13,915 25.5% 13,433 24.0% 14,622 25.4% 13,781 24.4%
9-11 semester hrs 9,276 17.2% 9,741 17.9% 10,092 18.0% 9,348 17.0% 9,694 18.1% 9,791 17.8% 9,717 17.8% 9,999 17.9% 10,856 18.8% 10,359 18.3%
12-14 semester hrs 7,770 14.4% 7,986 14.7% 8,708 15.5% 8,264 15.0% 8,787 16.4% 9,103 16.5% 9,933 18.2% 10,438 18.6% 10,645 18.5% 9,958 17.6%
15-17 semester hrs 1,420 2.6% 1,244 2.3% 1,257 2.2% 1,247 2.3% 1,205 2.3% 1,376 2.5% 1,381 2.5% 1,470 2.6% 1,364 2.4% 1,443 2.5%
18 & over 102 0.2% 82 0.2% 93 0.2% 77 0.1% 117 0.2% 114 0.2% 145 0.3% 120 0.2% 138 0.2% 173 0.3%
Continuing Ed. Only 6,062 11.3% 5,884 10.8% 6,318 11.3% 7,791 14.2% 7,093 13.3% 7,495 13.6% 6,515 11.9% 6,778 12.1% 6,002 10.4% 6,614 11.7%

Total 53,775 100.0% 54,274 100.0% 56,135 100.0% 55,054 100.0% 53,468 100.0% 55,041 100.0% 54,621 100.0% 56,014 100.0% 57,615 100.0% 56,592 100.0%

Average course load 7.4 SCH 7.4 SCH 7.6 SCH 7.7 SCH 7.7 SCH 7.8 SCH 7.8 SCH 7.8 SCH

Tuition Status*** Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Texas Resident 29,574 55.0% 29,123 53.7% 30,707 54.7% 29,745 54.0% 29,791 55.7% 31,296 56.9% 31,806 58.2% 32,735 58.4% 32,896 57.1% 31,267 55.2%

 (In-District)
Texas Resident 12,970 24.1% 13,186 24.3% 12,198 21.7% 11,053 20.1% 10,541 19.7% 10,603 19.3% 10,592 19.4% 10,821 19.3% 12,056 20.9% 12,298 21.7%

 (Out-of-District)
Non-Resident Tuition 4,870 9.1% 5,824 10.7% 6,594 11.7% 6,151 11.2% 5,761 10.8% 5,234 9.5% 5,124 9.4% 5,302 9.5% 6,332 11.0% 6,170 10.9%
Tuition Waiver 299 0.6% 257 0.5% 318 0.6% 314 0.6% 282 0.5% 413 0.8% 584 1.1% 378 0.7% 329 0.6% 243 0.4%
Continuing Ed. Only 6,062 11.3% 5,884 10.8% 6,318 11.3% 7,791 14.2% 7,093 13.3% 7,495 13.6% 6,515 11.9% 6,778 12.1% 6,002 10.4% 6,614 11.7%

Total 53,775  100.0% 54,274  100.0% 56,135  100.0% 55,054  100.0% 53,468  100.0% 55,041  100.0% 54,621  100.0% 56,014  100.0% 57,615  100.0% 56,592  100.0%

Fall 2019

Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011

Notes: *  Data source is the CBM1&A report.  Files were combined and unduplicated in favor of retaining SCH students.  Students taking continuing education courses only are counted one time.  SCH students taking SCH and CEU 
courses are counted one time as SCH.   **  Data source same as above.  SCH students taking SCH and CEU courses are counted one time as SCH.   *** Data source same as above.  Continuing education students are not classified as to 
residency status.

Fall 2012 Fall 2011Fall 2017Fall 2018

Fall 2018

Semester Hour Load**
Fall 2016 Fall 2010

Fall 2010

Fall 2019

Fall 2019 Fall 2017

Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013

Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011Fall 2018 Fall 2017 Fall 2010

Table 16 



 

118 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
STUDENT PROFILE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
 

 

Gender Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Female 30,258   56.3% 30,284   55.8% 30,660   54.6% 29,532   53.6% 29,248   54.7% 30,007   54.5% 29,652   54.3% 30,881   55.1% 31,985   55.5% 30,865   54.5%

Male 23,517   43.7% 23,963   44.2% 25,475   45.4% 25,522   46.4% 24,220   45.3% 25,034   45.5% 24,969   45.7% 25,133   44.9% 25,630   44.5% 25,727   45.5%

Total 53,775   100.0% 54,247   100.0% 56,135   100.0% 55,054   100.0% 53,468   100.0% 55,041   100.0% 54,621   100.0% 56,014   100.0% 57,615   100.0% 56,592   100.0%

Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

African American 14,155   26.3% 14,560   26.8% 15,199   27.1% 14,192   25.8% 14,695   27.5% 16,079   29.2% 15,631   28.6% 16,085   28.7% 17,346   30.1% 15,685   27.7%

Hispanic 20,577   38.3% 19,796   36.5% 19,674   35.0% 19,230   34.9% 18,336   34.3% 18,368   33.4% 18,346   33.6% 18,266   32.6% 17,812   30.9% 17,721   31.3%

White 7,530     14.0% 7,624     14.1% 8,364     14.9% 8,438     15.3% 8,781     16.4% 9,302     16.9% 9,564     17.5% 10,242   18.3% 10,912   18.9% 11,393   20.1%

Asian 5,622     10.5% 5,588     10.3% 5,676     10.1% 5,504     10.0% 5,341     10.0% 5,354     9.7% 5,542     10.1% 5,641     10.1% 6,107     10.6% 5,881     10.4%

Native American 89          0.2% 95          0.2% 93          0.2% 87          0.2% 104        0.2% 118        0.2% 118        0.2% 110        0.2% 131        0.2% 138        0.2%

Foreign 4,099     7.6% 4,947     9.1% 5,464     9.7% 5,257     9.5% 4,655     8.7% 4,040     7.3% 3,830     7.0% 3,884     6.9% 4,086     7.1% 4,270     7.5%

Unknown 1,703     3.2% 1,627     3.0% 1,665     3.0% 2,346     4.3% 1,556     2.9% 1,780     3.2% 1,590     2.9% 1,786     3.2% 1,221     2.1% 1,504     2.7%

Total 53,775   100.0% 54,237   100.0% 56,135   100.0% 55,054   100.0% 53,468   100.0% 55,041   100.0% 54,621   100.0% 56,014   100.0% 57,615   100.0% 56,592   100.0%

Age Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent

Under 18 7,035     13.1% 6,391     11.8% 5,788     10.3% 6,112     11.1% 4,283     8.0% 4,031     7.3% 3,962     7.3% 4,639     8.3% 2,908     5.0% 3,046     5.4%

18 - 21 16,789   31.2% 16,325   30.1% 17,018   30.3% 15,500   28.2% 14,982   28.0% 15,074   27.4% 16,041   29.4% 16,027   28.6% 17,222   29.9% 17,205   30.4%

22 - 24 7,899     14.7% 8,073     14.9% 8,636     15.4% 8,308     15.1% 8,562     16.0% 8,753     15.9% 8,849     16.2% 8,962     16.0% 9,760     16.9% 9,328     16.5%

25 - 35 13,686   25.5% 14,662   27.0% 15,757   28.1% 15,850   28.8% 15,997   29.9% 16,903   30.7% 15,741   28.8% 15,842   28.3% 17,194   29.8% 16,569   29.3%

36 - 50 6,228     11.6% 6,602     12.2% 6,792     12.1% 6,983     12.7% 7,154     13.4% 7,688     14.0% 7,477     13.7% 7,862     14.0% 8,055     14.0% 7,957     14.1%

51 & Over 2,127     4.0% 2,184     4.0% 2,139     3.8% 2,293     4.2% 2,482     4.6% 2,589     4.7% 2,531     4.6% 2,664     4.8% 2,464     4.3% 2,468     4.4%

Unknown 11          0.0% 10          0.0% 5            0.0% 8            0.0% 8            0.0% 3            0.0% 20          0.0% 18          0.0% 12          0.0% 19          0.0%

Total 53,775   100.0% 54,247   100.0% 56,135   100.0% 55,054   100.0% 53,468   100.0% 55,041   100.0% 54,621   100.0% 56,014   100.0% 57,615   100.0% 56,592   100.0%

Average Age 26.1 * 26.4 * 26.5 * 26.8 * 26.8 * 27.4 * 27.7 * 27.4 * 27.4 * 27.5 *

Note:
*Removed 'Unknown' age before calculating average.
Source: Certified CBM001 & CBM00A.

Fall 2017

Fall 2017

Fall 2018

Fall 2018 Fall 2012 Fall 2011

Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011

Fall 2017 Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013 Fall 2012 Fall 2011

Fall 2019

Fall 2019

Fall 2019

Fall 2010

Fall 2010

Fall 2010

Ethnic Origin

Fall 2016 Fall 2015 Fall 2014 Fall 2013

Fall 2018

Table 17 
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
FUNDABLE CONTACT HOURS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

 
Table 18 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Grand 
Fiscal Year Academic Voc Tech Total CEU Total

2020 14,734,611 4,941,920 19,676,531 1,715,532 21,392,063

2019 14,735,065 4,961,424 19,696,489 1,843,055 21,539,544

2018 15,688,714 4,844,368 20,533,082 2,019,420 22,552,502

2017 15,443,656 5,298,512 20,742,168 2,296,406 23,038,574

2016 15,527,528 5,762,048 21,289,576 2,146,857 23,436,433

2015 15,873,248 6,122,448 21,995,696 2,290,228 24,285,924

2014 15,931,744 5,822,268 21,754,012 1,980,830 23,734,842

2013 16,237,296 5,744,810 21,982,106 1,933,271 23,915,377

2012 17,354,256 5,822,072 23,176,328 1,798,940 24,975,268

2011 17,802,080 5,924,078 23,726,158 1,914,445 25,640,603

Semester Credit Hours
Funded Contact Hours
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
TRANSFERS TO SENIOR INSTITUTIONS 

2018-2019 GRADUATES* 
(Includes Only Public Senior Colleges in Texas) 

(Unaudited) 
                      Table 19 

 

 

Total Student 
Count 

Academic

Total 
Student 
Count 

Technical

Total 
Student 
Count 

Tech-Prep

Total of all 
Transfer 
Students

% of all 
Transfer 
Students

1 Angelo State University 8                      1                   -             9                 0.1%
2 Baylor College of Medicine 6                      -             6                 0.1%
3 Lamar University 87                    14                 -             101             1.0%
4 Midwestern State University 16                    3                   -             19               0.2%
5 Prairie View A&M University 254                  15                 4                273             2.7%
6 Sam Houston State University 327                  19                 -             346             3.5%
7 Stephen F. Austin State University 121                  9                   -             130             1.3%
8 Sul Ross State University - Rio Grande College 3                      -             3                 0.0%
9 Tarleton State University 11                    1                   -             12               0.1%

10 Texas A&M International University 1                      -             1                 0.0%
11 Texas A&M University 922                  14                 1                937             9.4%
12 Texas A&M University - Central Texas 2                      1                   -             3                 0.0%
13 Texas A&M University - Commerce 14                    1                   -             15               0.2%
14 Texas A&M University - Corpus Christi 52                    6                   -             58               0.6%
15 Texas A&M University - Kingsville 13                    1                   -             14               0.1%
16 Texas A&M University - San Antonio 13                    1                   -             14               0.1%
17 Texas A&M University - Texarkana 4                      -             4                 0.0%
18 Texas A&M University at Galveston 34                    2                   -             36               0.4%
19 Texas A&M University System Health Science Center 16                    1                   -             17               0.2%
20 Texas Southern University 477                  45                 1                523             5.2%
21 Texas State University 300                  12                 -             312             3.1%
22 Texas Tech University 228                  9                   1                238             2.4%
23 Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center 21                    1                   -             22               0.2%
24 Texas Tech University Health Sciences Center - El Paso 1                      -             1                 0.0%
25 Texas Woman's University 102                  4                   -             106             1.1%
26 The University of Texas - Rio Grande Valley 8                      1                   -             9                 0.1%
27 The University of Texas at Arlington 133                  10                 1                144             1.4%
28 The University of Texas at Austin 613                  6                   1                620             6.2%
29 The University of Texas at Dallas 176                  4                   -             180             1.8%
30 The University of Texas at El Paso 12                    -             12               0.1%
31 The University of Texas at San Antonio 224                  5                   -             229             2.3%
32 The University of Texas at Tyler 173                  6                   -             179             1.8%
33 The University of Texas of the Permian Basin 14                    1                   -             15               0.2%
34 The University of Texas Health Science Center at Houston 113 18                 -             131             1.3%
35 The University of Texas Health Science Center at San Ant 7                      1                   -             8                 0.1%
36 The University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center 43                    3                   -             46               0.5%
37 The University of Texas Medical Branch at Galveston 41                    -               -             41               0.4%
38 The University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center 1                      -               -             1                 0.0%
39 University of Houston 3,087               130               7                3,224          32.3%
40 University of Houston - Clear Lake 153                  18                 -             171             1.7%
41 University of Houston - Downtown 1,256               132               7                1,395          14.0%
42 University of Houston - Victoria 239                  28                 -             267             2.7%
43 University of North Texas 105                  4                   -             109             1.1%
44 University of North Texas at Dallas 1                      -               -             1                 0.0%
45 University of North Texas Health Science Center                4                      -               -             4                 0.0%
46 West Texas A&M University 8                      1                   -             9                 0.1%

9,444               528               23              9,995          100.00%
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION 

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS  
(Unaudited) 

 Table 20 
 
 

 
 
 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Number of Academic Buildings* 60 59 59 52 50

Square footage 3,769,775 3,735,824 3,738,088 3,174,752 2,938,234 

Number of Administrative Buildings 1 1 1 1 1

Square footage 558,450 558,450 558,450 558,450 558,450

Number of Plant Facilit ies/Warehouses 7 7 7 6 6

Square footage 145,727 145,727 145,727 180,845 180,845

Number of Parking Structures 6 6 6 6 6

Square footage 1,481,151 1,481,151 1,413,861 1,413,861 1,413,861

Number of Libraries** 15 15 16 14 14             

Square footage 155,472 155,472 159,290 149,831 149,831    

Libraries 

Number of Volumes

Circulating books 244,198 261,223 261,347 260,723 255,605    

Reference books 19,489 20,138 21,323 24,167 26,202      

Media items 20,410 21,340 21,985 22,768 22,492      

Magazines, journals, newspapers -            465 423 464 527           

Electronic books/digital video 361,712 344,686 295,504 282,510 242,580    

Electronic journals 37,642      37,745      33,961      7,100        8,228        
Misc. Items (Devices, games, 
maker items, etc.)

3,225        3,036        -                

Total 686,676 688,633 634,543 597,732 555,634

Transportation

Cars 55             55             51             42             38             

Golf Cart 27             27             21             19             24             

Utility Carts 16             15             16             13             10             

Motorcycle 1               1               1               1               1               

Segway -            -            -            -            3               

Mobile Unit 2               2               2               2               2               

Sports Utility Vehicle 19             13             12             11             5               

T ractors 31             35             35             33             37             

T railers 45             45             45             40             45             

T ruck 19             19             19             19             19             

T ruck, Heavy 13             9               9               5               4               

Fire Truck 2               2               2               2               2               

Cargo Vans 17             15             15             14             18             

15 Passenger Vans 2               2               2               2               2               

Forklift 15             12             12             10             10             

Total 264           252           242           213           220           

Note:
*Buildings include both capital and operating leases.
**They are not free standing buildings and are already included in Academic Buildings.  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 

Schedule E 
 

 

 
 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  

CFDA Pass-Through

Number Grant Award # Expenditures to Subrecipients
U. S. Department of Education

84.007 P007A184037 1,865,989$                      $                                -
84.033 P007A184037 1,190,228                        -                                 
84.063 P063P183363 86,270,849                      -                                 
84.268 P268K193363 67,552,413                      -                                 

84.379 P379T193363 7,035                               -                                 
156,886,514                 -                                 

84.047A  P047A171239 266,646                           -                                 

84.047A P047A171255 474,320                           -                                 

84.066A P066A160447 256,658                           -                                 

997,624                         -                                 

84.425E P425E200879 14,147,100                      

84.425F P425F201765 1,347,018                        -                                 

84.425L P425L200365 1,013,208                        -                                 

84.938T P938T180038 157,017                           -                                 

84.002A H-GAC 213-20 3,084,298                        -                                 

84.002A H-GAC 213-21 524,536                           -                                 

84.002A H-GAC 213-20 485,047                           -                                 

84.002A H-GAC 213-21 74,182                             -                                 

84.002A N/A 9,869                               -                                 

84.002A 2819AEL003 198,901                           -                                 

84.002A N/A 57,791                             -                                 

4,434,624                      -                                 

            
84.048 BMS#22098 2,064,192                        -                                 

84.305H 15584 2,592                               -                                 

84.305H 15526 30,875                             -                                 

2,097,659                      -                                 

            
84.126A 3020VRS043 55,692                             -                                 

181,136,456$               -                                 

11.805 MB16OBD8050023 337,168                           -                                 

337,168                         -                                 

16.607 N/A 3,842                               -                                 

3,842                              -                                 Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Commerce
    Minority Business Development Agency - Business Center

Total U.S. Department of Commerce

Total U.S. Department of Education

        Education Research, Development and Dissemination

U.S. Department of Justice
      Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

        Rehabilitation Services Vocational/Rehabilitation Grants to States  

Total THECB - Career and Technical Education Basic Grants to States 

Total Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

       Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

    Texas Workforce Commission

       Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

    Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 
        Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States

        Education Research, Development and Dissemination

       Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

       Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

       Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

       Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

       TRIO - Educational Opportunities Centers

       Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher
            Education Grants (TEACH Grants)
Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster

TRIO Cluster
       TRIO - Upward Bound

       TRIO - Upward Bound

Total TRIO Cluster  

Pass-Through From:
    Houston - Galveston Area Council
       Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

  COVID-19  Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Institutional Support

  COVID-19 Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Minority Serving Institution

  Emergency Assistance to Institutions of Higher Education Program

   COVID-19 CARES Act Higher Education Emergency Relief Fund - Student Aid

Pass-Through Grantor's Award Number

Federal Grantor/Cluster/Program Title/Pass-Through Grantor

Student Financial Assistance Cluster
       Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants
       Federal Work-Study Program
       Federal Pell Grant Program
       Federal Direct Student Loans
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED 

YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 
Schedule E 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  

CFDA Pass-Through
Number Grant Award # Expenditures to Subrecipients

17.268 AP-27829-15-60-A-48 947,743                           566,777                      

17.285 AP-33025-19-75-A-11 25,686                             -                                  

17.278 2820ATP002-001 118,156                           118,156                      

17.278 2818WOS000 40,694                             -                                  
158,850                         118,156                    

1,132,279                      684,933                    

19.009 S-ECAGD-19-CA-0055 91,672                             -                                  

19.009 S-ECAGD-19-CA-0055 9,190                               -                                  

100,862                         -                                  

National Science Foundation
47.049 1460564 9,678                               3,600                          

47.076 534713001 114,349                           -                                  

47.076 R-19-0000 67,871                             -                                  

47.076 1501938 56,612                             -                                  

47.076 M1801293 22,816                             -                                  

271,326                         3,600                         

93.243 UTA17-000810 8,881                               -                                  

93.558 2820ATP002-001 19,681                             19,681                        

28,562                           19,681                       

Corporation for National and Community Service
94.006 - 65,461                             -                                  

65,461                           -                                  

183,075,956$        708,214$           Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

    AmeriCorps

Total Corporation for National and Community Service

Total U. S. Department of Health and Human Services

       Academic Exchange Programs- Undergraduate Programs

Pass-Through From:

    Texas Workforce Commission
        Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Total National Science Foundation

U. S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-Through From:

        Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects 

Total U.S. Department of Labor

Total WIOA Cluster

       Academic Exchange Programs- Undergraduate Programs

Total U.S. Department of State

U.S. Department of State
Pass-Through From:
    Northern Virginia Community College

Federal Grantor/Cluster/Program Title/Pass-Through Grantor
Pass-Through Grantor's Award Number

Pass-Through From:

    Texas Workforce Commission

U.S. Department of Labor
      H-1B Job Training Grants

    American Association of Community Colleges
       Apprenticeship USA Grants 

      University of Texas at Austin

      WIOA Cluster

   TANF Cluster

    Education and Human Resources

Pass-Through From:
      University of Houston
      Education and Human Resources

      Texas A&M
      Education and Human Resources

      Education and Human Resources

       WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants

      WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants

    Mathematical and Physical Sciences  
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES USED IN PREPARING THE SCHEUDLE 
 
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the federal grant activity of the System for the year 
ended August 31, 2020.  The schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The expenditures 
reported in the schedule represent funds which have been expended by the System for the purposes of the award 
and may not have been reimbursed by the funding agencies as of the end of the fiscal year. Negative amounts 
shown on the schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported 
as expenditures in prior years. Separate accounts are maintained for the different awards to aid in the observance 
of limitations and restrictions imposed by the funding agencies. The System has followed all applicable guidelines 
issued by various entities in the preparation of the schedule. Since the System utilizes an agency approved Indirect 
Recovery Rate, it has elected not to use the 10% de Minimis cost rate as permitted under the Uniform Guidance, 
Section 200.414. 
 
NOTE 2 – FEDERAL ASSISTANCE RECONCILIATION  
 

Revenues - Federal Grants and Contracts – per Schedule A 29,265,821$        
Add: Non-Operating Federal Revenue - per Schedule C 88,136,837          
Total Federal Revenues per Schedules A and C 117,402,658        

Reconciling items:
Add: Federal Direct Student Loans 67,552,413          
Less: Programs not subject to Federal Single Audit (1,879,115)          

Total Federal Revenues per Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 183,075,956$      

 
NOTE 3 – EXPENDITURES NOT SUBJECT TO FEDERAL SINGLE AUDIT 
 
The following federal funds were not subject to federal single audit – 
 
CFDA 64.027 Post 9/11 Veterans Educational Assistance 1,879,115$          

 
These funds were not subject to a federal single audit per the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.  
 
NOTE 4 – STUDENT LOANS PROCESSED AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS RECOVERED 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

U.S. Department of Education:
84.268 Direct Loans                                $                   67,552,413                             $           -     $                 74,170,077

                                                                                                          Administrative                                                   Processed &
   Federal Grantor/CFDA                                                                           Cost                                                       Administrative Cost
Number/Program Name              New Loans Processed                       Recovered                                                           Recovered
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

 

NOTE 5 - AMOUNTS PASSED THROUGH BY THE SYSTEM TO SUBRECIPIENTS 
 

The following amounts were passed-through to the listed sub-recipients by the System and are included in the 
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards. 
 
The below amounts were funded by the U.S. Department of Labor H-1B Job Training grant; CFDA 17.268.  
 
CVS Health Corporation 104,111$                   

Dallas County Community College District 462,666                     

Total Passed-through to Subrecipients 566,777$                   

 
The below amount was funded by the U.S. Department of Labor WIOA Dislocated Work Formula grant; CFDA 
17.278 
 

Joint Apprenticeship Training Committee 118,156$                      

Total Passed-through to Subrecipient 118,156$                      

 
The below amounts were funded by the National Science Foundation Mathematical and Physical Sciences 
grant; CFDA 47.049.   

 

 

 
The below amount was funded by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Temporary Assistance for 
Needy Family grant; CFDA 93.558 
 
 
 
 
  

Houston Area Sheet Metal Joint Apprenticeship Commmittee 19,681$                                 

Total Passed-through to Subrecipient 19,681$                                 

University of Houston 3,600$                           

Total Passed-through to Subrecipients 3,600$                           
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE OF TEXAS AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2020 
Schedule F 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas Awards. 

Expenditures
  and
State Grantor Grantor's Pass-Through
      Program Title Number Disbursements

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
Nursing Shortage Reduction Program - 12,958                 

Work-Study Student Mentorship Program 18882 26,009                 

Houston Pathways Initiative-College for Readiness 23042 4,496                   
Texas College Work Study Program - 190,671               
Texas Educational Opportunity Grant - 3,736,358            
       Total Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 3,970,492          

Texas Workforce Commission
Apprenticeship Training Program 2820ATP002 280,507               
FY19 Skills for Small Business Program 289SSD003 1,327                   
TWC Texas Injection Molding, LLC 2819SDF001 127,057               
TWC-Skills for Transition Program 2819SDF002 1,442                   
       Total Texas Workforce Commission 410,333             

Texas State Board of Public Accountancy
Fifth Year Accounting Student - 6,021                   
       Total Texas State Board of Public Accountancy 6,021                  

Total State Financial Assistance 4,386,846$       
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HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE OF TEXAS AWARDS 

 
NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES USED IN PREPARING THE SCHEDULE 
 
The Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas Awards presents the activity of the state award programs of the 
System for the year ended August 31, 2020. Expenditure reports to funding agencies are prepared on the award 
period basis. The expenditures reported in Schedule F above represent funds that have been expended by the 
System for the purposes of the award. Separate accounts are maintained for the different awards to aid in the 
observance of the limitations and restrictions imposed by the funding agencies. The System has followed all 
applicable guidelines issued by various entities in the preparation of the schedule. 
 
NOTE 2 – STATE ASSISTANCE RECONCILIATION 
 
State Grants and Contracts Revenue – per Schedule A                            4,386,846$             
Reconciling items:

None -                         
Total State revenues per Schedule of Expenditures of State of Texas Awards   4,386,846$             

 
NOTE 3 – AMOUNTS PASSED-THROUGH BY THE SYSTEM TO SUBRECIPIENTS 
 
The following amounts were passed-through to the listed sub-recipients by the System and are included in the 
Schedule of Expenditure of State Awards. 
 
The below amounts were funded by the TWC Apprenticeship Training Program/Chap. 133 grant. 
 
FTI of District Council 88 11,261$                  
Houston Area Sheet Metal Joint Apprenticeship Committee 36,183                    
Joint Apprenticeship Training Committee of Pipe Fitters LU 211 110,732                  
Texas IronWorkers, Houston Branch 68,816                    

Total Passed-through to Subrecipients 226,992$                
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